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Content Themes

We have identified four key themes which are highlighted throughout the report.
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‘About Us

Our'Purpos'e

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC {"CSH", “Civitas” or
the "Company’) invests actpss the UK in care-based
community housing and healthcare facilities for the

benefit of working age adults with lohg-term care needs.
Since PO in 2016, CSH has built the largest portfolio of

its kind in the UK that has heen independently valued at
£969 million.

The Company provides long-term: community-kased
homes for 4,592 tenants, across 178 local autherity
partners thatare supported by 130 gpecialist care
providers and 18 Approved Providers. The delivery of care
in the community is a primary government policy and
cross panty.policy of many decades aimed at enabling
people with long-terrs care needs to reside close o
-family andfriends and achijeve more indépendent and

fulfilled lives. [t delivers better personal outcomes and
offers value for money for the public purse that meets the
costs of the service. Residen:s, whose average age is ¢.32
years, typically reside in their adapted CSH community
home for many years and sometimes for their whole life.

As a result of making this provision available CSH ls able -

to offer shareholders the potential of stable, long-term
returns with progressive dividends whiist delivering
measurable social impact on a large scale. Following
shareholder approval, the Company is now expanding
into Scotland and Northern Ireland and will work with
organisations in receipt of public funding.

Business Model

An individual with care
requirements requires a home.

v

The Local Authority designs a care
package, identifying a care
provider and property for the
individual.

v

The care provider is paid the full
amount for the care package and
pays rent to the Approved Provider,
or the Approved Provider is paid
the rent directly.

The Approved Provider pays i
Civitas the rent.

What We Do

Social Housing Pioneers

C3H 15 a leading provider of care-based communtty
housing in *he UK "t was established in 2016 by the
founders of 11s ‘nvestment Adviser, Civiias investmant
Managemen: Limited {"C'M", from the long-s:anding
conviction that private captial could play a vizal and
ethical role in the delivery of homes within the social
housing sector.

Sk believes thar access 10 a decen: home is a basic
human righ: from which so much more can be achieved,
particularly for people who are living with a life-long
disabiliy. With mullions of people stuck on housing
waiting lists across the UK, or rapped in long s:ay
hospizals, CS= became :he firs: public company to bring
large scale equity invesiment 1nto the seclor

The Company has the dual objectuves of achieving both
posiive financial retarns and large scale measurable
social 1mpac:.

¢20¢ SLNIODOY UNY LEOJEE
D HNISNOH TVIDOS SYLIALD



CIVITAS SOUIAL HOUSING PLO
REFORT AND ACCOUNTS 2022

b

Our Portfolio
as at 31 March 2022

£969m 696

Investment property
independently valued'

(March 2021: £916m)

Properties
(March 2021: 619)

4,592

Tenants

{(March 2021: 4,295)

Company Overview

as at 31 March 2022

£652m 675,547

Erquity Capital Raised NAV £'000°

'87.4 pence 6.3%

. Dividend Yield”
Share price* (annual)

Closed Ended Inflation Linked
Permanent Capital Rental Income

# Allernanve Parfurmance Measures Terms are detined in the Glossary

1 please see nole 15 of 1he Consolidated Financial Statements 101 delatls of the valuzanon

2 means Net Asser Vajue of the Group prepdred n arcorddanee wirth [FES accounnng standards
3 means Total Assels

4 as 3131 March 2022

1,037,089

GAV £000°

5.55 pence
Dividends declared for the
year ended 31 March 2022

37.2%

. Total return since inception*

{Net Asset Value based)



Financial Highlights

for the year ended 31 March 2022

71.23p
(2021: 5.80p)

Basic and Diluted Earnings
per Share

£54.1m

{2021: £50.8m based upon
£915.6m real estate

Annualised Rent Roll*: based upon
£969m of real estate at the end of
the reporting period

22.1yrs

(2021: 22.6 yrs)

Weighted Average
Unexpired lLease Term*

How We Performed
Financial Highlights for the year ended 31 March 2022

Profit before tax
£44.8m +24.1%

fmilion

2022

202
202G

g i

IFRS NAV per share?
110.30p +1.9%

Pence

2022

110.30

021

IFRS NAV
£675.5m +0.3%

fllion

EPRA EPS*
4.82p -2.2%

Total shareholder
return® +11.6%

IFRS NAV increase
since IPO* +12.6%

Penee Parcen: Percen:

2022 2022 2022

(482
2021 2071 02

A 5 Y D

2020 202G

Investment Dividends declared Annualised rent

property?
£968.8m +5.8%

nomilion

2022
PV
TV S

PO
PAYAY

(Ordinary shares)
5.55p +2.8%

FPence

2022

# Allernative Pericimance Measures Teims are defined in the Glossary
1 on &n Ordinary share held since launch (percentage nol annualsed)
Znvestment pruperty iImdependently valued See nore 15 0 of the Consohdated Finanaal Slatements for details of the valuation

roll*
£54.1m +6.5%

Imilion
2022

2021
B o L e
2020
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Key Achievements
Operational Highlights
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696 properties £835 million 4,592 tenants with based on supported by acrnss 178 Local
acquired- invested' dependable ‘ong term 130 care Authority Partners
aceommmodat.on .eases siyned with providers
18 Approved
Providers

The Good Economy, the social impact advisory firm, in its fourth annual
independent Social Impact Report on Civitas, noted that Civitas continues to be an
authentic ‘impact investor' according to [FC operating principles and is proactive in
its approach to asset management, taking well defined steps to improve the quality
of existing homes, especially in terms of improving environmental performance.

1 ovel the life of the Company as 4t 31 March 2022

Levered IRR* since IPO (IFRS and Portfolio Basis)

FRs oy

Fast performance ;s not a rehable indicator of futire performance
* Alterpatve Petformance Measure See Appendix 1 tor the calmalation

Share price performance {pence)
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Chairman’s Statement

From the Chairman

The need for quality housing for the most vulnerable
in society is more acute than ever. Thanks to the dedicated
efforts of our Investment Adviser and partners, the Company

has reported:

Remnts achieved as normal, adjusted for inflation indexation

Audited IFRS NAV per share resilient at 110.30p (up 1L85%)

Important sector initiatives to promote greater regulatory alignment
Overall improved financial and operational performance from our partner

Michael Wrobel
Chairman

Approved Providers

Introduction

L am pleased to report that the Company has achieved
another year of strong financial and operational
performance. Our postiive social impact ig detailed 1n
a repor: from the independen specialist consultancy
The Good Sconomy ("TGE™.

The year presented many challenges. The prassures of
+he COVID-19 pandemic ol our tenants and “heir carers
highlights the benefits of providing communiy-based
care houging for vulnerable aduls of working age. Junng
the year. the Company came under atack from a small
number of inves:ors shor-selling the Company's shares,
one of whom published a series of crninicisms rhat the
Board refized in a very dezalled response. The share price,
having traded at a premium 0 NAV early i1 the financial
year, dropped sharply o a discount at the year end.

One of the Board responses has been tc 1ntiate a share
bay-back programme which enhances the Net Asset Value
of the Company and confirms the 3oard’s conhdence

1n the robust nawre of the Company’'s cashflows and
asse: values,

Cur ‘nvesimen: Adwviser, Civizas nivesimen: Vanagement
mted ("CIVv7, has exceptional knowledge of the industry
and conznues o add o 115 ream 10 enthance our por:folio,
C. has been working on an ninaive o (nroduce a
vanasion o our leases, that will not impac: revenues or
asset values, bur which aims o strengzhen the indusiry
by addressing concerns expressed by the Regulazor for
Social Yousimng.

Financial Performance

Durnng the year under review our portfolio generazed
renzal iIncome of £57.6 million. representung a 5.5%
increase over the corresponding period. This reflects
‘ha indexanon of lease rents {dunng a penod of mosly
very low inflaton! jogether with new ren:s from a small
number of properies purchased dunng the year.

Cash generazed from operalions was £37.5 mithon.
an increase of 3.83% over “he pnor year
(on a comparable basis)

7RSS net asse: value of the Company increased from
108.3C pence per Ordinary share as at 30 March 2027 w0
2030 rrence per share as at 3. March 2022,

1 Fhis 1s & targer and not a lurmal dividend forecast or a ptofii forecast

Active asget management to underpin long-term quality

The Company has me: the 3oard’s stated dividend target
of 5.55 pence per share for the year to 3. March 2022

and the 3oard has set a new dividend target of a- leas:
510" pence per share for the year “o 31 March 2023,

Board Governance

The Board 1s currently looking to recruit a new
independent director, having regard 0 §uccessIon, our
breadth of skills and diversity.

The Board and the 'nvestment Adviser continue an open
dialogue with our shareholders o further demonsirate
odr commiimen: to provide full :rangparency at ail times,

Continuation Vote

The Campany's ar:icles of association require the
Board 1o propose a conanuauon vote as an ordimary
resoluieon at the annual general meeung following

the Bfth anmversary from “he mital public offenng of
-he Company and a: every fifth AGM “hereafier. Thig

18 referred o lazer in more detall within the Repor: of
-he Diractors. Following discussions with a number of
shareholders and giwen the streng:h and nature of the
Company's por:foito and iong-term tenan:s, the Directars
are of the opinton that the conundasion resolunon at
‘he forthcoming AGV will be passed and encourage all
shareholders to vote in favour.

Outlook

The sector in which the Company inves:s offers many
postiive armibutes. in an increasingly uncerain world. We
henefi: from high levels of intrinsic underlying demand for
our properies. All of our leases benefi: from C27 uphf: on
ren:s. some of which are subxec: 10 a 4% cap. Together wath
our pariners, we enable the delivery of high quahty, value
for money care services for our tenans

Our inrmanives on new lease clauses and further prajec:s
with =.0ON 10 reduce our carbon foorpnn: will deliver
further benefl: (0 our siakeholders. We ook o the future
w1h confidence.

Michael Wrobel

Chalrman

2% june 2022



Growth

Growing base of global investors
Civitas invests on behaif of a wide range of global. national and local investors seeking exposure in
sustainable long term income together with measurabie social impact and high levels of ESG delivery.

Four Continents...

..over 60 Locations _

Amsierdam . Demver . Helsinki B 7. Monweal ' 49 Seartle
Austin . : . Dublin 26 Hong Kong 38. Munich 50. Singapore
Baltirsore ' "18." Edinburgh 27. Wineis 39. New Jersey 51, Surrey
Beliing ) 6. Espoo 28 Japan - 40. New York : : - Smithiield

Boswon
Bradford
Bristol
Bristiane
. Brussels
3. -Chicago
. Cotumbus

R R

Birmingham - 7. Exeter 23 Jersey
. Fort Lauderdale
: Frankfust
. Genieva -

1 Glasgow
. Guernsey
3. Halifax
. Heerlen

30, Jersey City
31 Leeds

32 London

33. Los Angeles
34, Luxembourg
35, Manchester
36. Melbourne

41, 'New Zealand

42. Oslo

43. Pafis -

44, Philadeiphia
48. Rofterdam

46: Richmond

47, Sacrdfiento
48. San Francisco

3. Sydney
. Tokyo
Toxomia -
. The Hague

7. Tunbridge Wells
. Vancouver
. Windsor

60; Zurich

our su*atemr for growth

Demand for the accommodation provided by Civitas is strang and. expected to remain so over the long term. The
pandermic has further evidenced the need for safe and secure horiesfor the most vulnerable people in society.
Civitas is a go-to partner for an increasing range of major vendors and cmmaerpamas

Civitas is the market Jeader with the largest portfolio and deeply ingrained relationships with care providers, local
authorities, Approved Providers and charities across the UK.

Civitas continues to take delivery of new build higher acuity properties with mere opportunities being offered and
expands into sngmflcant markets across the UK. now including Scotland and Northern Ireland.

The Company continues to work closely with The Social Housing Family CIC to enable i to expand and play a bmader
role in the gector, and becoming part of ctitical tocal authonw pathways, leatling to many opponunmes in specialist
supported H¥ing and advanced homelessness.

‘Civitas how works with a broader range of. counterparties including charitios and other not-for-profit organisations, ter
expand into mgmftcant markets acress the UK, now tncludmg 5cotland and Northern Ireland.




Our Portfolio
By UK Region as at 31 March 2022

:E J—

EDR-
8 2% 3%

5 €5 E5 )

£ 2l <& 3
" North East T84 58 70
North West 101 -1-0_] i 9.8
Yorkshlre and the Humber 96 10.8 105
East Midlanas T 58 86 B3
‘West Midlands ) S}H TL! 1.2
EastofEngland 32 40 39
South East a 64 __l.o_l - '9-.9-
‘South West 120 155 155
Wales - ;: 11.0 105
London T 2 128 132

96 properties
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Our Portfolio continued

By Approved Provider as at 31 March 2022

Annualised Rent Rolil (%)

o

Tenancies

£54.1m

Auckland’
BeST

Inclusicn

Qualitas Housing'

. Wesmoreland

Enaircle

§ ronuy

Pivolal

Chrysahs
Harbour Light
New Walk

My Space
IKE

Hilidale
Windrush

Lily Rose

Rlue S¢uare

falcon
BeST
Auckland'
¢ {inclusion

= —

Qualnas Housmg'

LLT”I‘“V
Wesmmoereland

I Prvotal

g oo
Encuzcle

New Walk

Cmysal-ls
K{v Space
KL
W?mi[ush
Hxlldalé; ’

Ly Ruse
i Blue Scuare

Properties

W

Market Value (%)

ogl'?

11 0.1
1_1\ 101

Ll
9

Faloon

Auckland'
Inclusion
BeST

Quabhias Housing?
Trinuy

Westmoreland

I';Ie-w Waik
ﬁiﬂrulal h
Chrysans -
" Harbour Light
- Encircle -_
Hilldale

Windrush

Blue Sguate

i Ly Rose
- S

Falcon

Auckland!
BesT

& Inchision

Westmoreland

Toinny

A Encircle
[ S— -

Pivotal

Chiysalis

Harbour Light
New Walk

My Space
IKE
Hillddale

Windrush

Blue Square

:fiuly Rose

1 Auckland and Qualtas Housing are both membeis ot the Sactal Housing Family C1 € and subject 1o common control
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Investment Adviser’s Report

Continuous
Improvement

In tﬁi}ee{r to March 2022 CIM, wérﬁng with the CSH Board, has led the
development of a range of key initiatives to strengthen and position CSH and its
portfolio for the future,

FPrOReries

e famitlies, fnends and shear carsrs

Phase two work with E.ON
Connnaed work aore properney
Targeang 255 redi1cm 17 carbon
Continiaed SFTment cpran: fanding

LAl oThengy & 2 . T pmsm -

A growing team of specialists

e Assel Managemen:

e rlhanhce and operatons

& Tranzacton sourcing and execulion
s Housing 3enefit

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSTNG PLC
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2042
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Investment Adviser’s Report continued

66

Civitas Social Housing PLC (CSH) i:s the market leader in
the delivery of ethical, care-based residential housing,
delivering sustainable returns for shareholders and

2
2
b ]
3
[+
&
L4

outstanding community-based homes for residents,

while offering value for money to society. This

tra_nsfom; lives.
Paul Bridge

CEOQ, Social Housing
Civitas Investment

Management Limited

Introduction

1]

Cwias Investment Management Limited (CI M), the ‘nvestment Adwviser to CSH, advises on a range of ethically based
social and healthcare real estate funds with commitied capital of ¢.£3bn. CIM advises these funds on behalf of various
global investors ‘ogether with a wide range of local authornty pension funds and dedicated impact investors.

The increased scale of its operations has enabled C/M to create a large team of dedicated professionals in the spectalist
heal-hcare sector and 10 make this experuse avallable to each of the adwvised funds, including CSH.

On behalf of the Investmen: Adwviser and CS=, we would like to offer our *hanks to all of our partmners who have continued
to provide high-quality care, suppott, and housing, and to our inves:ors who enable the provision of over 4,500 quahy

homes for some of the most vulnerakble people in society.

Overview of Results

CSH 15 *he market leader in the delivery of much-needed long-term housing with care i the UK and leading the charge
for ethical investment 1n the sector. These full year resulis show a number of key achievements and themes:

e Approaching six vears of consisten: rental growth and e
progressive dividend payments that have increased
from an inizial 3p per share 10 555p per share
reflecting dividend growth ahead of inflation. .
¢ Rentsindexed im-line with the Consumer Price Index
as Approved Providers are able to claim inflation
adiustment payments from local authorizies, and with -
no disruption from COVID-19.
e A high-quality investrmenst credit rating from Fitch
Raungs of A secured and A- unsecured, that has been .
mainamed over 1me.
e esign, negotiation and announcemens: of a new
market leading regulatory clause, :0 be implemented
over Ime on a retrospective basis, assisung
Approved Providers in regulatory discussions with no
dirmination to lease or asset values.

An actively managed porifolio with a sector-leading
team of professionals assisung and enabling high
gualhiy and jongevity of homes and income.
Professional support to enable Approved Providers to
enhance the quality of their delivery and demons:rate
long-rerm finanaal and operatonal independence.
Ownership of properties that facilitaies the dehivery
of high levels of care with 40% of residents receiving
over 50 hours of care per week.

An actve programme working with E.0ON o
permanen:ly reduce carbon emissions across the
portfolio leading to lower energy cos:s for residents
and a more carbon neutral por:folio.

207 SLNNODDY (INV LHOddH
OId DNISNOH TVIDOS SYLIALD
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Investment Adviser’s Report continued

Market Commentary

As outhined 1n the Chairman's Statemen:, CIM 15 pleased
to note that the sector has continued to see progress in
terms of the bertter delivery of the Specialist Supporied
=ousing {SSE) model with quality comrrussioning at the
hear of projects. This 15 essential to ensure that each
property is sultable for the needs of individuals and o
meet the objectives se: by the relevant local authority.

Having dedicated considerable CIM resource ‘o working
clogely with the Company's Approved Providers we
have seen conunued progress 1n the qualhity of their
perfarmance which has translated inito greatly improved
financial resul:s and governance.

Several Approved ?roviders who had previously stopped
taking on new properties to focus on sirengthening their
own teams and sysiems have now begun o consider
new opportdmtes in a disciplined manner, consisten:
with the objecuive of further performance enhancemen:.

At the same ume 12 is fair to say that Approved Providers
have moved at differen: paces and while some have
seen rapid success, others sull need 10 make farther
operauonal and financial improvements. CMis
supportive of these ambittons and having seen maenal
improvements in the sector, rermains focused on
offering 1ts assistance 1o drive forward srandards for the
Company's partners.

Wha s clear s that demand for quality
commuanity-based housing remains sirong and mos:
commentators believe rha: providing vulnerable people
with an opporunity o live in thetr own home orin
smaller facilities near o famuly 1s the best solution

for them.

While working closely with Approved Providers

and specialist care providers, C2M has conunued =0
foccous on the core fundamentals of ensurning tha: the
por:fohio operaies at 11s very best for ing:ance ensuring
comphance for all key property metrics and collecung
rental incomse tha s due

The year saw modes: addiions o the porifolio of around
£37 million 1n new properues including the provision

of a number of proper:ies for those seeking asylum.

The proper:ies are backed Ly long-:erm governmen:

contracts with counterpariies that have sirong covenan:s

At he same ime, the Company continues 1o develop
and implemen: high szandards of socal impacs.
which 15 independen:ly measured, as well as forqing
leading relationships with key chantes and other
sector bodies The commimen: to ‘ackle ‘he challenge
of decarbonisation conunues with “he further
implemen:aton of the property rerofl: programme.

Background

The sector in which the Company operates is substannally
funded by the State as part of the Jong-standing
commitment 1o provide suppor: for vulnerable adul's.

The UX 15 not alone 1n this approach and indeed the
United Nations developed polices that have been adopted
by the UX, the kurgpean Union and 183 Stares in “0tal that
provide a framework for the provision of this support. The
‘Conventton on the Bights of 2ersons with Disabiltties” was
signed by the then LK Government in 2007 and enacted
mto law in 2008

The Convention sets out broad nghrs for those considered
disabled in Article =

“To promore, prosect and ensure full and equal enjoymen:
of all uman nghts and fundamenzal freedoms by all
persons wrh disabilizies and ‘o promote respec: for their
mherent digniy.”

Article 19 specifically covers housing. including the rights
0 live mdependently and be included in the communizy.
Arcle 20 refers o personal moblizy. Article 26 o
hathtation and rehabilizanion, and Articles 29 and 30 to
the right 2o participate in political and pubhc life, cultural
Iife, recreanon and sporis.

Specalist Supported Housing of the type provided by

‘he Company 1s designed 10 fulfill these objectives and
predates the implementanion of the UN Conventorn. The
regaremen: 10 provide suppor: for vulnerable people
was further enshnned into UK law by the Care Act 20°4
which confirms the responsibility of authonsies o provide
approprate support and care. There ig telling tesumony in
‘he publication ‘A 2lace for Me {Sponsocred by C5= and the
Namonal Care Group), highhighzed lazer in this repors, on
he ransformartional effect 8= has upon people’s lives.

‘n terms of current legislanon, the Health and Care 3ill was
granted Rovyal Assen: in Apnl 2022, further consolidates
~he rends of jioining up N=S$ healthcare services with
social care through the formaton of ‘ntegrazed Care
Syszems {.CSs). This 1s supporive of the forms of care and
community housing delivered by the Company.



Investment Adviser’s Report continued

Government Policy

The newly combined Government Department

for Levelling Up. Housing and Commurnitigs, is a
demonstration of how vizal *he Government believes
decent housing 15 to s central levelling up agenda.
indeed, the L.evelling Up white paper, published in
Fehruary 2022, makes clear that the provision of ingh
quality, affordable housing 15 a major Government priorty.

Civitas was founded in the belief tha: privaze capizal,
thoughtfully and responsibly inves:ed, 1s a key element

to this provision, especially in the area of the Speciahs:
Suppored Dousing Sector in which ClM specialises.

This 18 bacause the large Housing Associations consider
themselves poorly suited :0 delivening these bespoke and
adapted properies. which are often located on brownfield
land wrthin communities, whereas the larger Housing
Associations tend o focus on multu-unts, uniform new
developments. Civitas, therefore, fulfils a need for which
there 15 a clear market gap and a huge and growing
demand.

In addition. the last few years have seen a renewed focus
from the 2SE on the requirement o hisien carefully to
residents’ voices and take their views and needs into
account. This 15 something in which Civizas already
excels: CIM has close and proaciave relationships with
our Approved Provider and Care partners, and. through
‘hem, with the residents themselves. Evidence for this
can be seen in the high levels of satisfaction amongs: our
residents: the high levels of health and safety comphance
and rent collection; and the 1ow levels of COVID-8
throughout the pandemic.

Demand for Social Housing

In September 2020 the Naticnal Housing Federation
astimated that there were 8 million people in some
form of housing need. that 1.6 million households were
on official warzing lists and there were at leas: 129,000
children living 1n temporary accommaodarion.

Supply for new affordable housing is very low and
significantly lower than demand. In addinion, supply

is further constraimned by the demands placed upon
exising large developing housing providers in meeting
the costs generated by fire safety measures post Grenfell,
remediation of cladding, the cost of reducing carbon
ermissions and addinional consumer regulation proposed
in the White Paper on social housing "A charter for social
housing residents”.

When it comes o Specialist Suppor:ed Housing, the
long-standing and ongoing rise in working age adults
with complex physical, mental and socal care needs,
requiring supported housing with care, means that the
demand for high quality SSH of the sort provided by
Civitas is expected ¢ coninue to grow.

Summary & Outlook

Civiias 1s the leading independent operator in a sector 1
which there 1s enormeus and growing demand and, due
10 the highly specialised natire of the work being carned
out, high barners o enry. Civiias 1s acknowledged o be
commitied to providing safe. high quality homes with
care for its residents. with active and granular day o day
portfolioc management being carried cut by 11s large team
of sector specialisis. In addiuon, we are working with

the relevan: counterparies o mntroduce new contractual
provisions which we believe will betier posiion our
Approved Provider pariners to achiteve compliance under
the RSH's Governance and Financial Viability Standard.

We are continuing ‘o evaluate further por:folio
acquisiuons, not only mn our core competency but also in
areas such as high gqualizy housing wi:h care for agylum
seekers and those affected by homelessness.

We remain commitied o generaiung grow:h and
enhancing shareholder value through socially irnpactful
ethical investing. We are passionazely commited to this
for the long “erm.
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Investment Adviser’s Report continued

Specialist Housing

All leading independent commentators agree that
demand continues o rise for communty-based housing
{(Mencap Annual Repor: 2022, This 1s driven by the
general nse in the peopualation, betier barth outcomes and
improved life expectancy. i turn sumulated by more
communlily-based housing of the ype the Company
provides. Trends in menral health also coninbute 10
demand. According *o the Royal College of Psychiairnsts
referrals 10 mental health services have risen 1o an
all-ume high of 4.3 million people durnng 2022,

raingBuisson, a large healthcare consultancy, in s
Adult Speciahs: Care Report 5th edinon published in
January 2022 esumates that in the learning digabilizy
marke: for care 1in the community, over 90% of providers
come from the independent secior ror specific mental
health services this nses o 97% and reflecis the fact tha:
over the pas: 30 vears almost all specialist care has come
o be provided by the private sector and paid for by the
Staze, whereas 1t was previously provided by the NES.

Whats also clear 1s that the principal of communty-
based housing 1s being exended 0 groups with other
care needs, beyond mental health 1ssues. This trend was
reinforced by the Homelessness Reduciion Act of 2017
which placed a statutory duty upon laocal awhorines 10
find homes for those at nsk of senous harm caused by
homelessness.

prior to the pandemic. the leading homeless charity
and campaign group Crisis estimased the cost of sirees
homelessness 10 the Siate was over £20,000 per person
per year, no: including social losses and losses 0 the
5736 IN 18X reverlde.

Az the siar: of she pandemic, the ‘zveryone i campaign
ensured over 37,000 people sleeping rough were
housged in temporary accommodanon, mosty hotels.
The challenge “ha: now remains 1s how 0 ensure

‘hose people are permanern:ly housed with the suppor:
required 0 overcome ofien complex needs. Thig 1s the
purpose of 3arnet’s momelegsnegs Scheme suppored by
CSE which will ensure a secure and stable home with
eXIensive suppor.

The clear advantages are the same as housing for
disabled groups: beter soclal cutcomes within a
commuanity getung and reduced cosis 1o the :axpayer.

Financial Review

Asg at 3! March 2022 the (£'RS ne: asset value of the
Company was £675.5 milhon, being .0.30 pence per
share, a ..85% increase on the 108.30 pence per share

at 31 March 2021 A net fair value gain on invesiment
proper:ies of £12.3 million 2022: £55 rmillhion) was recorded
1 the year. Operauaonal cash flows of £37.5 million were
an increase on the prior year.

The por:foho was independently valued on an

mdividual [TRS agset basis by JLL at £968.8 mithon as at

31 March 2022 (2027 £9.5.6 million} reflecung & net inual
yield of 5.28%. This compares 1o an average purchase
yield of 5 90% (prior to purchase costs) and reflects

‘he abilty of the Company o use s scale and market
position o buy well, ofien off-market, and generally avoid
taking part in auctions.

Net rental income of £50.7 million was generaied in the
penod. a 6% increase over the corresponding pertod
{3" March 2021 £47 8 mallion). This increase has been
generated as a resul; of on-track indexauon of rents, the
effect of rental income on properties purchaged in the
prnor period betng included for the full mwelve months
and a small number of new investments in the penod.
strong ongoing rental collections throughout the year
suppar:ed the Company's healthy operating cash flows.

Dunng the reporiing period, the Company paid four
dividend chsinibutions including one dividend of
*.350p and hree instalments of 1 3875p each dunng the
pericd, fully in ine with the disiribunon targe: of 555p
anncounced for the year to 3. March 20272,

The Company also exiended *he mamurity of 1s

£.00m loan faciity with #83C 3ank plc 1o November 2023
a: SONA plus 2.02% margin. Since the year end. the
F60mM facihty with Lloyds 3ank plc has also been
extended o July 2024, a: SON A plus 1.67% margin
Together, these financings continue o underpin the
srrong hguduy posiion of the Company. The Company
has alse mamntained leverage at 34.43%, comforably
within the Company's self1imposed cap of 40% of

-o7al assets. rinally of note, the Company retained 178
premuam Trich rating from the prior year at A’ secured
and "A-" unsecured.



Investment Adviser’s Report continued

£
i
[~}
A
5

The CSH Investment Portfolio — Overview

The Civitas portfolio 15 one of the largest S84 porfolios in the UX and is diverse geographically, in property size. type

of care and with muluple counterparties. The overall objective 15 10 have a high-quality porifolio providing long-term
accommodation and swable retarns All CIV's work wiath care providers and Approved Providers is collaborauve, and part of
CIM’'s commitmen: to 1mprove the sector and assist 18 parners in becoming more independent.

Portfolio
Larges: private porifolio in the country.

BN 7N
,/"\\23;} dﬁ 25 a\(ﬁ? H
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High acuity with 40% of 130 care providers 18 approved 178 local authority
residents living in Civitas providers partners
properties receiving over
50 hours of care per week

Team
Established team of specialists across the country.

‘Senior staff frommi the |

core indory |} Howsing Benett

Activities
Key acuvites comprise of future proofing. optimising quality for care providers, ensuring Approved Providers benefit from
economues of scale, and introducuon of the new Regulatory clause.

_ g : ! Future proofing ~Jf  on governance
- iesdy of care : ; L . B “properties
providers i - '

Outcomes
3enefiss derived from the comhbimation of portfolio. team and acavites.

| Bents collected and _
hitexation secured

| improvementsin |
- guality

Zach year a small number of bulldings require furure proofing where the Company and C2M 1dentify adapnons that
are required, or in a few instances a change of use, that will ensure longevity of occipation and tha: optimal residen:
sansfaction 1s maintained
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Investment Adviser’s Report continued

The Portfolio — Rent Roll

The annualsed ren: roll as at 31 March 2022 increased to
£54. million frorn £50.8 milhon i March 2021 and this s
expected 1o increase further as additional indexaton is
applied (refer toc chart on page 3).

Ren:al income is generated from leases with
i8 Approved Providers (refer »o page 9 for further detaus)

Typically, properties are located close to local commuunity-
based facilities 0 support tenanss, farmhes and staff with
minimnal travel requirements

Portfolio Characteristics

The key features of the CSH portfolio can be summarnsed
as follows:

+ Propenies are fully converted and specially adapted
for care use

e igh acunty with 40% of residenis living 1in Civitas
properies recewving over 50 hours of care per week

e Median rents rested/compared against market
equivalent

e Properies always well locazed within *he community
and with commissioner support

s Over one thurd of the portfolie on back-to-back 25-year
leases with care providers mirroring the obligations in
the lease 10 Approved Providers
Anown frons door pohcy

¢ COver one third of properties bough: when new,
without developmens: or forward funding risk

The high qualiry of C8H portfolio reflects the Company's
abllity w0 source off-market transactions through 1is
ex:ensive newwork of care provider relazionships, with the
aim of achieving value growth over ume.

Regulation

‘n Ociober 2027 the Regulator of Socialt Housing published

vs annaal secor risk profile, which seeks to set our 1's view

on the sources of nsk <o providers ongoing comphance

with regulatory standards. The keys areas it highlights for

‘he whole sector are:

e ncreased scruiiny as set out in the Social =ousing
White Paper

e . ncreased cosgts assoclated with fire remedianon pos:t
Grenfell Tower and meeung he demands of the “ire
Safery Act 2027

e The cost of meelung the rero-carbon agenda

e ncreased deb: required to subsidise improvemenss o
exizang srock

CSH always welcomes the engagement of the RSE with
our Approved Provider counterparies and we suppott the
work the R5H has undertaken 1n making recommendanons
for improvements 1n the sector over the pas: five years.
The RSH conbnhues 0 engage with all Approved Providers
including those with which Civitas works,

Sinice the last report, the RSH 1s now engaging with nine of
the Company's Approved “roviders, set out below:

Approved Provider __ _Grading Typeofpublicaton Route
Ayckand Home N/A Reguiatery Reactive
So.ations judgemen: engagement
Bespoke Supportive N/A Reguialory Reactive
Tenancies Judgement  engagement
Encirele Housing N/A Reguaiatory Reaciive

Judgement engagemen:
Fa'con Housing N/A Regu.atory Reactive

Agsociation

Judgement endagement
/A Regu.aory

Hi_da'e [Housing Reactive
Associalion Jadgemen:  engagement
Inc. usion Hleusing G3/7V3 Regulatory iDA and
udgement reaciive

engagemen’

My Space Housing  G3/V3 Regu.atory Reactive
Soiations ‘adgemen:  engagement
Pivora’ Housing N/A Regulatory Reaciive
Association Judgemean: cngagemenst
Trinity Housing G3/VE Regu.laory Reactive
Association sudgement  engagemen.
Wesimoreland G4 /73 Regailaory Reactive
Sapported Hoasing sddgemen:  engagement

“z1s clear that ¢he R3= will, rightly. publish information as
o0 the improvements i+ wishes 10 see and whenever his
occurs C55 will pravide suppor: 10 1's pariners

as approprnate.

Through C.M, C8= has been a: the forefron: of
addressing the 8='s concerns abou: the long-term

risk planmng of Approved 2roviders by pioneenng the
implemen:ation of the force majeure clause and caps
and collars on the indexanon of rents of berween "%
and 4%. We will conamnie o work with the Company's
counterpar:es and the 5= 10 ensure tha: the Company
fulfills 12 inzentions as one of the larges: owners of S8=
N the countty 0 enakle *he sector 10 evolve and "o
maln:ain the mmprovemen:'s already made.
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New Regulatory Clause

During 2027 and 2022. CIM has engaged with relevan:
counterpar:ies. including several shareholders of CSH,
lending banks, valuers and the RS= and underiaken
detailed negouations with several Zousing Asscciation
parners. 0 explore how the Company can assist

those organisations to be betier positinner 10 achieve
regulatory compliance under the R8='s Governance and
Finanoal Viability Standard

{the “Standard”).

The consensus result of these discussions and
negotiations 1s the developmens: of an approach with a
new draft reqularory clause whose principal objectives
are o enable Housing Associations to:

e achieve greater alignment between mcome receips
and lease liabiliries

e set achievable capital solvency requiremer::s against
iease chligations

¢ demonsirate a further degree of nsk shanng

Each with the obiective of seeking to demonsirate
compliance with the Siandard (expressed as
gradings V! - V4 and G. - G4).

Meanwhile, the draft regulatery clause will provide the
Company with:

e counterparties better able 1o achieve regulatory
comphiance

e enhanced information and step in rights (having
regard to enant weifare) in addihon to exisung iease
transfer and assignment rights

¢ unchanged lease and propery values suppor:ed by
s:rong underlying demand

The draft clause once enacied will operate on a property-
by-proper:y basis to provide for a temporary pass through
of lease rent in certain limed circums:ances when the
Housing Association is niot in receip: of full paymeri:
whilst at the same ume ensuring tha: the Company does
no: hecome responsible for obligations tha: are nghily
owed by others such as void cover by care providers.
Fuarthermore, this applies only after an initial pencd of time
dunng which all ren's remain the regponsibility of the
Vendor/Housing Association and then only if paving the
ren: in full would cause the Housing Association o fail to
meet the Regulator's standards.

The draft clause also contains provision for the
reimbursement of rental income 1if that1s subsequently
recovered by the Housing Association.

‘mplementation of the clause will codify much of the
general asse: management work and the Company's
approach 1o sector collaborasien tha: already takes place
on a day-to-day basis and 1s reflected in the Company's
existing ren: roll bu: which has o date no: been included
within the terms of the Company's leases and sc have
no: receved formal recognition. [t 1s anticipated thas

the clause will only be relevant *o a smali number of
properties at any time and will not have any matenal
impact on the Company's rent roll.

The Company has sought and obtained formal written
confirmation from valuers tha: the inclusion of the clause
within the Company's new and exisung leases will not of
1tself Cause 4 diminuion in the value of those leases or in
+he underlying assets. Indeed, the Company considers that
enhanced reguiatory alignment would be consisten: with
asset appreciauon over the medium term.

At “he present time the clause is in draft form and is
subject to further discussion and refinemen: with several
Housing Association boards assisied by leading sector
lawvyers sogether with other relevan: approvals.

1s intended thas the ¢lause will be incorporazed
musially into a hmited number of exising leaseson a
retrospective basis commencing with properties thar are
unencumbered.

On the assumption that it 15 well recerved by relevant
parties within the sector and has the potential to achieve
-he objectives ser out above 12 will be further rolled out
n a controlled manner over time ¢ other Approved
Providers and in regpect of new and exisung leases on

a retrospective basis. The Company will provide further
updates in due course once the final form of the clause
has been settled.

Social Impact and Social Value

The Company's latest independen: report from The Good
Ceonomy was pablished 1t June 2022 and provides details
ot CSi's portfolio and the contunued success in delivering
measurable socal impact. Findings include:

e 77 properues, housing ap 10 297 people. have been added
to the CSH porttolic witkin the pericd

e 21% of CSH's 69€ properties have been braugh: mwo the
social housing sector for the first ume

e CSH's regular engagement with its Approved Providers
{R?s) 1o menior the quahty of its stock contunued through
the COV' 2 19 pandemic

e improvemeni works have enhanced the energy efficiency
of homes. witk 99.92% of homes having an EPC rauing of at
least 5+

e CSH homes coninue to serve valnerable mdwviduals and
play a significan: role in improving resident wellbemg.
particularly when individuals are corming out of higher
acuny faciliies

e Social value analysis (March 2021) revealed ‘hat. overall.
the pordaho generates £27 rullion of social value
per year, including fiscal savings (o pablic badge:s of
£755 rullion per year

e 87% of respondents o the resident survey 1in March 2027
reported that they were sausfied with the qualiy of their
home. 8% reported tta: they were neither satisfied nor
dissaushed

» 9% staiutory compliance rate by housing provider
partrers 15 better than the wider affordable housing sector
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Investment Adviser’s Report continued

Environmental, Social and
Governance {ESG)

The ESG Policy is located on the Company's website.
It provides an overview of the Company's investment
procedures and sets out the Board's commitment to a
continuous improvement process in its approach to
ESG integration.

ESG Rating Providers

As part of this commitment, CIM engages with ESG rarning
providers 10 set out the activities that are undertaken by
C5H and to ensure this is profiled correctly. This includes
increased disclosure by CIM in respect of varicus policies
that have been promoted on the CIM website. Notably,
active participation in the 2021 GRESB Public Disclosure
Assessment has resulted in C8H achieving an A score
which is an improvement from a B score in 2020, whilst
& peer group average score remains at C. GRESB is an
investor-driven global ESG framework. Meanwhile, the ESG
Risk Rating Score for CSH by Sustainalytics of 16.6 {Low Risk)
is marginally lower than was reported in March 2021
Sustainalytics measures how well companies manage ESG
issues that are most material to their business.

Environmental: Carbon Reduction/
Energy Cost Savings

CIM has been leading the sector in improving the
environmental performance of the portfolio and is working
with E.ON (a ieading UK energy and solutions company)
under a national framework agreement in partnership
with C5H tenants. The ‘fabric first’ approach 1o reducing
the portolio's carbon footprint includes the installation

of cavity wall insulation, loft insulation, external wali
insulation. air g2ource heat pumps and solar PV and batiery
storage to identified properties. The installation of these
energy efficient measures, utilising available Government
grants and other funding sources. maximise vaiue for the
Company and for our counterparties. The collaboration
with E.ON is delivering significant environimentail

enhancements without any cost 1o our Apnroved Providers.

As a result of active asset management and properiy
improvements works, renovations and scheduled post
completion works. the overali energy performance of the
portiolio. as identified on Environmental Performance
Certificates (EPC) reports data has improved over the last
twelve monihs. The proportion of properties with EPC
Rating A-C has remained at ¢.52% (82% in March 2021) and
carbon lootprint (esiimated from property characteristics)
has reduced by 3% per Civitas renancy (from 273 tonnes
of CO2ftenancy 10 2.65 tonnes of CO2/tenancy). The static
year-on-year proporton of homes rated A-C was due 10
the acquisition of a significant number of properties which
were acquired with D rating. These homes are subject 1o
improvement works which should improve their energy
performance in coming months.

Charities

The Company has supporned and worked with the
following Charities since PO,

Crisis

Cijvitas has supported Britain's biggest homelessness
charity over the past five years and the two organisations
regularly collaborate on the emerging knowledge required
to undertake advanced homelessness schemes, These

are vital 1o enable people who have been at risk of or
experienced homelessness to rebuild their lives but who

require considerable care and suppon in addition to a safe
home in the community.

Choir With No Name

Civitas is proud to support this charity that runs five

choits across the country for people who are homeless

o1 marginalised. Rehearsals have been moved back
indoors {ollowing the pandemic lockdown, and members,
volunieers and staff are reported to be over the moont
Alongside the choirs, the charity runs a free online
workshop io members, the wider homeless sector and
anyone who wanis to attend. The charity has also provided
team-building events for ihe CIM team.

Impact Highlights 2021-22

e Big increase in average weekly attendance since return
10 indoor meetings post COVID-13

o New Cardiff Choir launched in November 2021

e Steady progress with establishment of new community
choirs in Watford and Coveniry

House of St Barnabas

A social enterprise and charity that works 10 support
people affected by homelessness back into long-term
employment. [ts vigion is of a future where lasting

good work, & secure home and supportive network are

a reality for those affecied by homelessness. Civitas
specifically supports the relationship-based mentoring
programimne focused on developing interpersonal skills and
communication.

This helps to underpin its mission of ‘Good Work, Good
Home' for all its graduates. The Employment Academy swaff
at House of 8§t Barnabas work with victims of homelessness
who have successfully completed the employmen:
preparation programme into work and helps rthem to
progress in work.

Impact Highlights 2021-22
Employment Preparation Programme:

e 17 paricipants successfully graduated from EPP 18
and EPP 19

e 100% of graduates were successfully maiched with
a mentor

Employment and Progression:

& 33% of working graduates are earning
London Living Wage

o 23% of working graduates are in good woik and a
good home

* 70% of mentor relationships with graduates last for at
least 6 months

¢ HOSB has supported a total of 93 people over the year
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Women in Social Housing (WISH)

WISH promotes the benefits of being part of a networking
community and equips its members to succeed, advance
and flourish in the UK housing sector. Civitas support
contributes to the champiconing of positive outcomes for
women working in the sector.

Care Workers Charity

CWC recognises that care workers face everyday
challenges such as loss of income, inconsistent hours, and
lack of adequate resources. [t helps cate workers in the
UK {c.2 million workforce) through crisis using financial
support and support cenires. CWC provides support
thyough one-off crisis grants, COVID-19 Emergency Fund
and a Mental Health Support Programme.

Little Sprouts

Little Sprouts promaotes the health and wellbeing of
communities through delivery of targeted cooking and
food education workshops, surplus food collection,

and other activities. The charity places a particular

focus on supporting deprived communities where the
socio-economic position - housing, empioyment, or
education — has had a massive contributory effect on
well-being and health. It has also provided meals for those
with mental heaith issues affected by the pandemic.

‘A Place For Me’

The Company has from its inception been very keen to
understand how residents living and moving into homes
owned by Civitas benefit from their environment, the
quality of care they received, what benetits they and their
family derive and how society and the taxpayer benefits.

We have rigorously challenged ourselves to ensure the
social impact of the Company is maximised and measured
independently through the Good Economy and Social
Profit Calculator.

We worked with a journalist and photographer who
published a book A Flace For Me' which tells the stories of
50 residents whe live in Civitas properties. The interviews
were carried out on site and in person and have also
involved families, care workers and other stakeholders.
The book was published in Pecember 2021. and we believe
itis the largest independent project ever carried out into
the lives of those with learning disabilities and mental
health issues. The bock is co-sponsored by a major care
provider.

Governance

CIM continues 10 engage actively with the Company's
Approved Provider partners and care providers, providing
advice and shared learning. This has helped o facilitate
continued high level operational performance on
occupancy rates. property compliance matters, and health
and safety.

The Board carries cut an annual Board performance
avaluation exercise. All of the Company’s policies and
procedures have been reviewed and. where appropriate,
updated.

The Board has five independent non-executive Directors
and has commenced a recruitment programime to recruit
a sixth director with asser management skills 1o reflect the
scale of the portfolic. the growth of expertise within the
Investment Adviser and to assist with succession planning
in the future. Both skills and diversity will be important
considerations with this recruitment.

Summary

Care for the vulnerable being delivered in homes or

small residential settings in the community 10 promote
independent living and better social cutcomes is clearly
the long term focus of Government policy in this sector
with considerabie cross-party support. In this objactive,
the private sector, both in terms of service delivery and
investment, has a pivetal and essential role to play. Civitas
i3 at the forefront of this invesiment and brings the skills
and experience required to further expand the delivery of
this critical service and to be influential in enhancing the
development of sector counterparties.

We remain committed to generating growth and
enhancing shareholder value through socially impactful
ethical investing. We are passionately committed to
ensuring this is maintained for the long term.

Civitas Investment Management
Limited

Investment Adviser

29 June 2022
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Civitas Investment Management

A Growing Team of Specialists

Throughout the pandemic, CIM has continued an active recruitment programme aimed at increasing the levels of
resource and expertise within the team. Of particular focus has been the dedicated Asset Management tearm which
is charged with maintaining the quality of the CSH porifolic and working closely with Approved Providers and other
sector entines including care providers.

Juring the year to March 2022 a number of semior recraris have joined the team. The Asset Managemen: team is led
by Tom Falconer, a former local authonty 85= commissioning officer. This has been par? of a broader recrurtment
programme. Selected profiles are set out below:

Asset Management

Matthew Filkin, Investment Advisory Director
Zreviously COO at Almacantar (Property investmen: and develepment company)

Matt has over 20 years of real estate experience covering investmen:, development, finance
and corporate matters. A1 CIM, he has an active day-to-day involvement in the operations
of the existing investment stra‘eqies working closely with the asse: managemen: team o
provide a broad real estate overview. He 15 also engaged with a number of specific asge:

managemen: projects.

Tom Falconer, Head of Asset Management
Ireviously Group Property Manager at Lifeways (leading U¥X speciahs: care provider)

Tom is a former local authorny commissioner with over 12 years experience 1 asset
manacgemern: specialis: housing delivery. iogether wich health and sacidl care integration

authonues and housing assoclations supporing them in their requirenient 1o meer the demand

across the UL A CIM, Tom leads the asset management eam, warking closely with local ‘

for 35= and residen:al care accommuodation.

.

\

Portfolio Management

Sean Corney, Director, Asset Management

Previcusly an executve wrthin Savills’ Asset Management Team

Sean 12 a specialistin *he delivery of asset management with over 20 years' experience within
the property industry, including suppored hving and care environmen:s, He 1s an Associate of
the Royal ‘nsutuze of Charered Surveyors {R.C5} and a memkber of the ‘ns:itution of Residenual
Property Management (IRPM). At CIM as par: of the asse! management ‘eam he is responsible for
the oversight of capital works that supporns the enhancement of the Company's portfolio.

Connell Grogan, Senior Portfolio Manager

Previously Senior Porfelio Vanager at Resonance Lid {leading specialist impact Invesor)

Connell 1s a Charered Surveyor and expenenced senior porifcho manager with over

20 vears experience In real estate. =e has worked previously with a leading impac: fand
manager with a focus on homelessness and specialis: suppored housing. A1 C™V, Connell
works withun the asse’ managemen: team focusing on delivering enhancemen:s o the
proper:y porzfoliog




Civitas Investment Management continued

Charles Reid, Partnership Officer

Previously Lead Housmg Benefi: Officer a: London Borough of Southwark Counci

Charles 1s a housing benefit specialist with a 30-year track record in assessing housing benefit
claims and appeals across many of the largest London local authorities. Ar C.M, he works
within the asset managemen: team to assist property due diligence and 1o suppor: the work
of Approved 2rovider partners in determining housing benefit claims and setting appropriate
rent levels.

Daryl Quarry, Senior Portfolio Manager

Previcusly Head of Change & Transformation at falcon =ousing Associazion C._.C.

Daryl has worked within the social housing sector for over 26 years in business developmen: and
change management. Daryl works collaboratively with the asse: management ieam 10 suppor:
Approved Providers in implemenung software and developing tnternal processes 1o coninbu'e 1o
achweving opumal performance as part of increased independence.

Finance and Operations

Dipesh Devchand, Group CFO

Previously Managing “irector, Head of “und lNnance & Operations for 2CG plc
{(-TSE 100 histed alternarive asset manager)

Dipesh has over 20 years' experience 1n finance at a seruor strategic level within a financial
services and investmen: managemens: environmen-. At CIM Dipesh leads the finance function,
working closely with CM's founders and sharehelder partners to deliver the strategic mission
of the group. e brings a wealth of expenence covering financing, regulatory reporting,
taxa:lon and operasional matiers.

Siu-Wai Ng, Commercial Director
Previously Parmer, Global Head of 2roduct Development at BlueBay Asse: Management

Stu-Wal has over 20 yvears of expenence 1in the investmens: managemen: indus:ry, bringing
products 1o marke: and building business platforms in both public and private asset classes.
At CIM, she is the Commercial Director with her remi: encompassing all aspec:s relaung to
the implemennung and administenng of new fund launches, assisung 1in the design of new
commercial sTrategies.

Nazlin Nazri, Associate Director
Previously Head of Financing eporiing a: Tntax Group
Nazlin has over fif:een years of expernence in real esta‘e finance, including financial reporting

under various GAAPs, financial managemen:, group consohidation and fund accounang. At
CiM, she works within the finance team as an associate director on Civitas Socilal Housing 21.C.
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Asset Management Case Studies

-As part of the ongeing active management of the CSH poni_oﬁo. CIM has developed an extensive asset management
resource that covers all the key disciplines that are apparemnt within specialist supported housing and the residential
care sectors.

Capital works are undertaken on a rolling basis with much of the work being undertaken around the time of initial
acquisition and paid for by the original vendors as pan of the purchase agreement. This ensures that appropriate
adaptations are made to deliver a bespoke propeny that is suitable for the user's needs over the long term. Capital
works are also undertaken, from time to time, during the life of the property, with some or ali of the costs being borne by

- (SH, where it is deemed appropriate to undertake improvement works orrepositioning of the asset. In some cases this
~ also leads to an inmediate upliﬂ in rent-roll and a commensurate increase in ‘capital values; :

Set out bielow are a number of examples of projects that h:_w_e been um_ie‘rta_kén.

Mill Lane, Weeley Heath, Clacton-on-Sea (5 beds)

Successful transformanen project to suppor: house tenan's with challenging behawniours. The property required
enhancements relaing o energy efficiency, improved security, carefully constructed we: rooms, spectalist furnizure

and redesigned layouts to assist the care provider in supporting the new tenants. This asset was acaquired as part of a
wider porifolio; plans were already in place with the care provider and local authorizy commissioner to underiake minor
configuration works with some notwable enhancements given tha: 1z was a much needed service in the local authorny
area. The care provider coninbuted ¢ the overall cost of the works “o demonstrate the long term commitment to the
Service.

mnhancements within the asset are highhghted below, and notably the energy performance improved from an = ratung 1o
a 3 raung for the purpose in which “he asse: is being used for C2 requirements.

New suitable furniture
throughout

New wet rooms and a
specialist spa bath

EPC rating from
anEtoaB

o e 7 CE o New boiler and
ST e . ) o heating system

New stud walls
and insulation

Communal lounge

Staff and
security office

New kitchens

New flooring and
decoration throughout Communal dining area and sensory room



Asset Management Case Studies continued

Delrose House, Southampton (9 beds)

The care provider approached C5H seeking permission to undertake a
refurbishmen: program within specific areas of the property. [ts plan was 0
move tenants from one type of care service to another for leng-term

full occupancy.

The works were approved by C8H and paid for in full by the care provider.
These included general redecoration and replacement floonng to enhance
appearance, works to the lift o permit disabied access, refurbishmen: of wet
rooms and replacement: kitchens to be suttable for use by the tenants.

| internat disabled access lift. ‘New flooring and access

control system.

Redecoration

New flooring in the majonty of the
rooms and communal space
Communal bathroom
refurbishment

New kirchen, repairs to subfloor,
new flooring

Repalrng and replacing subfloors
m certain bathrooms

I-‘u:lly. accessible bathroom
refurbished to doc M

building regulations

Heathfield Apartments, Swansea (15 beds)

The property is situated close 1o the centre of Swansea. overlooking the city
centre towards the harbour. Given the ¢lose proximity to the city centre it
provides easy access for staff, tenants and family members.

Followtng the acquistticn of this asset in 2019 an overhaul of the extenior was
planned o enhance the external appeararnce and make some minor repairs.
including the rendering and decoration. The mitial s:ages of works were
covered by the vendor, with the care provider enhancing some cof the internal
parts of the building as part of a planned internal refurbishment.

CIM on behalf of CSH completed a review of the works and undertock some
further enhancements to key areas of the hugher elevations of the buiiding with

the aim of futureproofing areas of the rocf, rendering, windows and decoration.

This should prevent disruption at the property in the upcoming years.

CSH provided some additional investrnent into the asse: as par: of the wider
scope of works to allow the additional enhancements ¢ happen and deliver
an asse! of a higher standard to the care provider and tenants. This 1s a prime
exampile of positive collaborative working to achieve a desired outcome.

External overhaul and
refurbishmen:

New windows and doors installed
Rendenng replaced and
redecorated

Roof upgraded whilst scaffolding
in place

New ramp fiited externally for an
additional fire escape route
Redecoration to internal areas
affected by proppmng equipment
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Sustainability

The business model of the Company 1s 10 provide long-
+erm suitable harmes for individuals with care needs;
acting 10 a sustainable manner 1s key 1o achieving

this aim. Properies that are owned by the Company
are tailored to mee: the future needs of the tenan:s
and. where required, are aciively asset managed

0 provide long-term funcuonality and value o the
wWider Commuamnty

Environment

2unng the investment due dihgence phase, the Company
looks closely at the environmental impact of each
potensial acquisiion, and encourages a sus:ainable
approach for maintenance and upgrading properies.
Through collaboraung with speciaiist developers and
vendors, the high standards the Company expec:s from
each investmen: 1n the care-based housing secior is
adopted by other comparies in “he sector,

Once within the portfohio, the properties of the Company
are actavely managed, and the nvesiment Advisar
assesses whether there are opporwuuniies to improve the
environmen:al efficiency of the properties. in addition to
orher asset managemen: ininatves. Further detalls can
be found on pages 45 10 55.

The 3card has considered the requiremen:s o disciose
“he annaal guaniy of emissions; furher dezail on thisis
mciuded in the Reporr of the Directors on page 6.

Diversity

The Company does not have any employees or office
space and, as sich, the Company does no! operate a
drversity policy with regards o any adminisiratve and
managemen: funcions.

Whils: recognising the imporzance of diwversity in *he
Loardroom, the Company does no: consider iz to be

in the {neres: of the Group and 1:s shareholders o se:
prescniplive diversity crizeria or rargets. The 3oard has
adopted a dwersizy pohicy 1n regpect of appowniments

<0 be made o the Board and wnll conunue 1o montor
diversity. taking such steps as 12 considers appropriate
10 Maintan s posrien as a merisocratc and diverse
business, The 3nard’s objecuve 1s 10 mamn:ain effeciive
decision-making, including the impac: of succession
planning. All 3card appoinimen:s wili be made on mern:
and have regard o diversity regarding faciors such as
gender, ethnicity, skitls, background and expernience. See
Corporate Governance Stalemens on page &7

The Board comprises three male and two

female non-executive Directors. Throughoua: the year.
the Company comphed with the “ampton-Alexander
Review's target of a minimum 35% representation of
women on TTSE 350 boards.

The Board 1s aware of the recommendations of the
Parker Review, which will be taken into consideration as
par: of the Board's succession planning. See Corporate
Govearnance $tatemen: on page 67,

The 3oard of Direciors of the Company's subsidianes,
which are non-operational. each comprnse one female
and up ‘o four male Directors.

Human Rights

Given the Company's turnover for the year under review,
1t now falls within the scope of the Modern Slavery

Ac: 2075, The Company published iis modern slavery ‘
statement on 22 September 2021 |

The Board 18 satisfied *hat, 0 the bes: of 17s knowledge,
“he Company's principal advigers, which are ligted n
the Company information sec:ion, comply with the
provisions of the UX Modern Slavery Ac: 2015. !

The Company's business 1&g solely in the UX and therefore
18 considered o be low nsk with regards o human
righ:s abuses.

Community and Employees

The Company's properies enable the provision of care !
0 some of the most vulnerable pecple in the commuunty,

ensuring safe and secure accommodazsion, talored w

mee: individual care needs. The Company has increased

the prowvision of care-based housing, bringing new

suapply o the sector and providing homes o over 4,500

people. All of the Company's properies enable the

provision of high levels of care. generaung local jobs and
helping o suppor: local economes.

The Company has ne employees and accordingly no .
TECRAITETENn: 10 separately repor on this area.

The nvestment Adwviser is an equal oppormuniies
emgloyer who respec:s and seeks 10 empower each
individual and the diverse culiures, perspecnves, skills
and expertences withun 1.5 workforce,



Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement

Overview

The Dneclors’ vverarching duty is 1o act in good faith and
in a way tha* 1s most likely to promore the success of the
Company as se: out In secuon 172 of the Companies Act
2006. In doing so, Directors mus: take 1into consideration
the interests of the various stakeholders of the Company.
the impact the Company has on the community and the
envirGninens:, cake a long—term view Oon consequences

of *he decisions they make. as well as aim to mamtain a
reputation for high standards of business conduct and
fair treatmen: hetween the members of the Company.

FHfilhing rhs duty namrally supports the Company

in achieving its iInvestmen: objective and heips o
ensure that all decisions are made 1n a responsible and
sustainable way n accordance with the requiremen:s
of the Compames {(Miscellaneous Reportiing) Reqgulations
2018, the Company explains how the Directors have
discharged their duties under section 172 below.

To engare that the Directors are aware of, and
understand, their duues, they are provided with the
peranent information when they first join the Board

as well as receiving regular and ongoing updates and
training on the relevan: ma:sters. Inductuon and access

to training 18 provided for new Dhrectors. They also

have continued access to the advice and services of the
Company Secre:ary. and when deemed necessary, the
Directors can seek independen: professional advice. The
Schedule of Matters Raserved for the Board, as well as
the Terms of Reference of 1.3 committees, are reviewed
regularly and further describe Jirectors' responsibilines
and obligations and mmclude any s:atutory and regulatory
duues The Audit and Managemen: Engagement
Commitiee has the responsibility for the ongolng review
of the Company's risk managemen: systems and 1internal
controls and, o the exen: that they are applcable, risks
related to the matters set ou 1in section 172 are included
1 the Company's nsk register and are subject 10 pertodic
and regualar reviews and moniionng.

Long-term Success

The strategy of the Company ¢an be found on pages

34 to 37 Any deviaton from, or amendmens: to, that
strategy is subject 10 Board and. if necessary. shareholder
approval The Company's business medel, which can be
found on page 34, provides that the Board considers the
long-term consequences of 118 iInvestment decisions.

The Company gran:s long-term leases, generally 20 years
n length, o its tenants. The Company seeks to maintain
lastung relatlonships with 118 tenants and supports 1's
tenants in adapting properties to meet their needs,
partcularly improving and enhancing properues. Further
detalls can be found on pages 45 ¢ 55.

Stakeholders

A company's stakeholders are normally considered (o
comprise 18 shareholders, its employees, its cusiamers,
its suppliers as well as the wider community in which the
company operates and impacts The Company 15 different
i that as an mvestmen: trus: it has no employees and,

in terms of suppliers. the Company receives profassional
services from a number of differen: providers, principal
among them being the investment Adviser

Through regular engagemen: with its stakeholders,

the Board aims 10 gain a rounded and balanced
understanding of the impact of 1's decisions. Feedback
from stakeholders 1s gathered by the Investment Adviser
in the first instance and communicated to the Board in 1ts
regular quarierly meeungs and otherwise as required.

The importance of stakeholders is taken into accoun:

at every 3oard meeting, with discussions invelving
careful considerauon of the longer-term consequences
of any decisions and their implicasions for stakeholders.
The following section explains why these stakeholders
are considered of importance to the Company and the
actions taken to ensure that their interests are 1aken N
account by the 3oard as par of its decision making.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Our siakenoiders Key areas of interest How we engage
Shareholders e Current and The Board welcomes shareholders’ views and places great importance
Continued future financial on communication with the shareholders of the Company. The Board is
shareholder performance responsible for the content of communication regarding corporate issues
support and e Strategy and and for communicating its views to shareholders. The Board aims to ensure
engagement are business model that shareholders are provided with sufficient information to understand
critical to the the risk/reward balance to which they are exposed by the hotding of

. ¢ Corporate . . . ) .
existence of the shares in the Company. Active engagement with shareholders is carried out
business and the governance throughout the year and regular communication is undertaken to ensure that
delivery of the s ESG performance hey undersiand the performance of the business. The Board is committed
long-term strategy and sustainability 1 maintaining open channels of communication and to engaging with
of the business. e Chmate Change  shareholders in a manner which they find most meaningful, in order 1o gain

e Dividend an understanding of the views of shareholders. These channels include:

Annual General Meeting - The Company welcomes and encourages
attendance, voting and participation from shareholders at the AGM, at which
shareholders have the opportunity to meet the Direciors and Investment
Adviser and 1o address questions to them directly. The Investmen: Adviser
attends the AGM and provides a presentation on the Group's performance and
its future outlook. The Company values any feedback and questions it may
receive from shareholders ahead of and during the AGM and 1akes action.

as appropriate.

At the Company's AGM on 22 September 2021, the Company received votes

representing 27.11% against Resolution 13, the additional 10% pre-empiion

resolution. In compliance with the AIC Code of Corporate Governance, the

Board released an announcement on 16 March 2022 outlining how it, via the

Company's Brokers, had engaged with those shareholders who had voted

against the resoluton. It undersiood that these shareholders foliowed PIRC's

or their own internal recommendation to vole against this resolution as

when combined wiih the standard 10% pre-emption disapplication resslution

itwould have resulied in the Company having authority 10 issue up 10

20% pre-empiively.

For the 2022 AGM, which wili be held on 15 September 2022, the Board hopes )
that shareholders will be able to attend in person. Arrangements for the AGM !
will be released in August 2022 and will take account of the jatest Government

quidance and advice a1 the time of pubiication of the Notice.

Publications - The Annual Report and Half-Year Results are made available

on the Company's website. These reporis provide shareholders with a clear
understanding of the Group's portfolio and financial position In addition to the
Annual and Half-Year Reports, reguiarly updated informarion is available on
the Company website, including quarterty factsheets, key policies, the investor i
relations policy and details of the investment property portiolio. Feedback and/

or guestionsg the Company receives from the shareholders help the Company

evolve iis reporting aiming to render the reports and updates transparent and

undersiandable.

Shareholder meetings — Shareholders are abie to meet with the Investment

Adviser and the Company's Joint Brokers throughous the year and the Invesiment

Adviser provides information on the Company on the Company's website.

Feedback from all shareholder meetings with the Invesunen: Adviser and/or the

Joint Brokers, and shareholders' views. are shared with the Board on a regular

basis. The Chairman and other members of the Board, including the Senior

Independent Director and Chait of the Audit and Management Engagenen: i
Commilige, are available 10 meer with sharehoders 10 understand their views on

govermnance and the Company's performance where they wish to do so.




Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Our stakeholders Key areas of interest How we engage

Shareholders e Current and Sharehoelder concerns — The Board gives due consideraticn to matters
Continued future financial raised by shareholders. In the event shareholders wish 1o raise issues or
shareholder performance concemns with the Board or the Investment Adviser, they are welcome
support and e Strategy and to write to the Company at the registered office address set out on
engfagerment are business model page 137. Other members of the Board are also available to shareholders
critical ta the if they have concerns that have not been addressed through the normatl
existence of the Corporate channels.

business and the governance

delivery of the e ESG perfocrmance During the year, the Board noted that several activist shareholders had
long-term strateqy and sustainability taken a short position in the Company’s shares. In response to this, the
of the business. e Climate Change Bcard sought to engage with shareholders directly as well as through

the Company's Brokers and Investment Adviser. Following this, the Board
published a paper to provide detailed responses to the questions which
were raised by the activist shareholders as well as specific responses to

the allegations made by the short sellers.

e Dividend

Investor relations updates ~ The Board regularly monitors the
shareholder profile of the Company. With the majority of shareholders
being a combinaton of institutional investors and private client brokers,
the Board receives regular updates on investors' views and attitudes
from the Company's Brokers and the Investment Adviser. The results of
these meetings are reported to the Board as part of the formal reporting
undertaken by both the Investment Adviser and Brokers.

Included in the Report of the Directors on page 60 are details of
substantial shareholdings in the Company.

On a regular basis (sometimes weekly) and at Board meetings, the
Directors receive updates from the Company's Brokers on the share

trading activity, share price performance and any shareholders’ feedback,

as well as an update from the Company's Investor Relations adviser,
Buchanan, and the Investment Adviser on any publications or comments
by the press. To gain a deeper understanding of the views of its
shareholders and potential investors, the Investment Adviser maintains
regular contact with themn and also undertakes investor roadshows.

Any relevant feedback is taken into account when Directors discuss any
possible fundraising ot the future dividend policy.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Our stakeholders
Investment
Adviser

Holding the
Company's shares
offers investors
an investment
vehicle through
which they can
obtain exposure
to the Company’s
portfolio of
properties. The
Investment
Advisers
performance

is critical for

the Company

to successfully
deliver its
investment
strategy and
meet its objective
to provide
shareholders
with an attractive
level of income,
together with

the potential for
capital growth.

Xey areas of interest

How we engage

Current and
future financial
performance

Shared
commercial
objectives with
the Company
Operational
excellence
Long-term
development of
its business and
resources

ESG performance
and sustainability

The management of the Company's portfolio is delegated to the
Investment Adviser, which manages the assets in accordance with

the Company's objectives and policies. At each Board meeting,
representatives from the Investment Adviser are in attendance 10 present
reports to the Directors covering the Company's cutrent and future
activities, portfolio of assets and its investment performance aver the
preceding period.

Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship with the
Investment Adviser is crucial as the Board and the Investment Adviser
both aim to continue to achieve consistent long-term returns in line
with the Company's investment objective. Important components of the
culture of both the Company and the Investment Adviser are:

operating in a fully supportive, co-operative and open environment
and maintaining ongoing communicaton with the Board between
formal meetings;

+ encouraging open discussion with the Investment Adviser, allowing
time and space for original and innovative thinking;

¢ recognisinig that the interests of stakehoelders and the Investment
Adviser are for the most part well aligned, adopting a tone of
constructive challenge;

¢ drawing on Board members' individual expernience and knowledge to
suppott the Investment Adviser in its monitoring of and engagement
with other stakeholders; and

» willingness to make the Board members’ experience available to
support the Investment Adviser in the sound long-term development
of its business and resources, recognising that the long-term health
of the Investment Adwser is in the interests of shareholders in the
Company.

Other service
providers

In order to
function as a REIT
with a premium
listing on the
London Stock
Exchange, the
Company relies on
a diverse range of
reputable advisers
for support

N meetlng

all relevant
ckbhgations.

-

-

Current and
future financial
performance

Shared
commercial
objectives with
the Company

Operational
axcellence
Long-term
development
of the service
providers’
businesses

Sustainability

The Company's main functions are delegated to a number of service
providers, including the Admnistrator, the Company Secretary, the AIFM,
the Registrar, the Corporate Brokers and the Depositary. each engaged
under separate contracts. The Board maintains regular contact with its
key external providers and receives regular reporting from them, both
through the Board and Coemmittee meetings, as well as cutside of the
regular meeting cycte. Their advice, as well as their needs and views,
are routinely taken into account. Through its Audit and Management
Engagement Commuittee, the Board formaliy assesses their performance,
fees and continuing appointment at least annuaily to ensure that the
key service providers continue to function at an acceptable level and
are appropriately remunerated to deliver the expecied level of service.
The Audit and Management Engagement Committee also reviews and
evaluates the control environment in place at each key service provider.




Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued
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Cur stakeholders Key areas of interest How we engage
Care providers « Current At the outset, it is important to note that the Company does not have
and future any legal or operaticnal responsibility for the delivery of care in the
performance properties within the portfolio. However, the Board and the [nvestment
e Welfare of Adwiser have taken the view that they wish to have a detailed
tenants understantting of the delivery of care and the interaction with the major

care providers who deliver this care. Accordingly. the Investment Adviser
maintains an active dialogue with many of the care providers to build

e Void constructive and informed relationships.
management

¢ Lease obligations

At the same time, as part of transaction due diligence at the time of
acquisition of properties, the Investment Adviser undertakes due
dihgence with respect 1o the operational and financial performance of
all care providers who are proposed to deliver care into the particular
properties. This includes the financial standing of the care provider, its
CQC rating and the nature of the SLA agreement covering voids between
the care provider and the Approved Provider.

The Investment Adviser is noted as having demanstrated considerable
expertise and understanding of the care taking place within its

properties.
Tenants e QGreater The Company's properties are adapted for the use of individuals with

independence long-term care needs within a community setting with the specific

« Maintaining high §1m qf achieving better personal outcomes and independence for the
level of care individuals.

e Improved The sector in which the Company operates is regarded as having
personal achieved significant success in delivering these positive outcomes
outcomes compared to long-term clder style remote institutional care.

On a reqgular basis, members of the Investment Adviser visit properties
accompanied by Approved Provider and care provider partners to see
first hand the nature of the housing and care provision that is being
delivered. Whilst this process hags slowed as a result of the pandemic,
the Investment Adviser has continued to engage with its tenants. This
15 supported by the regular Approved Provider seminars at which the
wellbeing of tenantis is discussed in detail.

In March 2022, the Board underiock a site visit to a number of the
Company's properties. The Board found this visit beneficial as it enabled
it to engage with the Company’s tenants and to see first hand the impact
the Company has had on their wellbeing.

In addition, the Company undertakes resident case studies through
careful and considered interaction via the care provider to assess the
positive impact our properties and associated specialised care have had
on the individual and their wellbeing.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

COut stakehclders Xey areas of interest How we engage
Approved e Current The Company's Approved Provider partners are an important part of the
Providers and future investrmertt model as the responsibility for collection of housing benefit
performance and subsequent payment of rent. the maintenance of the properties
« Sustainability under the full repairing and insuring leases and, most importantly, the

safeguarding of the underlying tenants through the above means, lies

* Compliance with the Approved Providers.

and property
management The Investment Adviser works closely with the Company's Approved

s  Welfare of Provider partners to improve standards and governance and to introduce
tenants practices and procedures that make the Company’s investient processes

» Lease obligations ©Ver more robust.

The Investment Adviser has a reguilar open dialogue with the Approved
Provider partners, liaising monthly on compliance, health and safety,
maintenance and future-proofing schemes, as well as hosting quarterly
seminars to discuss current themes/ trends affecting the sector, to
troubleshoot and this serves as an oppertunity to build relationships and
share best practice.

The Investment Adviser has continued its regular and extensive dialogue
with Approved Providers which gince the start of the pandemic includes
detailed reports on pandemic responsiveness. These reporns have shown
a high degree of resilience to the pandermic with few serious cases of
CQOVID-19 reported due to the quality of the buildings peorple live in. the
attenticn and dedication of the one-to-one care they recerve and the age
profile of the residents.

The Investment Adviser supported the establishment of The Social
Housing Family CIC, a not-for-profit community interest company
operated independently of the Company whose stated aim is to enable
Approved Providers hoiding the Company's leases to increase skills and
experience and to provide funding to promeote enhanced performance.
Membership is open to any Approved Provider that holds Civitas leases
and the effect of membership is to transter ownership of the Approved
Provider to the social housing family, Auckland Homes Solutions was the
first Approved Provider 1o join and has now recruited a very expernienced
and senior executive team and board of management. Qualitas
community benefit society has also joined the CIC.




Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Our stakeholders

Xey areas of interest

How we engage

Regulator of s Financial and The Company is not itself regulated by the RSH, but it is important to
Social Housing operational maintain open and regular dialogue to ensure that the Company and the
(RSH) viability RSH are werking together to improve the sector.
* Governance The Investment Adviser has a regular and ongoing dialegue with the RSH
e Comphance WiIth 554 with the Approved Provider partners regulated by the RSH.
health and safety,
and reguiatory The Company also publishes responses to the regulatory judgements of
standards the RSH regarding the Approved Providers working with the Company as
e Safety and part of the RSH's general review of Approved Providers engaged in the
wellbeing of provision of property services for vulnerable people as announced
underlying in May 2018. This demonstrates the Company’s desire to maintain a
tenants dialogue with the RSH and its desire o see that the positions improve
where needed.
Other regulatory e Comphance The Company regularly considers how it meets various regulatory and
authorities with statutory statutory obligations and follows voluntary and best practice guidance,

The Company can
only operate with
the approvat of

its requlators who
have a legitimate
interest in how
the Company
operates 1n the
market and treats
its shareholders.

and regulatory
requirements

Governance
based on best
practice guidance

Better reporting
to shareholders
and other
stakeholders

and how any governance decisions it makes can have an impact on
its shareholders and wider stakeholders, both in the shorter and in the
longer-term.

The Board receives quarterly regulatory compliance monitorning updates
from the [nvestment Adviser.

The Board receives quarterly compliance updates from the AIFM regarding
the Company’s compliance with its investment policy and the Investment
Adviser's compliance with the Investment Management Agreement.

The Board also has access to the advice of the Company Secretary who
provides updates and advice on requlatory, statutory and governance
matters for consideration by the Board at its quarterly mestings and as
and when required.

Local authorities

Provision of
safe and secure
properties of a
high quality
Sustamability
for long-term
placements

It 1s impertant for the Company te bulld and maintain relationships with
local authorities as they have an important role in identifying areas of
high demand, agreeing rents and referrals to the Company's schemes.

The Company will engage with the local authority commissioner either
directly. or through specialist consultants, Approved Provider and care
provider partners as part of the Company's due diligence to ensure that
each property being acquired has been commissioned by the relevant
local authority and that rent levels have been discussed and agreed.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Our stakeholders

Xey areas of interest

How we engage

Lenders -
Availability of
funding and
liquidity are
crucial to the

Current and
future financial
performance of
the business

Openness and

The Company has arranged debt facilities from a wide range of lenders
and engages with these on a regular basis through regular meetings and
presentations to ensure they are informed on ail relevant areas of the
business. The continual dialogue helps to support the credit relationshups.

The Company has reaffirmed its Investment Grade High Credit Quality

Company's ability en
10 1ake advantage Transpar &y Rating frem Fitch Ratings Limited of "A” {senior secured) and a Long-Term
of investment Proactive IDR (Issuer Default Raung? of A- with a Stable Outlook.
opportunities as approach to
theI;r arise communication  This will enable the Company to pursue its strategy in relation to debt

' e Operational funding, in addition to continuing to work with the Company's existing

excellence lenders, with whom the Company has built strong relationships.

Communities e Acceptance A key component of the Company's portfolio 1s that the properties within
The Company's of care in the it are set within community environments so that individuals are able as
assets relyon a communty part of their care plan to interact with the local community rather than
strong, positive e Availability of being isolated.
connection

with the local
communities in
which its business
operates.

jocal facilities for
1enants

This ts achieved in consultauon with local autherities in determining
that the initial settings are appropriately diversified within the respective
community and are not clustered 1n a way that would lead to isolauon.

This assists the individuals and also ensures appropriate integration
within the community. On a day-to-day basis, care providers and
Approved Providers operate policies to ensure posittve relationships
with neighbours and surrounding dwellings. The activities within the
Company's properties create employment within the local community for
both housing and care workers.

Charity partners e

Dehvering
needed support
to vulnerable
adults

Iimproved
well-being of
vulnerable adults

ESG performance

and sustainability

The Company supports a number of orgamsations whose objectives
are to provide improved outcemes for vulnerable adults affected by
hoemelessness and other care needs.

The Company commits targeted financial support to fund specific
programmes which help those affected by homelegsness by teaching
them skills and offering support to prevent them from being 1n that
position again.

The Company ensures reguiar calls and meetings with our charity
partners to update on progress and projects being undertaken, as well as
attending events 1n supportt of their work.

In 2020, the Company amended its investment objective and investment
policy to enable it 1o enter into long-term leases with the NHS and with
registered chantties operating within areas of investment interest to the
Company. The amendments will allow the Company access to a wider
range of pipeline opportunities and will assist in providing the currently
unmet demand in these areas.




Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Principal Decisions

srincipal decisions have been defined as those that have
a material impact 1o the Group and 1ts key stakeholders.

[n taking these decisions, the Directors considered their
duties under gection 172 of the Act. Principal decisions
made duning the year were as follows:

New Regulatory Clause Initiative

In 2022, the 3oard considered and agreed a new
approach to the Company's lease model with the goal

of supporiing additivnal regulatory compliance and
addressing perceptions of risk. The new regulatory
clause will enable Approved 2roviders to achieve greater
alignmen: between income recelpts and lease hahilities,
set achievahle capital solvency requirements agains:
lease obhgations and demonstrate a further degree of
risk sharning. This will assist the Company's counterparies
0 demonstrate compliance with the Regulater of Social
Housing's Governance and Mnancial Viabihty Standard
(refer to page 17)

The new regulatory clause would operate on a property
by property basis and provide for a temporary pass
through of lease ren: in certain limed circumstances
when an Approved Provider 1s no: in receipt of full
paymen: and would ensure that the Company dces
not pecome regponsible for obligations that are rightly
owed by others such as void cover by care previders.
The new regulatory clause will provide the Company
with counterparues which are bet:er able to achieve
regulatory compliance, enhanced information, step in
rights and unchanged lease and property values.

Publication of Market Update

‘n response to the unfounded commen:s by an actvist
shor:-geller who took up a position in the Company's
shares, the Board ook the decision ro pubhsh a Market
Update paper on 11 October 202" 1o provide a dezalled
response and also address principal areas of discussion
+har had been brought out In converganons with
sharehclders.

The Company and C!M have conunued o make
themselves available o speak and meet with both new
and existing shareholders following the release of the
detalled marke: updaze.

3oth the 3card and representatives of the ‘nvestmen:
Adwviser continue to be available to engage with
shareholders

Buyback Programme

During the year, the Board monitored the decline in the
Company’s share price which. in 1ts view, was associated
with activity from an acuvis: short seller and subseguent
press coverage, the content of which the Board continues
ta believe o0 be baseless. incorrect and/or misleading.

‘n response to the dechne in the share price, the

Roard agreed the implemen:aticn of a share buvhack
programme under cerrain parameters, which 1s being
operated by “he Company's join: brokers. The impact of
share buybacks continue o enhance |“R8 NAV per share
by 0.26p at 31 March 2G22.

Further information on the Company's buyback
programme can be found on page 59.

Agreement with E.ON to reduce
carbon footprint
In June 2021. the Company en‘ered 1into a nationhal

framework agreement with energy provider EON to
undertake environmen:al enhancemen:s tha: would help

10 reduce the carbon footprint of the Company's portfolio.

The agreement was focused on those properties with
lower EPC ratings and formed part of the Company’s
objecuve to reach carbon neutrality. The agreement built
on successful pilot projects already undertaken by the
Company and EON. i1 benefiis the Company's Approved
Provider and other non-for-profit partners by reducing
mailntenance cost and energy bills without any costs
being incurred by them and enabling them to contribute
to a reduced carben footprin:.

The project draws on the 2CO3 funding scheme, and
the maintenance costs benefited from the Domestic
Renewable =ea: [ncentive.
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Strategic Overview

Purpose of the Company

The Company was established 1n 2076 with the purpose
of delivering long-term responsible, stable returns o
investors and achieving positive measurable social
impact and £3G benefiis on a large scale. 7 should
achieve this as a resul: of introducing long-term equity
capital into the 3ocial housing sector with a parsicular
focus on care-based community housing. 3y doing 50,
‘his would form a bridge between equity investors and
the social housing sector and bring together aspects of
heal:hcare with social housing.

The Company has since developed the larges: portfoho
of care-based community housing in the UX tha: provides
long-term homes for more than 4,500 individuals across
half the local authonties in England and Wales.

As a resul: of this success, the Company has recently
ex:ended its mandate ‘0 be able 1o enzer inlo
transactions directly with the NHS and with leading
charities with an interes: in the provision of specialis:
housing that has a sirong care or suppor: element, 13
consisten: with public polhicy and whose costs are me: by
the pubhc purse for which it offers value for money.

Investment Objective

The Company's Invesimen: objective 15 to provide
shareholders with an attractive level of income, togethar
with the potenual for capral growth from invesiing in a
por:folio of Social Fomes, which benefits from inflaiion
adjusted long-term leases or oCccupancy agreemen:s with
Approved 2roviders and o deliver, on a fully invested
and geared bass, a targeted dividend yield of 5% per
annum-, which the Company expec:s ‘¢ increase broadly
in line with inflation.

Investment Policy

The Company’s tnvesimen: policy 15 0 inves: in a
drversified por:foho of Socal Z=omes <hroughout

“he Lnized Xingdom. The Company intends ;0 meet

‘he Company’s inves:men: objecuve by acquiring,
wwpically incirectly via Special 2urpose Vehicles,
porfolios of Social =omes and entering 1o long-term
inflation adijusted leases or nccupancy agreernents

for terms primarly ranging from 10 years 10 4C years
wrth Approved ?roviders, where all managemen:

and maintenance obhgalons will be serviced by the
Approved Providers. The Company will not underiake
any developmert: acuvity or assume any developmen: or
consracion risk. “owever, the Company may engage n
renovaiing or cJs0mising exisiing homes, as necessary.
The Company may make pruden: use of leverage o
finance the acqusition of Social Zomes and 1o preserve
capiial on a real basis.

The Company 1s focused on delivering capital growth
and expecss to hold itg Portfolio over the long rerm and
therefore 1115 unhikely tha: the Company will dispose
of any par: of the Porfolic. in the unlikely event that a
part of the Portfolio s disposed of, the Directors intend
*o remnves: proceeds from such disposals in assets in
accordance with the Company's invesiment policy.

Investment Restrictions

The Company inves:s and manages the Portfolic with the
objecuve of delivening a high quahty, diversified Por:folio
through the following Investmen: restrictiions:

e the Company only inves:s in Socilal Homes located in
the United Kingdom;

e the Company only invests in Social Homes where the
counterparsy to the lease Oor occupancy agreemsns: s
an Approved Provider;

« no lease or occupancy agreemens: shall be for an
unexpired period of less than (0 years. unless the
shorer leases or DCCUPANCY agreements represent
par: of an acquisizion of a porifolio which the
nvestment Adviser intends o reorgamse such thas
“he average term of lease or occupancy agreement 1s
increased to 15 years or above;

e« the aggregate maximuim eXposure 10 any single
Approved Provider 1s 25% of the Gross Asset Value,
once the capital of the Company 18 fully inves:ed;

e nonvestment by the Company in any single
geographical area, in relation to which the houses
and/or aparrmen: klocks owned by the Company are
located on a contiguous or largely conniguous basis,
exceeds 20% of “he Gross Asse: Value of the Company:

¢ he Company only acquires completed Social =omes
and will not forward finance any developmens: of new
Social —omes;

e ‘he Company does notnves:in other aliernative
mvesimen: funds or closed-end invesimen:
companies; and

« the Company 1s no: engaged in shor: selling.

The inves:men: limi:s detailled above apply at the ume of
“he acquisinion of the relevant inves:men: i the 2orfcho
once fully invested. The Company would no: be requnred
o dispose of any invesimen: or o rebalance the 2orifolio
as a result of a change in the respecuve valuations of 173
asse’s.

Gearing Limit

The Directors seek 0 uge gearing o enhance equity
rezurns. The level of horrowing is se: on a pruden: basis
for the asset class and seeks 0 achieve a low cost of
funds, whils: mamnzaiming “he flexibility in the underlying
security requiremenss and the stiructare of both the
Porfolio and the Company.

1 The dividend vield 15 Dased on the onginal [PQ price ol 100 pence per Ordinary share The target dividends are largets only and do not represent a profit [Grecast
There can be noassutance that the 1argets can of wilt be met and should not be taken as an indication of the Company s expected or actual fumile results
Accordingly potenual invesiors should not place any rehance on these fargets in deciding whether of not 1o mvest 10 the Company or assume that the Com pany
Wil make any distubouens at all and should decide tor themselves whether of not the tatget dividencd yields are reasonable or achievable



Strategic Overview continued

The Company may. following a decision of the Board,
raise debt from banks and/or *he capr:al markets anad the
aggregate barrowings of the Company is always subject
<0 an absoluze maximum of 40% of Gross Asset Value
calculaied at the time of drawdown. Current gearing 1s
34.43%.

Lebt 1s zecured at asse! level, whether over a particular
property or a holding entity for a particular series of
properiies, withou: recourse to the Company and also
potenually at Company level with or without a charge
over the Portfohio {but not against paricular assets),
depending on :he optimal structure for the Company and
having considerauon to key metrics including lender
diversity, cost of deb:, debt type and mawnty profiles.
Otherwise there will be no cross-financing between
investments in the Portfolioc and the Company will not
gperate as a common treasury funcion hetween the
Company and its investments.

Use of Derivatives

The Company may choose 1o utliise denvatives for
efficient porifolio management In paracular, the
Directors may engage n full or partial interes:t rate
hedging or otherwise seek to mitigate the risk of interes:
rate increases on borrowings incurred 1n accordance
with the gearnng limits as part of the management of the
Portfolio.

Cash Management

Until the Company is fully inves:ed. and pending
re-investmens: or distnbution of cash receipts, the
Company invests in cash, cash equivalents, near cash
instruments and money marke: ins:raments.

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs"”)

REIT Status

The Directors conduct the affairs of the Company so as o
enable it to remain quahfied as a R:IT for the purposes
of Part 12 of the Corporation Tax Act 20.0 (and -he
regulations made thereunder).

Culture

The Directors agree that establishing and mainiaining

a healthy corporate culture among the 3card and in 1ts
interaction wiih the [nvestmens: Adwviser, shareholders
and other stakeholders will suppor: the delivery of its
purpose, values and strateqgy. The Board seeks to promote
a culwure of openness, debate and integrity through
ongoing dialogue and engagemen: with its service
providers, principally the Investment Adviser.

As detailed in the Corporate Governance Stalemernt,

+he Company has a number of policies and procedures

n place to assis: with maintaining a culture of good
governance, including those relating to diversity and
Directors’ conflicis of interest. The Board assesses and
monitors comphance with these policies as well as the
general culwure of the Board through 3oard meeungs and,
In particular, dunng the annual evaluation process which
is undertaken by each Director (for more information, see
the performance evaluaton secuon on page 70).

The Board's culture iself is one of openness,
collaboration and constructive debaie 1o ensure the
effective contribution of all irectors, particularly in
respect of the 3oard's decision making. Consideraiion
of our Stakeholders is embedded in the Board’s decision
making process. Please see our secuon 172 Statemen: on
page 25.

Measute Explanation

Result

Increase in IFRS
NAV per share

Target to achieve capital appreciation whilst
maimtaining a low risk strategy from enhancing
the quality of cash flows from investments. by
physical improvement of properties and Dy
creating a significantly diversified, high-guality
portfolio.

IFRS NAV increase of 12.3p per share 12.60%
from [PC (2021: 10.3p per share 16.56% from [PO).

Dividends per
share

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company
targeted a dividend of 5.55p per share.

Total dividend of 555p per share declared for the
vear to 31 March 2022 {2021: 5.40p).

Number of Local
Au:horities,
Approved
Providers and
care providers

Target risk mitigation threugh a diversified
portfolio (once fully invested) with no more
than 25% exposure to any one Local Authority or
single Approved Provider and no more than 20%
exposure ta any single gecgraphical area, once
the capital of the Company is fully invested.

16% {2021: 16%).

As at 31 March 2022:
e 178 Local Authority partners (2021: 164 Local
Authority partners)
18 Approved Providers (2021: 16 Approved Providers)
» 130 Care Providers (2021: 118 Care Providers)

The Company's largest single exposure is i0
Auckland Home Solutiens CIC and currently
stands at 16% (2021: 24%). The largest geographical
concentration is in the South West. being

Loanto Targeted total debt drawn no more than 40% of
Gross Assets gross assets.
{Leverage)

Leverage as at 31 March 2022 of 34.43% of gross
assets (2021: 34.48%).
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Strategic Overview continued

EPRA
The Company 1s a member of the European Public Real Estate Associanon ("27RA"). 22RA has developed and defined
the following performance measures to give rransparency, comparability and relevance of financial reporting

across entities which may use different accounting siandards. The Cempany 1s pleased o disciose he following
measures which are calculated in accordance with EPRA guidance. These are all Al'ernative Performance measures of
the Company.

Definition

Purpose

Performance

EPRA Earnings

Earnings from operational
activities.

A key measure of a
company's underlying
operating results and an

EPRA Net Reinstatement
Value (“NRV™)

EPRA NAV metric which
assumes that entities never
sell assets and aims to
reprasent the value required
to rebuild the entity.

EPRA Net Tangible Assets
(“NTA")

EPRA NAV metric which
assumes that entities buy
and sell assets, thereby
crystallising certain levels of
unavoidable deferred tax.

EPRA Net Disposal
Value (“NDV™)

EPRA NAV metric

which represents the
shareholders’ value under
a disposal scenario,
where deferred tax,
financial instruments and
certain other adjustments
are calculated to the full
extent of their hability, net
of any resulting tax.

The EPRA NAV set of metrics make adjustments to the NAV per the IFRS financial
tatements to provide stakeholders with the most relevant information on the fair
value of the assets and liabilities of a real estate investment company, under different

indication of the extentto scenarios.
which current dividend
payments are supported
by earnings.
EPRA Earnings EPRA NRV EPRA NTA EPRA NDV
£ £ £ £
2022 2022 2022 2022
29,810,000 673,416,000
202 ZQ;]

EPRA Earnings per share
(Basic and di'uzed) pence

2022

EPRA NRV per share

{diluted) pence

2022

2021

EPRA NTA per share
{di:uted) pence

2022
20217 3
S 1DB38

A

2028

Sionem

EPRA NDV per share

{diuted} pence

2022
2021
.7
2620
10159

Jast performance i1 no: a reliable indicator of future performance. “or detatled workings reconciling the above
measures 6 the [R5 resulis, please see Appendix ~ 10 these financial statements on pages 229 10 737



Strategic Overview continued

E EPRA Net Initial Yield EPRA Topped-up Net EPRA Costs Ratio EPRA Vacancy Rate
- s L3
E (“NIY™} @tml Yield (“NIY™) Admimstrative and Estimated Market Rental
®  Annualised rental income This measure INCOIPOraes  gperating costs {including Value ("ERV") of vacant
a an adjustment to the and excluding costs of space divided by ERV of
based on the cash rents -
2ssinq at the balance EPRA NIY in respect of direct vacancy) divided  the whole portfolic.
p . g . the expiration of rent-free by gross rental income.
sheet date, less non- periods {or other unexpired
recove.rabie property lease incentives such as
operatmg EXpenses. discounted rent perieds and
divided by the market stepped rents)
vaiue of the property with ’
(estimated) purchasers’
COSts.
[ 3
§ A comparable measure for portfolio valuations. A key measure to enable A ‘pure’ (%) measure of
These measures should make it easier for investors meaningful measurement investment property
E to judge themselves, how the valuation of portfolio of the changes in a space that is vacant,
X compares with portfolio Y. company'’s operating costs.  based on ERV.
§ EPRA NIY EPRA Topped-up NIY EPRA Costs Ratio? EPRA Vacancy Rate
g 2022 2022 2022 2022
w 0
&
2021
g
2020
0

Past performance 1s no: a rellable indicator of future performance. Ffor detalled workings reconciling the above
measures 1o the [TRS resulis, please see Appendix | to these financial statements on pages 129 o 130

1 The tanos melusive of vacancy costs are the same as the rano exclusive of vacancy <osts for 2022, 2021 and 2020
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Principal Risks and Risk Management

The Board considers tha: the risks detailled below are ~he principal nisks facing the Group currently, along wath the risks
detailed in notwe 310 o the finanaial statements. These are the nisks that could affec: the ability of the Company o delver
g strateqy. The Board confirms hat the principal nisks of the Company, including those which would threaten 1os future
performance, solvency or hguidity, have been robustly assessed throughout the year ended 3! March 2022, taking into
account the emerging nsks such as the evolving Lkraine-Russia conflict nsk, climate change nsk, cyber secany nsk and
recrutiment of staff al counterparues nsk, and tha: processes are in place o con:inue ‘his assessment.

The Audit and Managemen: zngagemen: Commiiiee hag divided the Company’s risks into “he following nsk type
categories:

e Strategy and Competriveness;
e Operatonal. including Cybher Cnime;
s nvesiment Management and

s Accounung, Legal and Regulatory.

tEach nsk conzamed in each cazegory 18 reviewed for s impac: and probabilizy by the Audir and Managemen:
Fngagemen: Commiitee at least twice durnng he year. |

The Audit and Management =ngagemen: Commiee takes responsibilizy for overseeing the effectuveness of nsk
management and iiternal control systems on behalf of the Board and advises the 3oard on the principal nsks facing
the business.

Further details of rnisk managemen: processes thar are in place can be found in the Corporate Governance Stalement
on pages 70 and 7., The principal and emerging risks and uncerainues relaung 1o the Group are regularly reviewed
by *he Board along with the internal controls and nsk management processes that aré used o mitigate ‘hese

nsks. The 3oard hasdentfied four new principal nsks dunng the year (as set out in the lis: of principal nsks and
uncertanes), with the risk assoclazed with share price disruption due 10 an activis: sharehclder being 1denafied as
having the highest impac: and ikelihood The risk associated with the failure 1o monior and ensure that conungent
acuviues are bemng completed by Approved Providers was removed as a principal nisk by the Board dunng the year.
“urther detatls on this and the other principal nsks and *he managemen: of those risks are described below:

Impact

Very
unlikely

Unlikely Possible Likely

Probability



Principal Risks and Risk Management continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

1 Strategy and Competitiveness 11sk
The Company's share price is
disrupted due to an activist
shareholder.

This risk was newly identified
during the year.

Impact __

How managed/mitigated

ul
E
E_

Tho Company is targeted
by a shorti seller or activis:
sharcholder leading to
afail in the Company's
share price and a
widening ot the discount
to NAV.

Significan: namhbers ol
shares may need 10 be
repurchased 'eading (o
a fallin the size ol the
company and liquidity
implications.

2. Strategy and competitiveness risk

Impact

The Company and its operations
are subject te laws and regulations
enacted by national and local
governments and governmeni

policy.

This risk remained at the same
level as the year ended 31 March
2021

3. Stralegy and compeniivencss risk .
As a result of competition from
other purchasers of social housing
properties. the Company's ability
10 deploy capital effectivety within
a reasonable timeframe may be
restricted or the net initial yields at
which the Company can acgquire
properties may decline such that
targel returns cannaet be met

This risk remained at the same
level ag the year ended 3t March
2021.

Any cnange in the

laws, regulaiions and/
oI governmen. no.cy
affecung the Company
and is operaions may
have a materia. adverse
cffee: on the ability ol the
Company 0 successiuly
DuUrsJe its investment
policy and mee: ig
invesimant oblective
and on thevaluc of tne

Company and the shares.

The Board is committed 10 maintaining
open channels of communication with
shareholders and engaging in ways
shareholders find most meaningful, in

order to gain understanding of shareholder

vicws. Turther inlunngdon on the Board's
engagement with shareholders can be
found on pages 25 to 33.

The Board seeks to provide full disclosure
on the counterparties and the structure of
transactions so that all stakeholders are
kept reliabiy informed on the Company's
business dealings.

The Board regularly reviews the
Company's buyback policy 10 ensure this
is in alignment with the interests of the
Company and shareholders. The Board

is also mindful of the possibility (o issue
shares and regulariy reviews its policy in
this area 10 engure thart it is consistent with
the Company's stzategy. [t receives regular
updates from the Company’s brokers (o
help inform its decisions in this regard.

Impact:
High

Probability:
Likely

How managed/mitgated

The Company focuses on niche real gstate
sectors where it believes the regularory
framework and underlying demand
dynamics to be robust.

The Investment Adviser has sirong industry
contacts and has good knowledge on
policy opinion and direction.

The Board obtains regular updares
from professional advisers (o monitor
developments in regulaticn and legislation.

Impact:
Very high

Probability:
Unlikely

Imwpact
The rate of capital
deploymen: would drop.
decreasing retirns o
shareholders.

. How l_'nﬁgrdlmlllgated
The Company has strong .inks with vendors

and a rebust pipeline of future acquisitions.

The Board regularly reviews the pipeline
of potential acquisitions and monitors the
marke: landscape.

The Board is aware of the current
competitive social housing market and
recognises the impact this may have on
the Company's ability to deploy capital
effectively.

Impact:
High

Probahility:
Unlikely

¢¢0¢ SLNNODDY UNY LAOdEH
I DNISOOH TV IDOS SVLIALD
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Principal Risks and Risk Management continued

4. [uvestmﬂllﬁmanﬂgcmcﬂl risk ~ 3
Tenant defaulting under the terms
of a lease.

Impact

Loss of renta. income in
“he shor term

This risk remained at the same
level as the year ended 31 March
2021

fmpact.

The valuation of the
Company's asscts would
fall. decreasing the

NAV and yie.ds of the
Company.

3 Inves_ﬂmem management risk ~ R
The value of the invesunents made
by the Company may change from
time Io time according to a variety
of factors. including movements

in interest rates, inflation and
general marke! pricing of similar
investments.

This was ideniified as a heightened
__n'sk during the year.

6 Investment management sk
Due diligence may not reveal all
facts and circumstances thai may
be relevant in connection with an
investment and may ho! prevent
an acquisition being materially
overvaiued or rental streams being

Impact

The Company wou.d
overpay for asse's
impairing snareho.der
va.Le reducing rental
income and thercfore

reTJIns.
at risk.
This risk remained at the same
level as the year ended 31 March
2021
7 lovestment management rigk Iepact

Loss of key staff ai the Invesiment
Adviser.

Negaive inves:or
sentimen: .eacding (o a
red..cijon in share price
Reduction in anilily
gource off mar<e: and
favouran.e dea’s

This risk remained at ‘hie same
leve: as the year ended 31 March
2021,

i Sn’alogx_v and compeltiveness
The Company fails (o respond (o
issues related 1o climate change,
either directly as enhancemenis
10 properties of indirectiy via its
climate change reponing.

Impact -
Decredsc in 1ne va we of
ne Company's agsers and
a negaive IMmpac: on e
Company's snare price

This was a newly identified risk
during the year.

How managed/nungared

How manaqedmaitigated

The porticiic is highly diversified 1o reduce  hmpact:
the impact of default. Extensive diligence is  Medium
undertaken on all assets, which is reviewed

and challenged by the Board.

Probability:

The Investmen! Adviser works proactively Likely

with Approved Providers (o address any
potential concerns.

The Beard is provided with regular updates
on the tenants with any concerns raised for
discussion.

The Board has noted that the Company’s
higtoric level of defaults has heen
immaterial.

How managed/miigated .
The Company invests in projects with
stable, predetermined, long-term leases in
place with CPI or CPI plus 1% indexation
and its strategy is not focused on sale of
properties.

’ Im;-)act:
High

Probability:

Passible
The Board receives regular updates on ssib

factors that might impact investnent
valuations.

The Company underiakes detailed due
diligence on the properties, their condition,
the proposed rentai levels - benchmarking
against comparable schemes using both
exiernal consuliants where required and

its own proprietary database - and on the
Approved Providers and care providers
involved in each property to ensure that the
purchase price is robust

Prabability:
Unlikely

The Board considers the due diligence
undertaken when approving acquisitions.

How managed/mtigated .
The Board considers the 1isk of the
Invesiment Adviser losing key staff and the
succession plans the Investment Adviser
has in place.

Impact:
High

Probability:

The Board has noted the ongoing Unlikely

expansion of the Invesiment Adviser's
support leam.

iv\f rnanagr_q/mmgamd . _
Regular review and consideration by

the Board inciuding the inpu: of climare

change specialists at the Investment

Adviser.

High
Probability:
Unlikely

Advice received from exiernal professional
advisers.



Principal Risks and Risk Management continued

$ Operational. including cybor crime Ipact _ _ How managed/mi_l_lgdtec_%m

Serious accident or poor Repuzatipna!l damage [or Reporning from Approved Providers and Impact:
management amongst Approved ‘he Company. moniroring of Approved Providers by the High
Providers due to stalf shortages. Investmen! Adviser. Probability:
ipss of competence and Unlikely

vaccination uptake.

This was identified as a heightened
risk during the year.

10 strategy and competitiveness __. Impact

The Company is not promoted in A reduction in the The Board monitors the marketing and Impact:

a way which generates investar Company's share price distribution activity undertaken by the Medium

demand. especially with regard 1o and a widening of :he Investment Adviser and the Corporate Probability:

ESG focus. discoan: ‘o NAV. Brokers at each meeting as well as Unlikely
receiving regular reports from its PR adviser

This was identified as a heightened Buchanan.

risk during the year. . .
The Board utilises discount control

mechanisms 10 suppolt promotional
acitivities.

The Board engages The Good Economy and
Social Profit Calculator and reports findings
1o shareholders.

The Board considers ESG reporting in the
Annual Report and Accounnts carelully.

Emerging risks Ylease see the Company's ESG Report on pages 45 1o 55

- : for further details.
“rerging risks are considered during the regular

risk review. and would be specifically dizcussed and
evaluated as they anse dunng the year. input from the
[nvestrnen: Adviser on emerging risks 1s considered by
“he Audir and Managemen: zngagement Commiee,

The Listing Rules require premium-hsted commercial
companies o disclose in thewr annual report whether
“hey have reportad on how clima:e change affec:s
*heir business Iin a manner consisten: with the
recommendations of the Task force on Chimate-related
Tinancial Disclosures ("I'CEFDY, and to provide an
explananon and other informanon if they are unable

Key emerging rnisks identified and considered dunng the
year include:

e Ukrame-Russia Conflict — the impact of Ukraine- 0 do so. In addinen, the UK Government in:ends ‘o
Russia conflict. Although the Company has no direct introduce mandatory cimate-related disclosures o
exposure 1o Russia or eastern furopean terriories, the  supplement the requirements under the Listng Rules. The
Soard continues to closely monior this. Board has chosen not to adop: the requirements early

and expects these 1o be applicable to the Company i the

L -Te Cl ce Chz -the i I -himat
[ ong-Term Chima:e ange e impac: of chimate financial year 2024.

charnge, over the lenger-ierm on the husiness. The
Company 15 commited to unders:anding ESG risk.
including the particular impact of climase change
on the business. Climate change poses an indirec:
nsk o the Company's operations, the environment
and society, and the Board 1s aware rha: appropriaze
acton 18 required o reduce its impac:

e Cyber Secuny - the 1impact of a cyber securty breach
within the Company or its service providers. Dunng the
year, the 3oard was made aware of a mimnor data breach
within the Deposiiory. The breach has had no impacs
on the Company's operations and no personal data was
compromised. The Board is satisfied tha: the Deposiory
has taken approprate immediate remedial action and
has adequate safeguards 1in place.
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Going Concern and Viability Statement

Going Concern

The Soard regularty reviews *he pozision of the Company
and its ability 10 continue as a going concern at 1is
meenngs. The financial statements se: out the current
fitnancial posttion of the Company.

The Company acquires high-quality property with a
particular focus on property providing care for the long
erm. The properties acquired are on long-term full
repammnng and insuaring leases in a sector of the market
with very high levels of need. The cost base of the
Company 18 proporionately low compared 1o revenue
and there is a high level of ceriainty over cost ‘o be
incurred. On thig basis, the Company is expected o be
viable well beyond the five-year term considered in the
Company's iesung below.

As a1 3. March 2022, the Company held cash balances of
£533 milhon {ne: of operating and financing amounts
duel. The 3oard has evaluated the fiinancial position

of the Company and has mainiained its premiim
Investment grade raung from Mvch Raiings Lid — a well
estabhished raung agency with a strong famiharity o the
aliernaave heal:hcare real esiate space, which gives the
Company confidence in the ability 1o ratse future debs
and/or equity capral in order to fund the Company's
invesimen:s for the long term and o faciiizate the
paymen: of dividends :o shareholders. Based on these,
‘he Joard believes that the Company 1s In a position 0
manage 1ts financial nisks.

Vartous forms of sensiivity analysis have been
performed, in particalar the financial performance of
tenants and a reducnon in rent. As at 3' March 2022, the
ren: would have 10 drop by approximazely 29% before its
loan covenan: s breached. A the date of approval of thus
repors. the Company has substannal headroom within

178 financtal loan covenants, The Company also benefits
from a secure imcome sream from leases with long
average unexpired term leases.

_everage s pruden:ly mamnzained at a level of less “han
AC% of GAV.

The Company's aricles of associanon include a
requiremen: for the 3card 1o propose an ordinary
resoldtion at the annual general meeting following the
fifth anmversary from the imisal pakhc offering of the
Company for the Company o coninde In g curren: form
*he Conunuation Resolation Thisis the first conumiation
vote since the Company was se’ Jup.

if the Conunuaton Resclaiion 1s passed, The Company wall
consimie i1s business as presentdy constituted and propose
the same resoluton at every hfth annual general meeting
thereafrer f the Conunuaton rResolutioti is no? passed, the
Directors will be required, within six months after the dae
of thig annual general meeung, o formulate proposals

for consideration by the shareholders for the volun:ary
liquidation, uninsanon, recrganisation. or reconstruction
of the Company. After making appropnaze enquiries of the
Company's brokers and Inves:ment Adviser, pursiuan: to
+hetr recen: discussions with a number of the Company's
shareholders, the Directors are of the view that the
Conunuation Rescluuion will be passed at the forthcoming
annual general mmeeung. This reflects the strength and
natare of the Company's porifolio, and specifically the
provision of long-term accommaodanon for more than
4,000 vulnerable individuals. Accordingly. he Jirectors
axpect that if the Contnuaton Resolution 1s not passed,
an even: which the Directors consider 1o be highly remosze,
formulaung and implementng any such proposals would
require the Company 10 continue operatons for a period
of at least “2 months from the date of approval of the
Company's financial statemen:s.

The Board 15, therefore, of the opinion -hat the going
concern hasis adopled in the preparaton of the
consohdated financial statements 1s appropnate.

Viability Statement

The Directors present the Company's viability statemen:
which summariges the resulig of thetr assessmen: of
‘he Company's curren: positon, I°s principal nsks and
prospecs over a period to 37 March 2027

The assumpions underpinning “he forecas: cashflows and
covenan: comphance forecasts were sensised o explore
“he resthience of the Company 1o the polenial impac: of the
Company's principal nigks and unceriainies.

The prospecis were assessed over a five-year penod for
“he following reasons:

i) the Company's long-zerm forecas: covers a five-year
period;

ii) thelength of service level agreements between
Approved “roviders and care providers 1s typically five
vears: and

iii} the Company's lzases are wypically 25 years on fully
repatnng and insunng leases, enabling reasonable
cerrainty of ;Income over the nexs five years



Going Concern and Viability Statement continuea

The Company's ive-year forecast incorporates
assumptions related to the Company's investment srategy
and principal risks from which performance results, cash
flows and key performance indicators are forecast. The
principal risks are set out on pages 38 to 42. Of these risks,
those which are expected 10 have a higher impac: on the
Company's longer-term prospects are those related o
future government housing policies. The Company has
considered its strategy over a longer term and. in light

of *he inherent demand for the Company’s properties

and the vulnerable nazure of the ulimate tenant. the risk
of change 1n future housing policy is considered to be
hmited. The principal risks are mitigated by the Company's
risk managemen: and internal control processes, which
funcion on an ongoing bhasis.

The Board, via delegation o the Audit and Management
Engagemen: Committee, monitors the effecuveness

of the Company's nsk managemen: and internal

control processes on an ongoing basis. The monitonng
activities are descenbed in the Report of the Audit and
Managemen: Engagement Commitiee on pages b2 to 65
and include direct review and challenge of the Company's
documented risks, nisk ratngs and controls, and review
of performance and comphiance repor:s prepared by
che Company's advisers and the independent exernal
auditors.

The Board of Directors has carried out a rocbust
assessmen: of the principal and emerqging risks facing
-he Company, inciuding those that would threaten its
business model. fature performance, solvency and
lhieqadity. Where approprnate, the Company's forecas:s are
sulject to sensiuvity analysis. which involves applying
gsevere conditions and flexing a number of assumpnons
simultaneously.

The sensiivities performed were designed o provide
the Directors with an understanding of the Company's
performance in the event of severe bu: plausible
scenarios. :aking full accoun: of mitigating actions
shat could be taken o avoid or reduce the impac: or
occurrence of the underiying nsks outlined below:

e 0% of tenants defauliing under a lease The cuicome
of this scenario reduces profits on average over the
five year forecas: by 5% per annam and rechices cash
by £20 million. However, the Board is stll comfortable
that dividends could be paid as there is g:ill sufficient
level of cash in the business; and

e deterioration in economic outlock, change in
government housing policy which could impact the
fundamen:als of the soaal housing sector, including
a negaive impac: on valuasions and a 5% reduciion
in annual rents. The outcorme of the ‘severe downside
gcenano was tha: the Company's covenant headroom
on existing debt (.2 the level a: which the investment
proper:y values would have o fall before a financial
breach occuars) reduces by “3%, prnor 10 any mitiganng
actions such as asse: sates, which indicates that
covenanss on existing facilities would not be breached.

The 3oard has noted tha: the Company is due to hold

125 first continuation vole at the AGMV 1n September 22
This would be an ordinary resolution requinng approval
from 50% of the shareholders voting. Further details as
o how the Company has considered the impact of the
continuation vote can be found in the Going Concern
seciion on the previous page

The remaiming principal risks and uncertamies, whilst
having an impact on the Company's business, are

not considered by the Directors to have a reasonable
likelihood of impacting the Company's viabiity over the
five-year period, therefore the scenarios outlined above
are the only ones that have been specifically tested.
Based on the results of their assessment, the Directors
have a reasonable expectation that the Company will be
able <o continue In operation and meet its habihitues as
shey fall due over the five-year period of their assessmen:.

Approval of Strategic Report

The Group Strazegic Report was approved by the Board
and signed on its behalf by

Michael Wrobhel

Chairman

729 June 2072
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Energy Performance/SAP Ratings

Carbon Reduction — EPC/SAP Ratings

Civitas Portfolio {domestic and non-domestic) Energy Performance
Certificates (EPC) — March 2022,

Alongside increasing supply of social housing for vulnerable adults, Civitas
continues to improve the overall energy performance, with a strong focus
on properties with EPC ratings D and E, through active asset management,
including property improvement works, renovations and scheduled
post-completion works.
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As shown in the table below, the energy performance of Civitas portfolio compares favourably against the
performance across all housing tenures as reported in the 2020/21 English Housing Survey (EHS). Civitas SSH
properties have a larger proportion of detached and semi-detached properties compared to social rented and
private rented dweliings.

Comparable EPC/SAP Ratings
by tenure (%)! (domestic/homes only)

_Energy Performance Certification Band

Mean

SAP

: o A/B C D E F G _ Rating

Owner cccupied 31 392 464 86 2.2 05 653
Private rented _ 24 394 443 96 34 08 647
Social rented o o 29 626 309 26 08 02 698
All tenures _ 29 432 434 7.8 2z 05 661

Civitas domestic . ns5 380 373 131 0.0

2207 SLNNOCOOY NV L4043y
Od DNISNHOH TVIOS SYLIaD

1 Source Enghsh Housing Sutvey, 2020 Enetgy efficiency rahng bands by tenure (Annex Table 2.8) & Mean SAP raung by tenure (Annex Tabie 27)
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TAS SEMCLAL M ISING P

The Portfolio’s Carbon Footprint

as at 31 March 2022

Tonnes {TCO,) per Civitas Tenancy

March 2022

2.65

tnergy Jerformance Cerficates (SPCs) are detalled reports
in:o the energy efficiency of a property or balding. =«
requires trained assessors to examine the key items in the
property such as any heating and cooling systems, the
presence and levels of the insulation. the type of glazing
and matenal of the window frames, as well as the hot
water and lightung systems. =7Cs are divided into two
further subcategornes, 2Jomestic and Non-Domesuc.
Jomestic EPCs (Jlusirate the efficiency rating of
self-comtained houses and apartments. Non-Jomesuc,
provide ratings for bulldings with more extensive

March 2021
273

Source. Civinas refained EPC data

comrmunal areas that are usually served by more complex
heanng and cooling systems

The energy assessment for non-domestic buldings akes
much longer than a domesuc bunlding 1o inspect, evaluate
and preduce. The ingpection and daza inputing 1s more
de:ailed than a domes:ic property and will include precise
lighning type, building orlen:ation, solar gain. window
frames e1c. Consequently, the resulting recommendatons
are more detailed than with a domes:ic ERC.

Civitas EPC Distribution (Domestic/Non-Domestic) — March 2022

B Non-domestic/Higher Acvity [l Domestic/Homes

0.0
Aoz

B
C
.
E
0.0
Floo
0.0
Gl o
Domestic/Homes

These refer 1o dwellings, whether a house or aparmen:
where one heallng sysiem serves a single household. “or
Cwtas, these properies have specialis: adapiations and
care provision bu: are sull regarded as domestic homes,

Jomesic properies ypiweally use less enetgy and have
lower carbon fooiprinis than non-domesuc/higher
AUy properies,

- 39.1

. ..d' .“l‘ ) 42.6
38.0

373

Source Civitas tetained EPC data

Non-domestic/higher acuity

These are larger properias which generally have
addizional speciahs:/communal facihizies with higher
energy udse This includes indusinal kirchens, back house
facilimes plusg extensive rehabilizalion services




E.ON Project Results (Phase 1) and Next Steps

Tollowing the successiul envivuingtital improvemen:
pilot studies, Civitas worked with 5.ON to idenufy

55 properties actoss the porifolio that could benefit

from energy improvement measures including Solar 2V
{Solar Photovoitaics) panels. A framework agreemen: was
signed with E.ON n June 2021 1o deliver enhancements
at no cost 1o underlying Approved Provider partners and
Phase ! commenced in August 202 with detailed retrofit
surveys targeting initial measures including:

e Cawvity Wall insulation
o _of insulaton
¢ Lxternal Wall ‘nsulation
Alr Source Heat 2ump
Solar PV and batery storage

The nittative offered 1s a great opportuntty for our
residents to really benefi: from longer serm savings on
energy bills - at no additional cos: 10 them. Civitas 18
acuvely working towards a net 7ero target, and this 1s
another important milestone o lowenng the por:folio
carbon footpnn:, but 1o also ensure residen's are geting
the maost out of these free works.

it was recogniged a: the onset tha: detalled consideration
of each indrndual dwelling 1s the key 1o making large.
cost-effective carbon dioxide emissions savings. “or
example suitable sizes for solar panels are usually on strong
roof structures where the panels can be installed facing
scuth to south-east and with a gocd means of access.

The retrofiz surveys and detailed assessmen's undertaken
by =.CN have helped to refine the Phase ' implementauon
programme and identify the bes: method for reducing
the total carbon dioxide emissions {and fuel cos:s)
associated with individual properties over the medium

ot long term. Diagnoses has been broadened o include
consideration of:

The detailed retrofit surveys exercise

14 properties
Confirmed adequate

CW1 Insulations (post
retrofit surveys)

101 properties

Completed Surveys

e future improvement opportunities, which should not
be blocked by more immediate projects

e opporunities for integrating energy measures with
other bullding work as required

This has enabled EON 10 provide improvement
recommendanons that are aligned with the long-term
needs of the building and of its cccupan:s.

Jesplie access Constrains to protect vulnerable residents
at the properties during the COVID-9 restrictions, EON
surveyors complered 101 retrofit surveys as at 31 March
2022. The number of surveyed properties was increased
primarily to replace properties tha: were either deemed
unviable for the proposed energy measures or where
‘he measures were already 1n place but had not been
captured on the tnergy Performance Certificaes.

The completed surveys identified Imrted opporntunities
-0 cost-effecuvely undertake installation of External Wall
Insulation and Air Soudrce Heat pumps during Phase .
The installation of solar PV and battery storage has been
completed at 14 properties with further installations
instructed at 29 properties but awaiting mstallation of
1solator swirches. The Energy Regulator (OTGEN) supulate
that 1solator switches can only be installed by the bill
paver's enargy supplier.

Cwvitas acnon 18 helping o reduce househcld energy nlls
10 {18 vulnerable residents and ease financial pressures
paracularly in the light of even sieeper increases projected
to come into force in the Auwumn when the energy price
cap 1s set to nise further This 1s essential to help people
with rising energy costs and 0 mitigate against rising
prices that could leave many vualnerable people 1n fuel
poverty.

20 properties 43 properties

Contirmed adequate Solar PV and Battery
Loft Insulation (post Storage (completed/
retrofit surveys) underway)

“I'he delivery of the in1mal phase of the programme has sirengthened the collaboration berween 3.ON and Civizas. The
learnings have binlt the sold foundazion and road map 1o move forward with fature deploymen: of energy saving

measures to achieve Civilas net-zero target.”

Mark Antcliff

Business Development Manager — 5.0ON ‘ns:allation Services.

Environmental improvement
works underway
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Case Study

Property
=1ress Jrvn JeTen
Project Overview

Detached House —

Detached House - Detached House -

ite bedrooms nsuite bedrooms
Nation following pos:

CO, REDUCTION €O, REDUCTION €O, REDUCTION

EPC

C (previously E) | B (previously E} ) 8 {previcusly C)
SAP Score

70 (previously 82 .. - [ 88 (previously 46) R 84 (previousiy 77

Clean Energy Strategy to achieve minimum EPC “A-C”
by 2030 - 5 years ahead of Government deadline.

2022 2024 2026 2028 2030
(Phase 4) (Phase 6) (Fhase 8) {Phase 10}
Phase 2 Programme Improvement Measures:
20022 i T all ins: N
. C?mmenced Aprii 2022 e Caviiy Wall insulasion 2,000 'I‘Coz
& C.120 measures across * lofr insulanion Target Carbon
6C properies e =External Wall insulation Emissions reduction

+ Targe: ¢ reduce carbon
amissians ak 60 properues
by 25%

e Ar Source Hea:t ump
e Solar ?V and 3atery Storage

Government Grant Funding Sources:
e Sncial =ousing Decarbonsation Fand

e nergy Company Obhgation (mCO} 4

¢ Other Grants Annicipated

Towards Net Zero




Social Impact

Social Impact — Publication of The Good Economy Report — Published

June 2022

The Good Economy (TGE) — June 2022

TGE, independent sccial impact advisory firm, assessed Civitas’ performance against its stated
impact objective and the target cutcomes to which the Company aims to contribute.

THE
GOOD

ECONOMY

TGE considers that “The Fund is moving ‘Civitas’ porticlioc provides homes “The retrofit effort shouild
Civitas has made a in a positive direction  for people with an identified contribute to improving
positive contribution  in its contribution to need for housing and support.” the energy efficiency of
to meeting its impact  increasing the supply Civitas' properties.”
objectives in the past  of social housing.” .
12 months.

Impact Objective Outcomes

@

Social Need

Provide housing
that meets an
identified social
need

40% of residents
living in Civitas
propcertics receive
aver 50 hours of
care per week.

82% of residents
aged between
20 and 49

(o]

Supply
Increase the
supply of
social housing
across the UK
particularly
for vulnerable
people

41% cf propertics
new to sogial
housing at the point
of acquisition

69% of propertics
in the 40% most
deprived local
authorities

Quality

Improve the
quality of social
housing

Civitas have worked

with APs, signing

off on adaptions to
ensure properties
continue to meet the
changing needs of
residents

B87% of respondents
reported that they
were satisfied with
the quality of their
homes

Contribute
Towards

0Qo
O M

Wellbeing

Improve the
wellbeing of
residents

°J8

Value

Offer value for
money for the
public purse

53% of respondents
reported an
improvement in
their independence
between

their previous
accommeodation and
their current home

£3.51 is created
in social value
for every £1

of annualised
Investment
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how the provision of a decent home, with taillored care

most vulnerable people in our society. Through the lens
and words of the story:ellers. it helps 10 highhghtissues
g0 many could easily take for granted and hopefully
sumulate fresh ideas that contribute 1o solutions.

The book launched at the Welicome Trust on Tuesday.
7 December 202 offered the opporunity 10 meet and
listen 10 some of the famihes and individuals a: the
heart of the stones. The even: didn't disappoint - from
‘he 67 year old cover woman having her first keys 0
her own home 10 DJavid and ".auren - childhocd friends
now engaged o be married. The commen thread is
the unsung heroes - the carers and their familhes who
believed in them and became their advocates pressing
on against all odds.

“I love my job,” says June, the manager of
Cornwall Court. ‘I would work seven days
a week, because this isn't just a job, you're
making such a difference to people.” She is
a great believer in the ethos of supporting
people to live independently in the
community. T've been in the world of care
for 37 years and have seen a lot of older
people put in institutions. Anyone who
was “mad” was locked up...and left under
the radar. We've made such a difference
to Ruth,” June continues. ‘She was buzzing
the day she got into the bath on her own.
If things like that had happened when she
was in her late teens, she could have been
living on her own now. She might have
been married.”

June. Ruth's manager

‘A Place for Me challenges preconceptions and tllusirates

and support, promotes the independence of some of the

Book Launch for “A Place For Me”

“David and Lauren chose
their engagement ring
from F. Hinds, a jeweller

in Redditch. We threw

a surprise engagement
party for them at Lyn's
house at Christmas. David
went down on one knee in
front of friends and family
and proposed to Lauren
officially. It was lovely. If
everything goes fine, they'll
get married in a few years.”

_ynne



An extract from “A Place for Me’:

Hope (a pseudonym), 33 shorly afier .0am on a snowy mormng in the
win:er of 2012, two pclicemen and rwo docrors knocked on the door of Hope's
home in Consett, County Durham. Jope, then 24, was ins:ructed to get in the
car. . didn't even have time te get ready’ she says, now. Hope was sectioned.

She was drniven for an hour to a psychiainc hospital whera she was detained
1n a locked ward. This was to be Hope's home for five years. Hope grew up in
Stanley. near Gateshead, in County Durham. the second of four girls.

=er father worked in a fish and chip shop and her mother was a carer for
=ope's grandmother. When she was severn, teachers began 10 suspec: she
had mild learning disalilities and she was moved 10 a special school.

At "6 she found a class for young people with learning disabihinies at a
mansiream college in Consoett. But the size of the colleye was roo much for
her and she dropped out after a year.

In 2009, aged 2, Hope left home and moved into suppor:ed accommaodation
in Stanley. She was evicted after two months. A resident hit her, and she gave
him a shove. 'He went flying. He must have not been good on his fee:’ She
lasted two days in her second home. 1 got sexually abused by one of the lads
Hving there, she says.

The third home was happier, and Sope settled down. 3u: after a year ot so,
“ope breoke down durnng a session with her counsellor t ranspired she was
beiwng groomed by a member of staff who had sexually assaul:ed her twice.
‘| thought he was a friend, she says.

By now she was in a fragile condition. ' was a mess. Lashing out, kicking ouz,
jus: really hurting people because everyone hurt me ! was constan:ly getiing
arrested and going to cour:

She tried to ake her life. Afler being admitted to the psychiainic hospital in
2072, she was diagnosed with paranoid schizophrenia. emotionally unstable
perscnality disorder, and post traumasic stress disorder. Hope was no: a
docile patien:. 't was angry with the world, { was apset. | had no-one to turn
to.! She saw her mother once a month, b, she says, ~ didnt see my dad or
sisters for nearly five years. | would fust look a: four walls, and -hink, wha:am
T fighting for? There was nothing, jus: that feeling of being sad. valnerable
and lonely.’

'n 2016, the hospital psychiammnsts planned to wransfer Zope to a high secure
anit in Wales. 3u: one consuliant took her aside. ‘She said. “'f you take your
medicaon, do your counselling sessions, you could be out of here. [f you
carry on, you'll be sent away.” She changed my life’

In 20:7, only a year laver. aged 29, =ope was able 1o move into Clark House.
She ives 1n a one-bedroom flat on the ground floor, surrounded by her
artwork and motvasional guotes: 3elieve in yourself. You can do it "My social
worker said. “T1l find a good. safe place for you" and hones:ly, | love 17 here,’
she says.

She likes drawing. making things. baking. Hope has a carer 24 hours a day.
‘Sometimes she'll wake you in the nigh:' says Michelle, her support worker,
‘because she's having flashbacks and needs reassurance and we get up and
have a cup of tea. - don't want people ro go through what . wen: through. sad
with no hope! she says. I thought there was nothing out there for me, until
_came here. Now, . wan: other people 10 know, there1s a place out there for

you!

?aul Bridge lasinched "A Place for Me”
at the Wellcome Foundation

“Stories matter. Many stories
matter. Stories have been
used to dispossess and to
malign, but stories can also
be used to empower and to
humanize. Stories can break
the dignity of a people, but
stories can also repair that
broken dignity.”

{Chimamanda Adichie 'The danger of
a single story’, TRD Global 2009)
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Social Impact

Charitable Partnerships

The Company has supported and worked with the following charnties since [PO:

The House of
St Barnabas

JEETHCE LN

\/\/ISF

RETWORK *OR WOMEN
woskiu W aSe L HOUSING

Little..
Spnjoutg

the

care
workers
charity

Crisis

Crisis is a national chanty for the homeless that works to provide vital support so that people
can rebuild their lives and are supported out of homelessness for good. Civitas has sponsored
Crisis over the last five years and the two organisauons regulariy collaborate on the emerging
knowledge required to undertake advanced homelessness schemes. These are vital to enable
people who have been at nsk of or experienced homelessness to rebuild their ives but require
considerable care and support in addition to a safe home in the community.

The Choir with No Name
The Choir with No Name 1s an organisation that runs choirs for people who have expetienced
homelessness and other forms of marginalisation

« Big increase in average weekly atrendance since return to indoeor meeings post COVID-18

» New Cardiff Choir launched 1n November 2021

+ Steady progress with eszablishment of new communty chowrs in Watford and Coventry.

The House of §t. Barnabas

The House of St. Barnabas is a social enterprise member's club that helps London's homeless :
people back into work, through its Employment Academy.
employment Preparation Programme:

= 17 participants successfully graduated from EPP 18 and EPP 19

= 100% of graduates were successfully matched with a mentor

= Employment and Progression

« 33% of working graduates are earning London Living Wage

= 23% of working graduates are 1n good work and a good home

= 70% of mentor relationsghips with graduates last for at least 6 months
» HQOSB have supporied a total of 93 people over the year.

WISH 15 a membership-based netwark for women working across every disciphne of UX housing.
with a focus on championing posiive ouicomes for women working in the sector Clviias suppor:
conmnbuies 1o the champloning of posiive ouicomes for women working in the secor.

Little Sprouts Health and Wellbeing Charity

Little Sprouts Health and Wellbeing Charity are dedicated to improwving the health and
wellbeing of our community through cooking workshops. recipe bags, community food shops.,
“check and chatter” programmes and surplus food collecuen and distribuuon. Civitas supports
hirde sprouts with the operational costs of the charity, particularly during COVID-19. The funds
were used 1o open a further community shop which uses food as an engagemen: 100} o help
address physical, social. mental and financial issues.

The Care Workers’ Char?y_
The Care Workere' Charry (CWC! exists 10 help care and suppor: workers through enas using
financal suppor: and sappor: centres. Civiias sappor: funds raining of up 1o 20 menal health
firsT aiders to provide one 0 each CWC member company, providing “hem with the rraiming and
“aols 1o provide beser mental healh suppor: o <he care workers,



Governance

Frameworks

In addition to the ESG indices, Civitas parﬁciipaes; in the fblfo@ir?g?rérmeworks

which don't issue a grading.

IMPACT
MANAGEMENT
PROJECT

Impact Management
Project

The mpact Management Project

is a.

« Global forum for buillding
COMNsSensys on how o measure,
manage and repor: impact

« Practinoner Community of
over 3,000 organisations and
investors

« Provides a set of norms
and a shared and holiglic
anderstanding of impact

+ Hve core dimensions of impact

Wha:? Who? How much?
Contnibusiion and Risk.

Sector Specific

i Operating Principles for

* " Impact Management

The Operating
Principles for Impact
Management

The Operanng nnciples are a

framework for inves:ors for the

design and implemenianon

of ther impacT managemert:

SYSIEMS.

= Global foram for nnlding
cansensis on how To measire,
manage and repormmpac:

= 2rovides a get of notms
and a shared and holsnc
understanding of impac:

« e core dimensions of impact
Wha? Who? Sow rmuach?
Conminrmon and sk

SUSTAINABLE

GOALS

United Nations
Sustainable
Development Goals

n 2015 UN countmes adopted
the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable
Development and 115 17
Sustamable Development Goals
{'SDGs):

= The $2Gs ¢all for worldwide
ACION aMong JOVernments,
business and civil sociery to end
poverty

Create a Iife of dignity and
opporuunity for all, within the
beundanes of the planert

No official process for
supporing the SOGs
Companies are encouraged 0
select which goals are aligned
with their business achnviues
and report on how they are
working ‘o achieve them.

C8H is an early adop:er of the Sustainability Reporang Standard for Social Housing (the Standard). The S:andard,
developed shrough a collaboeration between housing associations. banks, lenders and investors, has over 00
signed up early adopters and endorsers.

« Over “90 signed up adoprers and 20 endorsers

» 12 themes and 48 critena for E8G reporiung by housing associanons
« Qualtatve and quantizative and are idenzified as core and enhanced requirements o demonstrate

strong £SG performarnce

soclal and governance {53G) performance

Will help the sector establish a credible, meaningful. and consistent approach o reporang 1s environmental,

« Ahgned o m:ernanonal frameworks and standards including the United Natlons Sustainable Development Goals
{L,NSDGs), Global Reporing 'niziauve (GRI, SASE {(Sustamability Accounnung Standards Board), (CMA {Internanonal
Capizal Market Assoclation) and LVA (Loan Marke: Association) Prninciples
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United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals (“UN SDGs”) Alignment

Impact Objectives * UN SDGs
; : Providing high quality. energy efficient homes
@ gcqtll_lre;hgh incorporating adaptations for people with
uality-Homes lilelong care needs

Target properties which address the needs.
and improve health and wellbeing of
vulnerable individuals requiring a high levei

of care 3 =ﬂ% ﬁ:"‘""
o o o Local job creation during construction /\/
Satisty Social Need Employment via Approved Providers/ L ‘I'
refurbishments and care providers on

responsible employment terms. including
living wage

Oifer local apprenticeships and contribute to
local community events

% Providing Value for Morney for public care 1 e
; and housing budgets by enabling vulnerable ..
Provide Value for Money individuals to move out to instituticnal and M"ii
residential settings

Buy and convert existing and newly

Increase Supply completed properties from private to sccial
housing sector in perpetuity

Ensure Approved Providers and Care
Providers have the capability and capacity

to deliver high-quality service and outcomes TN
@U Build Quality Partnerships for residents over the long-term

Green lease terms to be agreed with the @ 9

counterparties

Adopt sustainability policy at governance level

Governance

Counterparty Governance

CIM. the Company's [nvestment Adviser. has engaged actively with its Approved Provider partners threughout the last
year providing shared advice and learning through:

Weekly meetings with Monthly compliance Monthly and quarterly Regular seminars
meetings to review

key operational staff monitoring
strategic priorities

and key performance
indicators

This counterparty engagement has ensured that CIM are able to proactively work with its Approved Providers with
any matters arising to support a continued high level of operational performance. This support builds on our
long-term relationship with the senior management and helping to build resilience within the organisations.

Monthly Seminars

C M has contnued o under-ake monthly gqovernarce CO hoss quarerly Approved Provider serminars on g

and healh and safety monroring across the porifolio. regular basig, The nex: seminar s expecied o be hald
in Q4 2027

Approved Providers have demonstrazed resihence
and conunaed high levels of comphiance with health
& gafery standards.



Governance

Indices

CIM's implementation of the Board’'s commitment tc continuous improvement in its
approach to ESG integration remains core to the investment strategy. Over the last
year, we have engaged with ESG Rating Agencies such as GRESB (formerly Global
Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark), MSCI (Morgan Stanley Capital International),
Sustainalytics, and EPRA sBPR.

S
s
T B
G RESGBE
What is it?

GRESB is the leading
sustainability benchmark
for the global real estate
secior. Assessmen:s ake
place annually and are
guided by factors thas
investors and the indus:iry
consider to be matenal
1ssues in the sustainabilicy
performance of real
assetinvesiments The
bhenchmark assessment
covers more than 850
property companies.
REITs, fund and
developers, are covered
within GRES2 Public
sclosure.

How is CSH
rated?

« C5= achieved A score
folownng the GR-53
2ablic Disclosare
Aesesameant 2020

CJear Group Averadge
seora of O

mpravemen: frovm 3
SCQre 1T presitous year

CHm s 11 Srd posimon
within e Companson
Grmp (L < Fexidennal

What is it?

MSCI ESG Ratings
provide insight o =eG
nsks and opporainnes
withim mul-: s class
portohos. V8C rate 4,000
compames aceording o
their exposare o mdusry
sigmificant 285G nske and
“heir abaility (o manage
‘hoze nsks relauve o
ndusiry peers.

How is CSH
rated?

= CSE MSCIRSGraung of
BB.

Cii hag made relevan:
policies avallable to
M3CT and other raiing
agencies through
hosing on the CM
weabsite,

‘This should Le reflected
n funare ratung
aszessment.

Y SUSTAINALYTICS

# Hasingemr ccragany

What is it?

Sustainalytics measure
how well companies
proactively manage the
environmental, social
and governance issues
thart are most matenal
10 their business. 118
based on a siructured,
olyective and transparent
methodology. The ESG
ratings provide an

assessment on companies’

ability to mitigate
risks and capiralise on
opportinias.

How is CSH

rated?

« C5- hag an -5G Jisk
Raung score of
16.6 (Low Risk) on
Sastanalyacs.

EPRA

EWRBPEAN PUBLIC
REAL ESTATE AJ3GCIATION

What is it?

EPRA sBPR Guidelines
provide a consisten:

wray of measunng
sustainalbliy
parformance The nP<A
3373 are raising he
standards and consiaiency
of sugtmnabiliy reporing
for isted real estaze
COMPAanies across Sirope.
nrecogniion of propery
companies that have
successfully adopted The
5224 3°R Gindelmes and
which have submisied for
an assessmen: of therr
verformance agains: ‘he
gutdelines, U248 hold
annial 522A 393 Awards

The surveyed companies
are awarded erher a Gold.
Silver, or 3ronze Award.

How is CSH
rated?

» CSH submission o =2RA
for assessment under
the guidelines remains
under constderation.
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Corporate
Governance

Corporate Governance
Board of Jireciors
Repor: of the rectors
Repor: of the Audir and ¥anagemen: Sngagermen: Commitiee
2epor: of the Nomunation and Rernuneration Commitee
Corporaze Governance Satemen:
Directors Remunerailon 2epor
Sratemen: of Directors’ Responsibiines

- Allernanve nvesimen: fund Managers Jireciive

ndependen: Auaditors Report



Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the period and up to the
date of signing the financial statements were:

Michael Wrobel, Chairman

Michael has over 40 years' experience in the invesiment

indusiry as a portiolio manager and running institutiona:

businesses and retail businesses a: Fide iy and Gartmore He

serves as a Tustee director of the BAT UK Pension Fund. the Male 60%
Deuische Bank UK pension schemes and as a trusiee of the

Cooper Gay ([To.dings) Limited Retiremen: Benelits Schome. Female 40%
Michae has oreviously served as a Non-Executive Director of
several invesimen: trus:is and a numbper of industry associations.
Michae. has an M A, in Economics from Cambridge Universiy.

Michae. was appoin:ed o the Board on 24 October 2016 and has
served as Chairman since his appeiniment.

Caroline Gulliver, Director

Cargline is a chartered accountant with over 25 years' experience atr Emst & Young LLP. latiery as an
executive director oetore leaving in 2012. During that time, she specialised in the agset management
sector and deve.oped extensive experience of invesimen: Tusts. She was a member of various technical
comrmitiees of tne Association of Invesimen: Companies She is a.so a non-execurive director and audit
commiztee chair for JP Morgan Glopa: Emerging Marke's [ncome Trus: ple, International Biotechnology
Trus: pic and abrdn European Logiszics Income plc.

Caro.ine was appointed 1o the Board on 24 Cctoper 2C15 and nas served as Audit and Managemen:
Engagement Commitiee Chairman since her appoiniment.
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Peter Baxter, Director

Pezer has over 30 years experience in the investment managemen: industry. He is a director of Snowhall
Impact Managemen! Lid, a social impact investiment organisation, and a rustee of Trust for London, a
cnaritap.e foundation. He is aiso a non-executive director of B.ackRock Greater Furopean Invesiment
Trust ple. Previcus.y. ne served as Chief Executive of Old Muiua® Asset Managers (UK) Lid. ang has
worked for Schroders and Hil. Samue! in a varnety of invesiment roles He holds an MBA from London
RBuasiness Schoo! and is an associate of the Society of Invesiment Professiona:s.

Peier was appointed 1o the Board on 24 Octoboer 2016 and is the Senior Independent Direcior

Alastair Moss, Director

Alastair is a properiy development lawyer with over 20 years expcrience and is Co-Head of Real Estate
al Memery Crysia. He was a non-executive direc:or of Notting Hi.” Genesis Trust [ic is also a former
Chairman of the Investment Commitee of the City of London Corporation. its Properly Investmen: Board
and its Planning and Transpor:ation Commiztec. He is a Trustee of Marshall's Charity He has a’so been
a board member of Soho Housing Asgociation and was a member ot the Area Board of CityWest Homes
He was a Councior a: Wesmminster City Council for 12 years, including his tenure as Chairman of the
Planming & City Developmen: Commitiee.

Alasiair was appointed to the Board on 24 Qctober 2015.

Alison Hadden, Director

Alison nas over 30 years cxperience in ‘he nousing induasiry and has he.d a number of Executive
posiiions al several ma‘or housing associations. inclucing CEO at Paradigm Housing In these roles, she
has worked with many of the s:akeholders in the indusiry, including the Regalator of Socia: Housing.
She is currently a non-execulve director and Vice Caair of Yorxshire Housing. a 20.0C0-home nousing
association opcrating in the Yorkshire area, Vice Chair and a member of the Governance Commitiee of
Peaks and Plains Housing and Chair of Heyford Regeneration a for-profit Housing Association operating
in the Cherwe.! area.

Alison was appointed 0 ine Board on 21 November 2019,
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Report and the audited consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Principal Activities

The Company is a closed-ended mvesiment CCmpany
and is a RE!IT which was incorporated in Sngland and
Wales on 29 September 2016. The Company 1s the holding
company of a number of subsidiaries and its Ordinary
shares were admutted to trading on the Main Markert

of the London Stock Exchange on '8 November 2016.
The Company inves:s in properties or property-holding
S5PVs, either directly or via a wholly-owned subsichary,
i accordance with the Company's invesiment objective
and policy.

Business Review

A review of the business and furure developments is
contained in the Chairman's Statement and nvestmen:
Adwvisers Repor:. The princaipal risks and uncer:ainues are
detailed on pages 38 1o 42. See noze 33.0 for a summary of
“he post balance shee: events.

Results and Dividends
The resul:s for the year are shown on page 3.

The following dividends were paid on the Ordmary
shares dunng the year,

Fourth Quartérly 77:{.35;3 perrsharei

dividend o paid on 71 June 2027
First Quarterly ) 7738'/51rper share
rdi\_r_i_ggpd B _ pawd on 6 Seprember 2021
Second Quarterly - 1.387511“ per share
_dividend ___paid on 13 December 2021
Third Quarterly ) T 1387513_ per share
d:ividem_:l _paid on If March 2022

Since the year end, the Company has declared the
following dividend:

Fo urth auartéfly
Eiv_idend ]

.3875p per share
patd on 28 June 2022

No fing] dividend 15 being recommended on the Ordinary
shares.

Directors
The members of the 3oard are liszed on page 7.

All Direcrors served “hroughour the penod under review.

The 3card consis:s solely of non-execusive Jirectors,
each of whom s independen: of the ‘nvestmen: Adviser
The Company has no execusive direc:ors or employees

n accordance with 3oard policy. all Direciors wiil retire
and, being eligible. wnll stand for re-elecuon at the AGV.

Performance evaluanion of the 3oard. 1:s Commitees and
indwidual direciors 18 carried oudt 1n accordance with *he
procedire set 0ul on page /0.

No Director s under a contrac: of service with the
Company and no JIirector or any persons connected
with them had a mazterial interest In the sransactions
and arrangements of the Company. Details of Directors’
remuneraion are get oul in the Jireciors Remuneraion
Report ont pages 73 :a 76.

The beneficial interes:s of the Directors in the securties
of the Company are set outn the Direciors’ Remunerauon
Report ont page 76.

Through their Letiers of Appointment, the Company
has provided indemnities 1o the Jireciors, to the exten:
permitted by law and the Company’s Aricles, in respect
of liabilities which may anse 1n connection with claims
relating o their perfermance or the performance of the
Company whils: they are Direc:ors. There are no other
gualifying third pary indemntties in force

The general powers of the Directors are conraned
within the relevant UK legislazion and the Company's
Aricles of Assoclation. The Directors are enutled w0
exercise all powers of the Company, subject to any
limitations imposed by the Aricles of Association or
applicable legislaton. As set out ort page 59, the Articles
of Associanon may only be amended by way of a special
resolusion of shareholders.

Capital Structure

Issue of shares

At the AGM held on 72 Sepiember 2021, the Directors were
authorised to 1ssue equity securilies up 10 an aggregate
nominal amoun: of £1,244,922 (being approximately 20% of
the 1ssued Ordinary share capual).

The Company was also adthorised 1o disapply
pre-emption rnights in respec: of equiy securities and
t0 18sUe equIty securiiles for cash up ‘o an aggregate
nominal amoun: equal 10 £622.46° {being approximately
“0% of the issued Ordinary share capr:al).

Juring the year, 565.00C Ordinary shares were 1ssued
from Treasury under these authontues. These shares were
1ssued at a price of no: less than the net asse: value per
share a: the ime of 1ssue plus an amount o cover the
cos:. ollowing these transac:ions. the Company held no
shares 1in ireasury. |

The equry 1ssuance was made with a view 1o balanong
‘he premium o NAV and sansfying marke: demand for
addtacnal shares in the Company.

Az the AGV held on 22 3epember 2027, the Company
soughs approval for a resolution o disapply pre-empiion
righ:s on an addizional 0% of the Company's 1ssued
Ordinary share capi:al. This resclunion falled as votes
represenung 27...% of the to:al voies cas: were received
against 1n.

Collowing the AGV, the Company. via 1is corporate
brokers engaged with s larges: shareholders who had
vored agains: this resoluiion.



Report of the Directors continued

The Board understands that these shareholders followed
PIRC's or their own internal reccmmendation to vote
agamst this resclution as when combined with the
standard "0% pre-emption disapplication resolution 1z
would have resulted 1n the Company having authority to
issue up 0 20% of its own shares pre-empuvely.

Az the AGM 1n 2022 the 3card proposes 10 seek
shareholder approval for a standard 0% pre-emption
disapplication resoluton,

The authority to issue shares will expire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming AGM. Proposals for the renewal of

the Directors’ authority 1o issue shares will be set out in
‘he Notice of AGM for 2022, which will be circulated o
shareholders in due course.

Purchase of own shares

At the AGM heid on 22 September 2021, the Direclors
were granted the authority o buy back up to 93.306.960
Ordinary shares, being 14.99% of the Ordinary shares in
issue at the nme of the passing of the resplunon.

Juring the year as the Company's share price fell

below Net Asset Value per share. the 3oard instigazed

a share buyback programme. under which a to7al of
16,025,000 shares have been purchased into ‘reasury as at
31 March 2022

The authority to buy back up 0 93,506,960 shares will
expire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM, when
a resolution for its renewal will be proposed. Further
information will be contained n the Notce of AGM,
which will be circulaied o shareholders in due course.

Current share capital

As at 31 March 2022, there were 622,462,380 Ordinary
shares 1n issue. of which 10.025,000 shares were held in
treasury. The total voting righ:s of the Company as at
31 March 2022 was 612,436,380.

Shareholder Rights

Ordinary shares

Each Ordinary shareholder 1s enutled 0 one vote on a
show of hands and, on a poll, to one vote for every Ordinary
share held The right t0 attend and vote at general mesetings
of the Company may be restncted where a shareholder has
failed to provide informaon pursuan: to a notice served
under section 793 of the Companies Ac: 2006. The Ordinary
shares carry the ngh: <o recerve dividends declared by

the Company. Provided the Company has sazisfied all of 1zs
habilities, durnng a winding-up of the Company, the holders
of Ordinary shares are enutled 1o all of the surplus assets of
*he Company.

Transfers of shares

There is ne restrictton on the transfer of the Company's
shares other than transfers to more than four joint
transferees and transters of shares which are not fully
paid up or where the transferor or any other person
whom the Company reasonably believes 1o be interested
1n the transferor's shares has been duly served with a
notice pursuans: to section 793 of the Companies Act 2006.

There are no special rights with regard o control
attached to secunues; no agreemen's between holders
of securnties regarding their transfer known ‘o the
Company; and no agreements which the Company

1§ party o that might affec: i:s control following a
successful takeover bid.

Articles of Association

The Company's Arucles of Association may only be
amended by a special resoluzion at a general meeting of
the sharehoclders.

As at the date of signing this Reporr, the toial voting
nghts of the Company was 6.0,736,380.
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Management Arrangements

Investment Adviser

The 3oard has appeinied the Invesunen: Adviser, Civitas
[nvestment Management Jimied, to provide investment
advice and 10 asse: manage the propeny portfolio

and the associated day-to-day acuvities, including
managemen: of tenanted properties and marketing
activines. CIM 1s a spec:alist investor 1n social housing
property, with a focus on specialist social housing and
has extensive experence n social housing and real
estate investmens:.

The dutes of C'M include the sourcing of investment
opporiunities that meet the investment critena of the
Company. contrelling the acquisitton of approved
properties, asset managemen: of all properties within
‘he porfolio, ongomng montoring of the properties and
senants, maintaining compliance wtith all relevan: nules
and regulations. and providing marketing and investor
relarions services to the Company.

Desails of the fees payable 1o the nvestmen: Adviser are
described in note 8.0 of the financial s:atemen:s. The
hasis for the calculation of the ‘'nvestment Adviser's fees
is based upon the IFRS NAV.

The agreement with CIM 1s terminable on not less than 12
months’ notice by either party, such nolce not 1o expire
earlier than 30 May 2024,

The performance of the Invesiment Adviser has

been reviewed on an ongowng basis throughout the
penod by *he 3oard a: s quarteriy meetings. A formal
annual evaluation 1s also carried out by the Audiz and
Managemen: cngagement Comintitee,
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Report of the Directors continued

The Board considers a number of factors including
invesiment performance, the quality and quantity of
invesiment opporiunities presented, the skills and
expenence of key staff and ~he capability and resources
of the Investment Adviser to dehver sansfactory
performance for the Company. The Board 1s satisfied with
the performance of the ‘nvesiment Adviser and considers
its continued appointment 10 be in the best interes:s of
the Company and 11¢ shareholders.

AlIFM

G10 Capital _imited ("G10" or the "AIFM") has been
appointed as the Company’s AiTM with effect from

24 August 2017. The AITM currently receives a monthly
fee of 2.7 basis pown:s of the total Company NAV for
1758 services and the agreemen: 1s terminable on three
months notice by either party.

Depositary

‘ndos Financial Jimited was appointed as the Company's
Deposrtary with effect from ! june 2018. The Deposiary
provides cash monitoring, safekeeping and asset
verificasion and oversight funcuons as prescribed by the
Alrernative nvestment fund Managers Directive. The
Deposriary recewves an annual fee of £59,0C0, net of VAT,
plus 0.006% of the first £350 million of any new equity
cap:tal raiged per annum and G.003% of furher equuty
rased per annum, subjec: 10 a maximurm fee of £150,008
per annum_The agreemen: 1s ierminable on six months'’
nouce by erther party.

Administrator

The Company has appcinted Link Aliernatuve fund
Adminisirazors Limized ("Link") as the Adminisirator

of the Company and 1ts subsidianes, with effect from

28 february 208, to undertake the accountancy and other
adminisranive dunies of the Company. Link 1s a speclalist
administrazor for invesiment funds, providing support
funcnons and expertise tallored for this industry.

The Admunisirazor receves a fixed base fee for the
provision of 11s services to the Company as well as an
enutiement o addhitional vanabie fees for duties relaung
0 corpotate acuvities The agreemens is terminakble on at
leas: six months notice by elther party.

The dunes of the Adminustrator include the mamzenance
of all Company and subsidiary books and records,
excluding those maintained by the ‘nvesimen: Adviser,
monu:onng compliance with applicable relevan: rules
and regulaniong and other adminisirauive duties as
required.

Company Secretary

_ink Company Maers Limized wag appoin:ed as the
Company Secrezary o the Company with effect from

2.8 March 2018, The Secreiary receives a fixed fee for the
provision of 17s services 10 the Company. The agreemen:
wras for an imual penod of one year and thereafier
awomartically renews for successive periods of 12 months,
unless terminated by erther party on a: leas: six monshs’
netce,

Review of Service Providers

The performance of the service providers is reviewed

on an ongoing basls throughout the period by the

Audit and Management Zngagement Commiitee and
formally once a year. The Committee considers a number
of factors including performance of duties, the skills

and expenence of key staff, and <he capability and
resources of the service provider ‘o deliver satisfactory
performance for the Company. The Board is satuisfied with
the performance of the service providers appointed by
the Company and considers their continued appotn:ment
10 be In the bes! interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

Substantial Shareholdings

At 31 March 2022, the Company had been informed of
‘he following disclosable interests in the share capizal of
+he Company:

Number of Percentage of

Ordinaty Total Voling

.. ___ __  _ shares Rights

‘nvestec Wealth & Investmen: Limited 62..33.6°5 105

Skandinaviska tnskilda Banken A3 56.483.034 922

Standard Life Aberdeen plc 30.492.544 4.98

Massachuset:s financial 30,300,144 495
Services Company

BlackRock ‘nec. 27299476 348

Continuation Vote

n accordance with 1ts Articles, the 3oard will propose an
ordimary resolunion tha: the Company should conunue in
irs curren: form o shareholders a: the AGM ‘o be held on
5 Seprember 2022, and a* the AGM held every five years
thereafier. [f the resclution is not passed. the Directors are
required to formulaze proposals o be pat to shareholders
wiithin s1x months of such resolution being defeated for
the volurzary liquidation, unitisalion, reorganisaiion or
recongtnuciion of the Company.

Listing Rule 9.8.4

The listung rale 9.8.4 outlines a senes of requirernen:s for
lsted companies o disclose ceriain r:ems. The rectors
confirm tha: there are no disclosures required 1n relation
o Listing Rule 3.8.4.



Report of the Directors continued

Financial Instruments

The Company utilises financal instruments 1n 1ts
operations The financial mmstruments of the Company at
31 March 2022 comprised :rade recewvables and payables,
other debtors, cash and cash equivalents, non-current
barrowings, curren: borrowings and dertvatives.

Other than its fixed interest rate delsl [aulilies, i 1s the
Directors' opinion that the carrying value of all financial
instruments on ithe Consohidated Stazement of “inancial
Posttion 1s equal o their fair value.

For & more detailed analysis of the Company's financial
risk management, please refer o note 310 of the financial
statemens.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Beoard has considered the requuremenss to disclose
the annual guantity of ernissions tn :onnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent for activiiies for which the Company
1s responsible. The Board believes that the Company

has, from a formal reporung perspective, no repor:able
emussions as this repornting falls under the lessees’
responsibility as part of the terms of their fully repairing
and msuring leases; emissions produced from either

the registered office of the Company or from the offices
of other service providers are deemed 1o fall under the
responsibility of other parties; and the Company has not
leased or owned any vehicles which fall inside the scope
of the GHG Protoccel Corporate Standard. (n relauon 0
the Srreamlined Energy and Carbon Reporng (SECR),
implemen:ed by The Companies {(Directors’ Report) and
Limited Laability Partnerships (Znergy and Carbon Repor?)
Reqgulations 2018, for the year ended 4 March 2022 the
Group 1s considered io be a low energy user.

Regardless of the obliganons of other parties, the
Company takes the 1ssue of environmental enhancemen:
and emissions sernously as part of 1ts overall 28G strategy
and is evaluaing “he portfolio, working with housing
managers. to consider where 1* can bring abou: further
enhancements and improvemen:s.

Fur:her details can be found in the Environmen-al, Social
and Governance report on pages 45 ¢ 55,

Charitable Donations

in addition o its direct invesiments, the Company plays
a broader par: within the communities 1n which it
works. Whilst recognising the praciical imitations that
all financial inves:ors face, Civitas supports voluntary
organisations :hat are active within the broader housing
and homelessness environmen: Civiias also mmtends, as
part of 1:s broader financial and operational reporting, o
provide a commentary on the posisive social change
and impac: tha: resuits from the invesiments that have
been made

The following chantable donations were agreed during
the year:

_ Donation

Charity

Choir with No Name £15,000
Little Sprouts £5.000
WIS £.6,000
Total _ E26.000

Independent Auditors

n the case of each Jirector 1n office at the date the
Report of the Directors 15 approved:

e go far as the Director 15 aware, there 1s no relevan:
audit mformation of which the Group and Company's
auditor 1s unaware; and

¢ :hey have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as a Director in order (0 make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to eswablish thar
the Group and Company's auditors are aware of tha:
information.

PricewaterhouseCoopers "I.7 has expressed (s
willingness to continue to act as auditor of the Company
and a resolution for 11s re-appointment wilt be proposed
a: the 2022 Annual General Meeling.

Corporate Governance

The Corporate Governance Statemen:, the Report of the
Audt and Management Zngagemen: Commitiee and the
Direciors’ Remuneration Repor: form part of the Report of
the Directors.

Approval

The Repor: of the irectors has been approved by the
3oard.

3y order of the Board

Link Company Matters Limited
Company Secretary

29 June 2022
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Report of the Audit and Management

Engagement Committee

Introduction

The Audiz and Management kngagement Committee {the
“‘Committee”) oversees the financial reporting process for
the Company, with consideration of the internal controls
and risk managemen: of the Company, and oversight of
‘he Company's comphance with accounting standards
and regulatory requirements. : also oversees the
performance of the Investrmen: Adviser and the Company’s
administrative and company secre:anal support.

Composition and role of the Audit and

Management Engagement Committee

The Commitee is chaired by Caroline Gulliver and
compnses all the Directors. The Committee operates within
wrten erms of reference which are availlable on the
Company's websie as determined by the Board.

The principal funchons cf the Commitiee are wo

e oversee the financial reporung process for the
Company and monior the integniy of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group, including
thetr compliance with accounting siandards and
regulatory requirements:

« 10 adwise the Beard, where requested, on whether
the Annual Report and financial statements, taken as
a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and
provide the informanon necessary for shareholders
to assess “he Company's postuon and performance,
business model and strateqgy;

e review and monitor the internal financial control and
risk managemen: sys:ems of the Company:

e montor and review annually whether an internal
audit funcuon is required;

e review the nvesimen: Adviser's whistleblowing
arrangemen:s.

e approve the appoin men:, re-appoinimens: or
removal of the external audizor, and approve their
remuneration and terms of engagemen:;

e manage the relationship between the Company
and the external audriior, including reviewing their
mmdependence and objecuvity and the effeciveness of
‘he audiz process:

e develop and implemen: a polticy on the engagemen:
cof the external auditor o supply non-audit services;
and

e review and monor the performance of. and
contractual arrangemen:s with, the ‘nvesimen:
Adwviser. The ATV and other service providers.

=15 within the Commiee’s terms of reference for 1°s
members 10 seek independen: professional advice, a: “he
Company's expense, as required 1n *he furtherance of 178
dunes.

Meetings

The Commitee mee:s ‘wice a year; on both occasions,
par: of the mee:ing 15 held with the external suditor
without the Investment Adwiser presen:. The Commuitee
met twice 1n The financial year and the meelungs were
artended by each memlber as set out on page 69.

Performance Evaluation

The process for the evaluation of the performance of the
Committee is disclosed on page 70,

Risk Management and Internal Controi

The Company has an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluatng and managing the principal and emerging risks
faced by the Group. Further details can be found on pages
70 and 71,

The principal risks and uncerainties idennfied from the risk
register and a description of the Group's risk managemen?
procedures can be found on pages 38 to 42.

Activities during the year

The Commiztee considered the annual repor, interim
repors, any other formal financial performance
announcemen:s and any other mamners as specified
ander the Committee’s rerms of reference and reported 0
the Board on howr it discharged its responsiinliies.

The Commitzee discussed and considered the external
audn performance, objecuvity and independence. the
egxternal auditor re-appomimen:, acceunting policies and
Allemanve 2erformance Measures, sigmificant accounung
judgements and estimates, the need for an internal audit
function and the risk reqister.

The Commirtee concluded tha: an internai audit
function would provide mimmal additional comfort at
considerable extra cost to the Company. The existing
system of monrienng and reporiing by third paries
remains appropriate and adegqua‘e

Durnng the year. the Commitiee alsc conducied a
comprehensive review of the key agreemen:s with

115 service providers, angd a detatled review of the
performance, composliion, personneal. processes and
internal control systems of the ATV, a review of all of
the Group's other corporate advisers and key service
providers. The discussion included an assessment of
performance and suitability of the services provided
in the context of the fees patd 0 each provider. and a
review of the termmnarion period of each agreemen:

The Commizzee considered the terms of the ‘nvesimen:
Vanagemen: Agreemens 1o ensure 1 coninues o reflect
he commeraal arrangemern:s agreed between the
Company and the ‘nvesimen: Adviser and was saushed
“ha: this was the case,




Report of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee continued

Letter from the Financial Reporting Council

Juring the vear the Company receved a letter from

the INnanclal Reporung Council (ZRCY requesung
information following a imried scope review of

the Company's 2021 Annual Report and Accourns in
accordance with Part 2 of the “RC Corporate eporting
Review Operaing Procedures. The letter prnimarily
focused on the accounting treatmen: of lease incentives,
related party disclosures and [F38 8 ‘Operaung Segments’.

The Company provided :he informaton and explanations
to the FRC as requested to 1ts satisfaction. The FRC
subsequently advised that its review had been brought
to a satisfactory conclusion.

The Group has made additional enhancements to the
disclosures in this annual report on the mat:ers raised by
the FRC. The Company had also published a

Market Updacte on 11 October 2021 addressing these, and
cther, points.

The FRC's review was based on the 2021 Annual Report
and does not benefi: from detailed knowledge of

our busimess, or an understanding of the underlying
ransactions entered into. [ts correspondence provides
no assurance that the report and accountg are correct
in all matenal respec:s; the “RC's role 15 no: to verify the
information provided but to consider comphance with
reporting requirements.

The FRC accepts no liabihty for reliance on its letiers by
‘he Company or any thurd party. including bu: not limited
co investors and shareholders.

Significant Issues Considered by the

Committee

The Commutiee considered the key accounting esumates
and judgements underlymng the preparation of the
financial s;atements focusing specifically on:

Significant Financial Reporting Issue — Valuation of
Investment Property

The valuanon of the property portfolio is crucial :o the
statemen: of financal posiuon and reported resulis.

After discussion with the [nvestment Adviser, the
Committee has determined tha: the key risks of
missiatement of the Company financial stazements relate
to the valuation of investment property.

The valuations of the iInvesiment propernes a: the end of
the financial peniod were independen:ly performed by
Jones Lang LaSalle {JL.), whom the Committee considers
:0 have sufficient experise, experience and local and
na‘onal knowledge of social housing and supported
housing 0 underiake the valuations.

JLL also conducts 1mtal valuancns of propernies on
acquisition. The Directors have ensured that [, has
appropriate procedures 1n place o ensure there are no
independence conflicts with the services provided o
the Company.

The Invesimen: Adviser confirmed ‘o the Commitiee that
‘he method of valuation has been applied consistently
durning the year. 't further confirmed that, dunng the
course of the penod, JLL was regularly challenged by
‘he Investmen: Adviser on the assumptions used n the
vatluaion of the Company's investment properties to
engure robust and approprnate methods were being
applied. The Investment Adwviser discusses these areas of
challenge with the Commuittee.

T

The Auditcr met separately with JLL and reported back

t0 the Comrmittee cn its challenge of the valuatuons

and assumptions. The Auditor was satisfied that the
valuations had been prepared using appropriate
methods and assumpions, and had been prepared in
accordance writh RICS Valuation — 2rofessional Standards.

As explained in note 15.0 to the financial statements,

the approach adopted by the Company 1s to recognise
investment properties a* fair value, with the fair value of
the propertwy being based on valuations performed by JLL
The revaluation of the invesmen: properties gave rise to
a revaluartion gain of £22.3 rllion in the period.

Continuation Resolution

The Company's articles of agsoclation include a
requirement for the Board to propose an ordinary
resolution at the annual general meeung follcwing the
fifth anniversary from the imnal public offering of the
Company for the Company ‘o continue in 1ts curren: form
{the ContinuaTtion Resolution) This is the first continuanon
vote since ‘PO,

The Commuitee has considered the effect the
Continuazion Resolutien would have and has agreed

tha: it1s a significant accoun:ing 1ssue for the Company,
given its impact on the preparation of the consohidated
financial staternents on a going concern basis. f the
Conunuaton Resolution 1s passed, the Company will
continue 118 business as presenzly constituied and
propose the same resolution at every fifth annual general
meeting thereafier If the Continuation Resolution is not
passed. the Directors will be required, within six months
after the date of this annual general meeting, to formulate
proposals for consideration by the shareholders for the
vohuntary hquidation, unitisasion, reorganisauon, or
reconstruction of the Company.

After making appropnate enguiries of the Company's
brokers and Investmen: Adviser, pursuant 1o their
recent discussions with a number of the Company's
shareholders, the Commiitee 13 of the view that

the Continuation Resoluion will be passed at the
forshcoming annual general meeind.

The Committee 18, therefore, of the opinion that the
going concern basis adopted in the preparation of the
consolidated financial s;atements 1s appropriate

~urther information can be found in note 2 2 of the
Consolidated Financial Stazemen:s.
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Report of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee continved

Maintenance of REIT status.

There are a number of conditions tha: a company {or
principal company of a group RE.T) needs 1o satsfy in
order 1o become a RE!'l and remain within the regime.
The UK REIT regime affords the Group a beneficial rax
treatment for income and captial gains, provided cerain
criteria are met There is a risk that these RE!T conditions
may not be me: and additional tax becomes payable by
-he Company. The Board regularly reviews the REIT tests
that are performed by the Administrator.

The Board 1s satisfied that the Company has maintained
1ts REIT status throughout the year.

Misstatements

The 'nvestmen: Adwviser confirrned to the Comrniziee that it
was not aware of any material or immaternal misstatements
made intentonally to achieve a parucular presenta‘ion.

Conclusion in respect of the Annual

Report and Financial Statements

Having reviewed the presentauons and repor:s from the
Invesiment Adwviser, the Committee 15 sanisfied that the
financial statemen:s appropriately address the critical
judgements and key estimates, both in respect of the
amounts reporied and the disclosures.

The Comrmutiee 1s also satusfied that the significan:
assumptions used for determining he value of aszets
and liabilities have been appropriately scratimised and
challenged and are sufficien:ly robus:. Accordingly, the
Commiuttee has concluded that the Annual Repor: and
financial staemen:s, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced
and understandable and has recommended their
approval to the 3oard on that basis.

Auditor Appointment and Tenure

As a resul: of the UK's implementauon of the 2U's
mandazory audi firm rozation reguiremen:s, the
Company is requured o ensudre that the external audiior's
con:Taci1s pu: ou: 1o render a: leas: every 0 years,

with ‘he proviso tha: no single firm may serve as the
Company's ex:ernal audior for a period exceeding

20 years. wCwas firs: appointed as the Company's
auditor with effect from March 207, 1115 intended that the
external audi will be put out to render no lazer than for
“he finanmal year commencing - Apnl 2026, which 1s

.0 years after the Company's tniual isung.

Saira Choudhry is the audit pariner allocazed 1o the
Company by 2wC. The audi: of the financial szazemen:s
for the year ended 3. March 2022 are her firs: as senor
statatory audizor of the Company.

Assessment of the Effectiveness
of the External Audit Process and
Auditor Independence

As part of s annual teview of the effectiveness of

the external audit process, *he Commitiee obrained
assurance on ‘he quality of the external audi: from s
own evaluanon, the audir feedback docurmentanon and
from correspondence and discussions with the audit
parinier. [Invesiment Adviser and the Administrazor. The
Auditar demonstrated a good understanding of the
Group, and had 1dentufied and focused on the areas

of greatest financial reporting risk. ts reporang to the
Commitiee was clear, open and thorough. The Commitiee
has assessed the professional scepncism and challenge
of managerment judgement by the Auditor and is satisfied
tha: the Auditor has demonstrated these. The Comrmitiee
considered the advice included 1n the FRC Practice Aid
on Audit Qualizy when making thus judgemens.

The FRC's Audir Qualry [nspections Report on the audits
carned out by PricewazerhouseCoopers LL2 was also
considered by the Committee. On the basis of these
factors and assesgsments, the Committee has concluded
:hat the external audi: process has been effective.

The Commuitiee assessed the external auditors
independence. gqualifications, relevant expenence, and
effeciiveness of audit procedures. In advance of each
audi, the Commitiee obtains confirmation from the
exzernal auditor that it remains independent and that the
level of non-audit fees are not an independence threat.



Report of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee continued

Non-audit Services

The Cemmiitee has put into place a policy for the
provision of non-audit services to the Company by the
auditor. The general intenion of the Commttee 15 to
avoid the provision of non-audit services by the audror,
other than the review of the half-yearly repor, as these
have the poienual to compromise the independence of
the auditor. The Commitiee acknowledges that in certain
situahons it may be appropniate for the external auditor
to provide such services to the Company for a variety of
reasons including cos: effectiveness, dep:h of knowledge
and the ongoing relationship between the Board and
the external auditor. All non-audit fees are approved by
the Commitiee in advance Where non-audit fee levels
are considered significant, the Commiztee considers the
appropriateness of the iIndependence safeguards put in
place by the auditor.

The total fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LL?
durnng the period, net of VAT, totalled £402,000

{202.: £367.0C0) of which £44 00C (202.: £57000) was
concerning non-audit services for the review of the half
yearly report and £62.000 (Enil} for non-audit services
concerning a planned Bond [ssue which was postponed.

The auditor was selected for the non-audit services
relating :o the postponed Bond (ssue following careful
consideration by the Commiitee. The Committee believed
tha: the ahility for the auditor to audit the Company's
financial statements independently would not be
impac:ed by this work. [t 18 standar@d pracuce for a
Company's external audrror to undertake this task.

Note 9.0 to the consolidated financ:al statements
detais all services provided and total feeg paid o
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the financial year
ended 3 March 2C22. The Commitiee considers
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 10 be independent of the

Company.

Re-appointment of the Auditor

Taking into account the performance and effectiveness of
‘he Auditor and *he confirmation of their independence,
the Committee has recommended 10 the 3oard that a
resolition 1o re-appoint PncewaserhouseCoapers LLP as
the Company's auditor be put to the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM.

Caroline Gulliver

Chairman, Audi: and Management! Engagement
Committee

29 June 20772
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Report of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Introduction

The Nominauon and Remuneration Commitee presents the
Report for the year ended 31 March 2022,

Composition and role of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comptrises
2eter Baxter, as Chairman, and the entre Board, all of
whom are Non-Executive Directors. Terms of Reference
have been established by the Board and are available on
the Cempany's website.

The Nominaton and Remuneraion Commitiee's principal
duties are ag follows:

Normination

e o review the structure, size and compositiion of the
3oard, including its skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity, iIncluding gender and ethnmcity,

e ‘o consider the succession planning of Directors,
taking mnto accoun: the challenges and opportuniaes
facing *he Company and the skills and expertise
needed on the Board in the future;

e to be responsible for idenafying and nominaung
candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when
‘hey arise;

s [0 review annually the time required from
Non-Execuive Directors:

¢ 0 review the resuls of the 3oard performance
evaluation as it relates 1o Board composition and
succession planning;

e oreview annually potennal conflicts of interes:s of
directors as disclosed 1o the Company and develop
appropriaie processes for managing such conflicts; and

e 0 recelve and consider updartes from the ‘nvestmen?
Advisor pn 18 own succession planning acnvities.

Remuneration

e o deiermine and agree with the 3oard, a formal
and transparen: procedure for developing policy
on the remuneration of the Company's Chalr, Audit
and Vanagemen® Sngagemen: Commitee chair
and Non-sxecuuve JIreciors:

e "0 take 1nto accoun: all faciors when considering
-he Remuneration 2olicy which 17 deems necessary.
inclading relevan: legal and regulatory requiremen:s,
the provisions and recommendanons of the AIC Code
of Corporate Governance and assoclated guidance;

e oreview the ongoing appropria:eness and relevance
of the Remuneranon 2ohcy;

« 0 chiain reliable, up-o-date informasion abou:
remuneration in other companies of comparable
scale and complexity and market praciice generally:

e 0 be responsible for establishing the seleciion
cntena. selecing. appointing and setang the terms
of reference for any remunerasion consul:an:s who
advise the Commiziee; and

® 10 ensure that contractual terms on termination, and
any payments made are fair to the individual. and he
Company. that faillure 1s not rewarded and that the
duty to mizigate loss 15 fully recognised.

Activities during the year

The Commitiee meets at least once per year. Juring he
vear, the Commitiee has:

o considered the Board's remuneration 1n view of the
responsibilities and time commitments for overseeing
‘he affairs of the Company, in light of the Arucles of
Assccianon as well as the level of dividend paid to
shareholders durnng the year:
reviewed the Director’'s skill matrix;
considered the Board's current succession plan, and
agreed “hat it would be pruden: for the 3oard o
phase the recrurimen: of additional Jirectors going
forward to allow progresstve rotation of directors and
facilitate effecuive succession planning;

& appointed a Sub-Commuizttee 10 be responsible for
conducung the recruitment process to identfy a new
candidate for appoiniment 1o the Board:

e engaged a recruriment agency o assist with the
search for a candidate;

e reviewed the results of the Board's 2022 performance
evaluaiion process, the details of which can be found
on page 70; and

+ satsfied i:self thar each Non-txecuave Director
serving a: the end of the year remains independen:
and continues to have sufficien: time <o discharge
thelr responsibilities ‘o the Company

The Campany 1s supporave of the new Lisung Rules
beingssuad by the Tinancial Conduact Authonty

on diversity and inclusion on company boards. The
Commiitee 1s considenng a range of candidates from
diverse backgrounds. The Company s diversity policy can
be found on page 69.

The Direciors fees were considered by the Commitiee
in february 2022, Please see the Directors Remuneration
Report on pages 73 10 76 for detalls on Jirector
rermilnetaicn.

Peter Baxter

Chairman, Nominasion and emunerazion Commimiiies

29 june 2022



Corporate Governance Statement

Background

The FCA Listiing Rules and Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules require listed companies to disclose
how they have applied the prninciples and comphed

with the provisions of the corporate governance code

to which the 1ssuer 1s subject. The provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code ("UK Code™, as 1issued by the
“RCin July 2078, are applicable to the year under review
and can be viewed at www.frc.org.uk.

The Board has considered the principles and
recommendatuons of the AlC Code of Corporate
Governance ("A.C Code”) as issued by the AIC in Pebruary
20°9. The AIC Code addresses all the principles set out in
the UK Code, as well as setting out additional principies
and recommendations on 15sues that are of specific
relevance to the Company as an invesiment company.
The FRC has confirmed that AI/C member companies
who report agams: the AlC Code will be meeting their
obligations 1n relanon (o the UK Code and the associated
disclosure requirements of the *CA. The AIC Code can be
viewed at www.theaic.couk.

The 3card considers that reporting agains: the principles
and recommendations of the AIC Code provides
shareholders with full details about the Company's
corporate governance complance,

Statement of Compliance

Lxcep: as se: ou: below, the Company has complied
with the provisions of the AiC Code throughous: the year
ended 3" March 2022.

Provision 23: Direc:ors are no: appointed for a specified
term, as all Directors are non-execu:ve and the Board
helieves that a Director's performance and their
conzinued contribution (o the runming of the Company
15 of greater imporiance and relevance to Shareholders
than the leng:h of time for which they have served as a
DJirector of the Company. Each Director is subjec: 1o the
election and re-electuon provisions set out in the Articles
which provide that a Director appommted dunng the year
15 required to retire and seek election by Shareholders
at the next Annual General Meeung follcwing ther
appeintmen:. Thereafier the Directors intend to offer
themselves for re-elecion annually and will aim to no: be
on the 3oard for more than nine years.

The UK Code includes provisions relating to:

¢ the role of the chief execuuve, and

e executive directors remuneraion.

The Board considers that these provisions are not relevant
to the pesition of the Company. being an externally
managed investment company. [n particular, all of the
Company's day-to-day management and administrative
funcuons are outsourced to third parties. As a result.

‘he Company has no execulive 2irectors, employess

or internal operations. The Company has therefore not
repcrted further in respect of these provisions.

The Board

Under the leadership of the Chairman. the Board

is responsible for the effective stewardship of the
Company'’s affairs, including cormporate strategy.
corporate governance, risk asgsessment and overall
nvestrnen: policy. The Directors have overall
responsibility for the review of investment activizy and
performance, and the supervision of the Investment
Adviser which 15 responsible for the day-io-day asse:
managemen: of the Company's portfohe.

The Board consis:s of five non-executive Direciors. [t
seeks to ensure tha: it has an appropriate balance of
skills and experience, and considers thar, collectively, it
has substannal recen: and relevant experience of public
company managernen:, the UX real estate secror. social
houstng and investmen: companies. All the Dhrectors are
inmdependent of the nvesiment Adwviser and the AIFM.

The Board has adopted a schedule of mat:ers reserved
for decision by the Board. including inter aha,
determining the Company's investment objechive and
policy, and geanng and dividend pohcies. This schedule
of matters reserved for the 3oard is available on the
Company's websle

The Directors ensure that nisks are effectively rnanaged
through robust polictes and procedures, supperied by
the right values and culture. The Board's primary focus
is the sustainable long-term success of the Group o
deliver value for shareholders, taking into account other
stakeholders.

The Board is responsible for investment decisions, other
+han to the ex:en: delegated to the AIFM and/or the
nvestment Adwviser, and the appolniment, supervision
and monitoring of the Company's service providers,
ncluding amongs: cthers, the A.rM and the investmen:
Adwiser. The 3oard 1s responsible for the interim and
annual financial stazements of the Company and, in
conjuncuon with the Ai©M, alsc approves the penadic
calculation of the Net Asset Value.
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

The Chairman. Michael Wrobel, was independent of

the ‘nvestmen: Adviser a: the time of his appointmen:
and is deemed by his fellow Directors to continue to bhe
independen: in character and judgement and free of
any conflicung relavonships. Fe leads the Board and

is responsible for 128 overall effeciiveness in directing
the Company. .n liaison with the Company Secretary. he
ensures that ‘he Directors receive accurate, timely and
clear information. Mr Wrobel considers himself to have
sufficient time 10 commit to the Group’s affairs. He has no
significant commitments other than those disclesed in
his biography on page 57 The rale and responsibihties of
the Chairman are clearly defined and set cut in wring. a
copy of which 1s available on the Company's website.

Seter 3axter is the Senior ndependen: Direcior of

the Company. He provides a scunding board fer

the Chairman and serves as an iniermediary for the
other Directors and sharehoiders. Ee also provides a
channel for any shareholder concerns regarding the
Chairman and takes the lead 1n the annual evaluation
of the Chatrman by the other Directors. The role and
responsibilities of the Semor .ndependent Jirector are
clearly defined and set out in writing, a copy of which s
available on the Company's website

The Board has no set policy for the length of tenure of
nrectors although 12 keeps in mind the recommendations
of the ATC Code dunng succession planning. [t11s the
3oard’s policy for all Directors <o stand for re-election
annually. Recommendazions for election/fre-elecuon of
nrectors are made on an individaal basis following
rgorous review. Directors are appointed ander letters of
appoin:men:, copies of which are availatble for inspection
a: the reqgistered office of the Company and a: the AGM.

Board Operation and Culture

The Board meets formally a: leas: quarterly, bus also
meets on an ad hoc basis for the purpose of considenng
poteniaal ransactions and associated due diligence.
The Beard will mee: 0 consider and, \f appropriate,
approve "he acquisiiion of properties recommended

by the ‘nvesunen: Adviser The nvesimen: Adviser
prepares an ‘nvestmen: Proposal faper {227 1in respect
of the proposed acquiginons which includes dezalls

of the ‘ransacton and due diligence repor:s. Upon
review of the (22 the 3oard contemnplates the swructure
of the ransaction, any risks atzached o the proposed
rransachon and how these would ke mitigated/managed.
and -he impacs: of the rransac:ion on the value of the
Group s property porfolio, following advice from

‘he valuers.

Tor the purpose of monizonng “he por:folio, the 3oard
receives periodic repor:s from the A7V and the
nvesmen: Adwniser, dezailing the performance of the
Company. The 3oard delegates certain responsibiliiies
and funcnons 1o the Audir and Vanagemen: mngagemen:
Commi:tee, which has wriien serms of reference.

To assist the 3pard 1n the day-to-day operations of the
Company, arrangemen:s have been putin place to
delegate authonty for performing ceriain operations o
the ATV, the Investment Adwviser and other third-pary
service providers, such as the Adminisirator and the
Company Secretary.

The Chairman demonstrates objectuve judgement,
promoses a culture of openness and debate, and
facilitates effective con:nbutons by all Jirectors. The
rectors are requtred to act with integrity, lead by
example and promote this culture within the Company.

The 3oard seeks 10 engdre the alignment of the
Company's purpose, values and strategy with the culture
of openness, debate and inegrity through ongoing
dialogue. and engagement with the nvesiment Adviser
and the Company's ozher service providers. The 3oard
and the .nvegtmen: Adviser operaie 1n a supporive,
co-operanve and open environment.

The Board schedules yearly meetings with the board of
the .nvestmen: Adwviser, one of the purposes of which is
1o receive an msight ino the culture of the ‘nvestmen:
Adviser.

The culiure of the 3card is considered as part of

the annua! performance evaluation process which

1s under:aken by each Jirector. The calwure of the
Company's service providers 1§ also considered by the
Audit and Management Zngagemen: Commtilee dunng
the annual review of their performance and while
considering their conlinuing appoimiment.

The Company main:ains Jiwrectors and Officers” hability
insurance on behalf of the DJireciors at the expense of the
Company. The 3oard has agreed arrangements whereby
Directors may take independen: professicnal advice

in the furtherance of their duties. The Company has

alsc indemnified the Directors in accordance with the
provisions of the Ariiclas of Associaton.

Independence of Directors

The independence of all Direciors 1s reviewed as par: of
“he annual assessmen® cf the 3oard.

The 30ard has determined -hat each Direcior remains
independen: in characer and judgemen: and 13 free of
any relasionships or circumstances that threaten their
mndependence of the Company or 1:s :nvesimen: Adviser
‘n paricular, none of the Directors have ever been
execuuves of the Company or the \nves:men: Adviser,
have had a marenal direct or indirec: relalonship

with the Company or 1:s sitakeholders. have recewved
disproporonase fees, have close family relationships
with stakeholders or represen: sigmifican: shareholders.




Corporate Governance Statement continued

Board Meetings

A formal agenda 13 approved by the Chairman and
circulated by the Company Secretary in advance of
each meeting ‘o the non-executive Directors and other
atiendees. A typical agenda includes: an analysis of
portfolio performance and exposure; an update on

the invesumnent pipeline; the Company's financial
performance; updates on investor relations; statutery and
regulatory complance; and any corporate governance
ma:ters. Relevant papers on the tems included on the
agenda are circulated n good ame to the members of
the Board. in advance of the meesing.

The Tnvestment Adviser atiends the 3oard meetings
together with representatives from the AIFM and
Company Secretary. Representanves of the Company's
other advisers are also invited to atzend Board meetings
from time to time.

The number of Board, Audi: and Management
Engagemen: Committee and Nomination and
Remuneration Commitiee meetings held dunng the year
ended 31 March 2022 along with the attendance of the
directors is set out below:

Audit and

Managemert Nosutatton atd
CQuarterly Board Engagement Remuneratiocn
Meetings Commitiee _ _Committee
Number Number Number
entitled Number entitled Number enutled to Number
loattend attended  toauend  atiended _attend  attended
Michae!
Wrobel 4 4 3 3 1 1
ALasiair
Moss 4 4 3 3 1 1
Alison
Hadden 4 4 3 3 1 1
Caroline
Gu.liver 4 4 3 3 1 1
Petler
Baxter 4 4 3 3 1 1

The Board 1s scheduled 0 meet on a quarterly basis.

'n addhnion to these meetings the Board also met on

3 occasions to approve the NAV and dividend declarations
and on a further 8 cccasions on an ad hoco basis

Committee

The Company operawes through the Board and is two
Board commitieas, namely the Audit and Managemen:
Engagemen: Commirtee and the Nominasion and
Remuneration Commitiee the “Committees”). The 3oard
evaluates the membership of the Commitiees on an
annual basis.

Audit and Management Engagement
Committee

The Audit and Management Engagement Commitiee
compnses of all Directors. Caroline Gulliver, the Chair
of the Audit and Management Engagement Commitiee,
15 a Chartered Accountant and is considered o have
recent and relevant financial experience. The Audit
and Management kngagement Commitiee as a whole
has competence relevant to ‘he real estate mvestment
company sector.

The Chairman is a memkbker of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee. but does no: chair it. His
membership of the Audit and Managemen: Zngagement
Commattee 1s considered appropriate given the small

size of the Board and the Chairman's kncwledge of

the financial services indusiry. A copy of the terms of
reference of the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee is available from the Secretary and on the

Company's website

The Commitiee mee:s at leas: 'wice a year and reviews
the scope and results of the external audh, its cos:
effectiveness and the independence and objectiviry

of the external auditors, including the provision of
non-audit services.
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The Comrnit:ee also reviews the terms of the A'TM
agreement and the Investment Adviser Agreement, and
examines the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control systems and the performance of the AIFM,
Investment Adviser. Administrator, Depositary, Company
Secretary and Registrar, and other service providers.

The Repor: of the Audit and Managemen: Engagemens:
Cornmizee 1s set out on pages 62 1o 65.

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

The Nominatuon and Remuneration Committee 1s
comprised of all Directors and the Chairman 1s the Senior
Independent Director, Peter Baxter. The Nomination

and Remuneration Commistee meets as required for the
purpose of considering recrutmen: to and removals from
the Board; levels of remuneration pald o the Directors;
and review of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and
Remuneration Policy. A copy of the terms of reference

of the Remuneration and Nominaticn Commiitee 1s
available on the Company’s website and ig avallable by
reques: from ‘he Company Secretary.

Diversity

The Board recognises *he benefiis of diversity and has
adopted a diversity policy. All 3oard appointments will be
made on ment and against an objective criteria and have
regard to diversity in relauon o factors such as gender,

e hnicity, skills, background and expenence. The 3oard
does not consider 12 1o be 1n the inzeres:s of the Company
and i:s shareholders 10 se: prescripive diversity criteria
or targe:s, but will coniinue to moniior diversity and take
such steps as 1* considers appropriate 1o main:ain s
positicn as a meritacratc and diverse business. See also
she Swrateqic Report on page 45.
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

Induction of New Directors

A procedure for the induction of new Direciors has been
es:abhshed. including the provision of an induction pack
contaiming relevant infermation akbou: the Company.,

1ts processes and procedares and meetings with the
Chairman and relevant persons a: the [nves:men: Adviser.

Performance Evaluation

For the year under review, the Board underiook

an internal performance evaluaucn by way of
guestionnaires designed to assess the sireng:hs and
independence of the Board and the Chairman, individual
Direc:ors and the performance of the Board's Commi:tees.
The areas considered are:

¢ che frequency and effectiveness of 3oard and
Committee meesings;

e the size, composttion and relevan! expenence of the
3oard;

e the independence and performance of the Directors
and the 3oard; and

« theraining requiremen:s of each Director.

The evaluasion process 1s conducted by the Chairman.
Perer Baxter. as the Senior independent Director,

leads the appraisal of the Chairman. The 3oard 1s
cognisant of the advantages of an exiernal performance
evaluation and will keep -his opuon under regular
review. ‘n *he prior year, the 3oard underzook an
ex:emmally facilitated performance evaluation. The
3eard noted the recommendauons from the ex:ernal
performance evaluasion, one of which was ;0 hold

an additional Audilr and Managemen: Sngagemen:
Cormitee in the year with the pumose of focusing on
management engagement matters. An addinonal Audn
and Management Engagemen: Committee was held in
Juane 2022 and a further additional mee:ng will be held
on an annual basis going ferward.

The Company seeks to ensure that the 3oard has a
balance of skills and experience tha: are complemen:ary
and enable the 3oard 0 opera:e efficien:ly.

All of the Directors have assessed their other ongoing
commimments and are sazisfied tha: they can commiz the
me necessary 1o execute thelr dunes 0 the Company.

No sigmificans: 1ssues were 1dentified dunng the
evaluation process. The Nomination and Remuaneration
Commitee considers thas all of the curren: Direciors
make an effecaive coninbusion and have the requistie
skills and expenence o conitnue o provide able
leadership and direction for the Company. - was
agreed ‘ha: all lirectors should be recommended for
elecnion/re-election a: the forrhcoming AGV.

The 3card concluded tha: each Director brings
considerable expertise and expenence to the Board and
+he 3oard operates with good independen: though: and
challenge.

All Board members have assessed their ongoing
commumens:s and are satisfied thar they can commit the
time necessary 10 execute their dutes to the Company.

Conflicts of Interest

All rectors have a statutory responsibility 1o avoid
situattons where a conflict of interest exists, or may exise,
between the Company and an entty that the Directoris
either direc:ly or indirectly involved with. The Board has
procedures in place to idennfy potental conflicts and
resolve any *ha: should arise. .n the case of a conflict

of interes?, the nature and extent of the conflict are
assessed against the existing internal control structure,
and the resulis of this asgsessmen: and acions taken

to resolve the conflict are documen:ed in the minutes
of the relevan: 3oard meeung. No conflicts of interest
arose dunng e penod.

Health and Safety

Eealth and safety 1s of prime impor:ance 1o the

Company and 1s considered equally with all other
business managerment acivilies 1o ensure protecuon of
s:akeholders, be they tenants, adwvisers, suppliers, visiiors
or others. The Board regularly discusses health and safely
issues with the ‘nvesunent Adviser.

The Company 1s commitied to fostering the highes:
standards in health and safery as it believes that all
unsafe acts and unsafe condinions are preventable All
our gtakeholders have a responsibility (o suppor: the mim
of ensuring a secure and safe environmen: and all our
stakeholders are tasked with responsibiliy for achieving
this commimen:.

Risk Management and Internal Control !

The Directors are responsible for the sysiems of internal
conrol relazing 1o the Company and 115 subsidianes,
and the reliability of the finanmal reporing process and
for reviewing their effectiveness, ensuning tha: the nisk
managemen: and conirol processes are embedded in
day-ro-day operanons.

Arn ongoing formal process, in accordance with the “RC
Guidance on Risk Managemens:, ‘n:ernal Conirol and
Related Tinancial and 3usiness Reporiing, has been
established foridenufying, evaluaung and managing
“he principal and other nisks mos: hkely tompact

~he Group. This process, which 18 regularly reviewed,
sogether with key procedures es:ablished vath a view o
providing effective financial control, has been in place
“hroughout the year ended 37 March 2822 and up o the
daze of thig Repor:.



Corporate Governance Statement continued

The Audi: and Management tngagement Committee has
in place a formal procedure for performing an engoing
robust assessment of the Group's nsk managemen: and
internal control systems. A risk matnx has been es:ablished
agamns: which the nsks iden‘ified and the controls in place
10 miugaze those risks can be monored. The nsks are
assessed on the basis of the ltkellhood of them happening,
the impac: on the business if they were 0 occur and the
effecuveness of the controls in place o mutigate them. In
arriving at its judgement of wha: risks the Company faces.
the Board has considered the Company's operations in the
light of the followng factors:

e ‘henature and exient of nsks which it regards as
acceptable for the Company to bear within its overall
business objective;

e rhethreat of such risks becoming realhy;

¢ the Company's ability to reduce the incidence and
impac: of risk on its performance; and

e the costtothe Company and benefits related to the
Company and third parties operating the relevan:
controls.

The nsk matnx 1s reviewed rwice a year by the
Commiitee and at other times as necessary. The principal
risks facing the Company are se* out on pages 38 to 42 of
this Annual Repor:, together with the processes applied
10 mitigate those nisks.

On an annual basis, the Commitiee reviews the control
reports of 118 key service providers and the Auditor notes
any deficiencies in internal con:rols and processes that
have been identified dunng the course of the audit.

The Audir and Managemen: Engagement Committee 1s
mindful of these key nisks as well as considering evolving
and emerging risks such as the unpact of the Ukraine-
Russia conflict, long-term climate change and cyber
security which have the potential 1o affect the Group.
The Committee ensures that the Board takes appropriate
advice and debates :he issues facing the Group.

At each Beard meeting, the Beard recelves reports from
the ‘nvestmen: Adviser, the Administrater, the AJ7M and
the 3roker in respec: of comphance activities, Company
financial performance and financial posiuicn.

The con:rols, which are regularly reviewed, aim to
ensure that the assets of the Company are safeguarded,
proper accountng records are mamntained, and the
financial information used within the business and for
publication 1s rehablae. The risk management process
and Company systems of internal conirols are designed
o manage rather than eliminaze the nsk of faillure o
achieve the Company’s obiectives and can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute. agsurance against matenal
misstatemerntt or loss.

The Directors have carried out a review of the effectiveness
of 'he Company’s risk managemen! and internal con'rol
systems as they have operated over the pernod and up 0
the date of approval of the Annual Report. During the course
of the review, the Board has notidentfied nor been advised
of any fallings or weaknesses which iz has de:ermuined :0 be
significant.

The Directors have considered the appropriateness of
establishing an internal audit function and. having regard
0 the structure and nature of the Company's activities,
has concluded that the function 1s unnecessary. The Audit
and Managemen: Engagement Committee will review

on an annual basis the need for this function and make
appropriate recommendaticns o the Board.

Financial Reporting

The Board operates the following key controls in relation
to financial reporting:
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e the Board and Commitiee memlers review quarterly
management repor:s and supporting documents tha:
are provided by the ‘nvesiment Adwviser;

e the Board has procedures in place for the approval
of expenses and paymen:s o third parties; and

e the Commitiee members and Board review all
financial information and announcements prior
0 publication.

Corporate Responsibility

The Company regards corporate responstbility as
inzegral to how 12 conducts 178 business. it1s commutted to
being a good comorate citizen and behaving responsibly
with a demonsirazed transparency of approach.

To achieve this goal, the Company applies the following
principles to 1's operanions:

Business conduct

The Company's investmen: decisions are made on the
basis of generating shareholder value and ensuring

the long-term success of the business. The selection of
suppliers will be made independently by the Company's
Jireciors upon advice from the investmen: Adviser

and 1n the best interes:s of the Company. The Soard

will ensure that appropriate controls are 1n place 1o
guaran:ee independence from the supply chain

All cusiomers and suppliers will be treated fairly and
responsibly.

The Company will not provide financial support 1o
poltical paries or politictans.
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

The Company s resolutely opposed 1o bribery and
corrupuon The Company will not use any illegal or
improper means to further its business interests, nor will
it accept any forms of inducements intended o influence
1ts Investment decisions.

Governance

The Company will protect the interes:s of 128 shareholders
and other stakeholders through compliance with relevan:
legal and regulatory environmen:s, and through effective
management of business nsk and opportunity.

The Board will ensure that {:8 members are rruly
independent, are competent and have the resources and
support required to perform their duties opumally, and
that the Board's decisions are macde in the best interes:s
of the Company and s shareholders The performance
of the 3oard will be regularly reviewed, and Directors will
retire as and when deemed appropriate by the 3oard in
accordance with best practice.

Socially responsible investment

The Board aims 0 be a socially responsible investor
and believes that 1t 1s importan: to inves! in specialist
social housing proper:ies in a responsiktle manner in
respect of environmen:al, ethical and social 1ssues. The
‘nvestment Adviser's evaluation procedure and analysis
of the properues within the portfolio includes research
and appraisal of such maters, and takes in7o accoun:
environmens:al and social pelhicies and other business
iIssues.

Turther details on the gsocial impac: of the Company's
invesiments are included 1n the Social _mpac: repor:
from -he The Good ~conomy. a summary of which can be
fecund on page 49.

The Company recognises thar environmen:al proteciion,
rescurce efficlency and sustainable development are
necessary o ensure *hat environmental damage 1s
hmited and furthermore ha: where relevan:, positive
acuons should be taken o improve the exising
environmen: for fature genera‘ions.

Transparency

The Company aims 10 be ‘ransparen:. and o ensure
tha:1m communicaes with 1:s shareholders and
other stakeholders in a manner tha: enhances their
understanding of 118 business.

The Company main:ains accouning documen:aion
tha: clearly 1den:ifies *he rue naiure of all business
ransacions, assets and habihtes, in ine wrth the
relevan: regulascry. accounting, and legal requiremern:s.
No record or entry 18 knowingly false. diszorzed,
incomplete, or suppressed.

All reporting 18 matenally accurate and complete and

in compliance in all mazernal respects with stated
accounting policies and procedures. The Company does
not knowingly miss:ate or misrepresent managemen:
mformation for any reason. and the Company expects the
same *0 apply 10 its supphers.

The Company may be required to make statements

or provide repor:s to regulatory bodies, government
agencies or other governmen: deparimen:s, as well as 1o
the media. The Company ensures that such statements or
repor:s are correct, imely, and not misleading, and that
they are delivered through the appropriate channels.

The Company provides through its website, its

Annual Report and other statements with appropriaze
information 0 enable shareholders and s:akehclders to
assess the performance of its business. 't comphes with
the applicable laws and regulations concerning the
disclosure of informartion relasing o the Company.

Communities

The Company aims to ensure ‘hat 1ts properties which
are associated with the provision of health services
provide significan: value-adding facilities 1n the
communities where it invests.

Relations with Stakeholders

Derails regarding the Company’s engagemen: with its
stakeholders are get out within the Sirategic Repor: on
pages 251033

Approval

The Corporate Governance S:atemen: has been approved
by the 3oard.

3y order of the 3card

Link Company Matters Limited
Company Secretary

29 June 2022




Director’s Remuneration Report

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Introduction

The Remuneration Policy of the Company is set by

the 3oard. A rggolation to approve the Remuneraion
Policy was passed at the AGM of the Company held

on 5 September 2019. The policy provisions set out
below will apply untll e Renuneration 2ohcy 18 pus to
shareholders for approval at the forthcommg AGM of the
Company on 15 September 2022, There are no changes
proposed to the Remuneration 2olicy. The Remuneraitan
Policy 15 binding and sets the parameters within which
Directors’ remuneranon may be set,

Policy

The Remunera:ion Policy of the Company is 10 pay its
non-execullve Directors fees <hat are appropnate for
the role and the amount of ume spent in discharging
their duties, that are broadly in line with those of
comparable real estate investmen: comparues and that

Directors’ Remuneration Components

Component

_ _Rareatl Apr 12022 Purpose of Remunet ﬂon___

are sufficlent 0 attract and retain suitably qualified and
experienced individuals.

The fees paid will be reviewed on an annual basis and
may alsc be reviewed when new non-executive Direcrors
are recrutted to the Board. The Directors of the Company
are entitled 10 such rates of annual fees as the Board

. Ly discretion shall trom time to time determine. The
Chairman of the Board and the Audt: and Management
Engagement Commuttee Chairman are entitled to receive
fees at a higher level than those of the other Directors,
reflecting their additional duties and respons:bilinies.
Annual fees are pro-rated where a change takes place
during the financial year.

In addrion 0 the annual fee, under the Company's
Articles of Assomation, if any Director is requested o
perform any special dutes or services outside thewr
ordinary duties as a Director, they may be paid such
reasonable additional remuneration as the 3card may
from time to time determine.
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Director
Annual fee Chairman T F£53.0080 Commimment as Chairman of a public;*—_-
company’

7Aah;alifee Non—e;(éguiive_‘)_irectors T } EM.WE@EE}Kmeint;sinon-executi'% Bireczbrsr ofi

. a public company’ o _
Additional fee  Chair of the Audit and ﬁanadefhe;t £5000 For additnonal respé&a‘bi]ines and ume

~___ Engagemen: Commitee o L po_m_rll_im__ . o -
Addinonal fee  All Direciors - DMiscretionary ot extra or special services performed 1n

B ____theirrole as a Director* B

Expenses Al Directors ’ o T n/a Rermbursemen: of expenses incurred in the

performance of duties as g nrector®

1 The Company s policy 1s for the Chaiman of the Buard te be paid a higher fee than the other Directors 1o retlect the more oneruus 1ole
2 The Company s Arncles of Associauon imit the aggtegate fees payable 10 the Board of Ditectors 1o £250,000 per annum.
3 The Company s policy 1s for the Chair of the Audit and Management Engagement Commitiee to be paid a higher tee than the oihier Directors io reflect the more

ONerous role.

4 This 1s a provision of the Company's Aruicles Addinonal lees would only be pad 1n excepliondl circumstanaes in relaton t the performance ol exrra or special

Services

§ Directors are enlitled o claim expenses In jespect ol dunes undertaken in connection with their role as a Direcior

The Company has no employees Accordingly, thete are no chiterences 1n policy on the remuneraion of Directors and the remunerahon of employees

No Durector 1s ennitled to recelve any 1emuneiaiion which s performance-related As a resull, ihere are no performance conditions In (elanen o any elements of the
Direclors’ 1emunerdhon in exisience 1o set oul in tis Remuneranon Policy

Directors” and Officers’ hability insurance cover i As all Directors are non-executive and there are no

maintamed by the Company on behalf of the Directors.

Directors are entizled o be paid all expenses properly
mcurred 0 artending Board or shareholder meesings or

employees, the Company does not operate any share
option or other long-term incenave schemes and the
Drirectors’ fees are not subjec: to any performance criternia.
No pension or other retitement benefi: schemes are

otherwise in or with a view 0 the performance of their
duties.

operared by the Company for any of 11z Directors.
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Director’s Remuneration Report continued

Service Contracts

Ng Director has a service con:rac: with the Company. The
Directors are appointed under letters of appointmen:.
Their appoinimen: and any subsedquent terminasion or
reluremens: is subjec: o the Aricles of Assoclation. The
directors letters of appomtmen: provide thas, upon the
terminauon of a hrectors appomtment. tha:t Director
miist resign in wrinng and all records remain the
property of the Company. The Director's appomtment
can be terminated n accordance with the Arcles of
Associaton and without compensatuon. There is ho
notice period specified 1n the Arucles of Associaton for
the removal of Direcrors and all Directors are subjec: o
annual re-election by shareholders.

Approach to Recruitment Remuneration

The rermuneration package for any new Chairman or
non-executive Jirector will be the same as “he prevailing
rates determined on the bases set out above The Board
will not pay any inroduciory fee or mcentive 0 any
person o encourage them o become a Director, bt
may pay the fees of search and recraiiment specialis's

in connecan with the appoimntment of any new
non-execuive Direcior,

Views of Shareholders

Any views axpressed by shareholders on the fees being
paid 1a Oirecrors would be taken itiro consideration by
“he Board when reviewing levels of remuneraiion.

Remuneration Report

The 3oard presen:s its DIreciors’ Remuneraion Repor:

in respect of the year ended 47 March 2627 The 3card
has prepared this report in accordance with the Large
and Medum-Sized Compantes and Groups {Accoun:s
and Repor:s) (Amendment) Regulazions 2073 An ordinary
regolution for the approval of the Direciors Rermuneration
Repor: will ke pu: o shareholders a: the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.

The law requires the Company s audror o audn; cerzam
required disclosures. Where disclosures have been
audred, they are indicazed as such. The audrors opinien
15 incladed in the audrors repor: on pages 86 1o 87

Annual Statement from the Chairman

Tam pleased o present the Ditectors’ Remuhneratton
Report for the year ended 3! March 2022.

Junng the year under review. the Board hasg establigshed a
separate Nominauon and Remuneration Commitiee with
respongibility for setting the Company’s Remuneration
Polhicy and Directors’ fees.

The repor: from Nominaton and Remuneranon
Committee can be found on page 6.

The Direciors are remunerated for thelr services at such
rate as the Mirectors shall from ume 10 ume determine,
The 3oard has se: three levels of fees: one for the
Chawrman, one for other Direciors, and an addriional

fea thar is paid o the Jirector whao chairs the Audit

and Management nngagement Commilitea. "ees are
reviewed annually in accordance with the Remuneration
Pohcy. The fee for any new Director appointed will be
determined on the same basis.

Mrectors fees for the year ended 41 March 2622 were

at a level of £52,00Q0 per annum for the Chairman

and £33.7280 per annum for other non-execunve
Directors, The Chatrman of the Audr: and Managemens:
zngagemen: Commties recewved an additional fee of
E5.000 per annum. Junng he year. the Nominauon and
Remuneraton Commitee agreed to uphf: the Chairmans
fee by 7.9% o £53,000 and the Diractors base fee by 2.24
<0 £34,00C 10 better reflec: the responsibilities and ame
commitmenss for overseeny the affairs of the Company
and o align with “hose of the Company’s peer group.

There were no other paymen:s for exira or special
services in the year ended 3. March 2022,

As the AGM held on 5 September 2018, shareholders
approved the amendmens: ‘0 the Company's Aricles of
Agsocianon which increased the maximurmn aggregate
annuJal remuneration payable 1o Directars from F200.000
w0 F25C.060

The Direciors' Remunerasion 2olicy was approved
a: the AGV held on 5 Seprember 20'9 There will ke
no significans change in the way the 2emuneraion
Policy will e implemented in the course of the nex:
financial vear.

The Directors Remunerazion 2olicy wnll nex: be presentad
o shareholders for approval as the Company's AGV 1n
September 2022



Director’s Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ Fees far the Period (audited)

The Directors who served dunng he year receved -he following emoluments:

Director
“Michael Wrobel (Chairman)
Alastair Moss

Alson Hadden

Caroline Gulhver

Peter Baxter

Year ended 31 March 26022

Towl -

‘The amoun:s paid 0 the Directors were for services as
non-execulive Directors, Taxable benefits included in the
above table are in respect of the amounts reimbursed o
Directors as travel and other expenses properly incurred
by them i the performance of their duties. There are no
variable elements in the remuneraton payable o the
Directors.

Under the Company's Artuicles of Associlaton, the 1ol
aggregate remunerailon and kenefizs in kind of the
airectors of the Company s subject 1o a maximurn of
£250.000 1n any financial year. Any change o this would
require shareholder approval.

Loss of Office (audited)

The Direciors do not have service contracts with the
Company but are engaged under letters of appoinimen:
under which there 15 no entitlermen: 1o compensation for
loss of office. Directors are subject to annual re-eleciion
by shareholders.

Total Shareholder Return (rebased)

[

Civitas }VSE Ali-Snars

Taxabie Taxable

Fees benefits Total ___ Tees benelits _ Total
£52,000 - £52.000 f£50060 - £58,000
£33,280 - £33,280 £32.000 - E32,000
£33.280 - E33,280 £32.000 - F32.000
£38,280 - E38,280 £36.000 - 36,000
£33280 - £33280 32000 - £32000
£190,120 - E190120 £182,000 - £i82.000

Company Performance

The following graph compares the performance for the
penod from (20 on 18 November 2016 10 31 March 2C27,
‘he total shareholder rerurn of *he Company's Ordinary
shares relative 'o the ©TSE All-Share index and I'TSE
Real Zs1ate ‘ndex. Although the Company has no formal
benchmark. these indices have been selecied as the
TTSt All-Share represents all companies of a similar
capial size, and the constituen:s of the rI'Ss 350 Real
=state _ndex are UX-based real estate companies and are
therefore considered to represen: the most appropriate
comparaive.

FTSE 350 Real Estate Index
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Director’s Remuneration Report continued

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

The table below ses our, in respect of the vear ended
31 March 2022:

a) ‘he remuneration paid "o the Directors: and

b} the diguibutions made 10 shareholders by way of
dividend.

Year ended

Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
. - . FO  _fO0D
Direciors’ remuneration 190 82
Dividends paid to Ordinary
shareholders 34,093 3343

Directors' Interests {audited)

There 18 no requiremen: under the Company's Arucles
of Association or the terms of their appointment for
Jrectors o hold shares 1n the Company.

As at 31 Varch 2022, the Jirectors (including their
connecied persons) had beneficial interests in the
fallowing number of shares iy the Company:

31 March 2022

ordinary Srdinary
_ _ . shares shares
Michasl Wrobel 120,598 100,598
Alastair Moss 11,766 11,766
Alisen Hadden - -
Caroline Gulliver 58,832 58,832
gg_teLBaxtgr 82,065 47,065

There have been no changes 1o Directors share mierests
berweean 3. March 2022 and the date of this Repor.

None of the Directors or any persons connected
with them had a mazenal interes: in the Company's
:Tansactions arrangements or agreemenss during
-he year

Voting at AGM

‘The Directors’ Remuneraiion 2olicy was approved as

the AGM held on S September 2019 and the Directors
Remuneration Report for the year ended 3° March 2020
was approved at the AGM held on 22 September 202'. The
voties cast by proxy on these resolutions were;

Voles for'  Voles against
% of vates % of votes Votes Totai
cast _ __ cast  wuihheld Notes cast

_Resolution_
To approve
the Directors’
Remuneraion
Repor:

To approve
*he Directors’
Femuneration
Policy

9991 0.09 43214 277654337

99.99 0.01

- 320495728

3 Voles fo3 ingjude discretionary proxy voles granted 10 the Chairman by
shareholders

Consideration of Shareholder Views

The Company 1s commised 10 ongomg shareholder
dialogue and takes an active interest In votng ouicomes.
Wherte shere are subgrantial voles agains: resoldsions

in relanon to Directors’ remunetanon, the Company will
seek the reasons for any such vote and will detaill any
resulning actions ih the Directors’ fernuneraion @por

Approval

The Jireciors’ Remunerauon 2epor: was approved by the
3oard and signed on its behalf by

Michael Wrohel

Chairman

29 June 2022



Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

in respect of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
stazements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements
in accordance with U¢adopled mietnational accouning
standards and the Company financial statemen:s in
accordance with United <ingdom Generally Accepred
Accounung Practice (Unized Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprsing FRS 107 “Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and applicable law).

Under Company law, Directors must not approve the
finanaial stazements unless they are salsfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of
she Group for that period. in preparning the financial
statemen:s, the Directors are required to:

s select suitable accounung policies and then apply
them consistenily:

e state whether apphcable UX-adopted miernational
accouning standards have been followed for the
Group finanaial statements and Unned Kingdom
Accounting Standards, compnsing FRS 207 have been
followed for “he Company financial statements, subjec:
to any matenal depariures discloged and explained in
the financial statements;

» make judgements and accounung estimates tha: are
reasonahle and prudent; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis uniesstis nappropriate 1o presume that the
Group and Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for safequarding the
assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and otherirregularities.

‘I'he Directors are also responsible for keeping adequate
accountng records that are sufficien: 1o show and
explain the Group's and Company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the
financial posiiion of the Group and Company and
enable them 10 ensure tha: the financal statements and
the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 2006.

The Mirectors are responsible for the maintenance and
integnty of the Company's financial s:atements published
on the ulumate parent Company's wehsite Legislation

in the Uniied Xingdom governing the preparation and
disserminanon of financial stazements may differ from
legqislation in other jurisdicuions.

Directors’ Confirmations

The Directors consider tha: the Annual Repor: and
arcoiintg, taken ag a whole, 15 fair, balanced and
undersiandalble and provides the information necessary
for shareholders 10 assess the Group's and Company's
position and performance, business model and strategy.

Fach of the Directors, whose names and funcions are
listed in the 3oard of Directors confirm that, 10 the bes: of
their knowledge:

& he Group financial statements, which have been
prepared 1in accordance with UX-adopted internaticnal
accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the
Group;

e the Company financial statements, which have
been prepared 1in accordance with United Kingdom
Accountng Standards, compnsing FRS 101, give a true
and fair view of the assets, habilities and financial
position of the Company; and

¢ the Group Strategic Report includes a fair review of the
developmen: and performance of the business and the
position of the Group and Company, :ogether with a
descrniption of the principal nisks and uncertaintes that
it faces.

Approval

This Statermnent of Directors’ Responsibilines was
approved by the Board and signed on 1:s behalf by:

Michael Wrobel
Chairman

29 June 2022
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Alternative Investment

Fund Managers Directive

As the Company and the Allernanve nvesimer* fund
Manager {the AN are each domaciled in the Unied
Xingdorm, the 7CA Handbook rules require that, among
other things. *he ATV makes available ~he following
informarnoen 10 shareholders of the Company under the
AITMD (as implemeanted in the UK and o nonfy them of
any ma:enal change ‘oinformation previcusly provided.

These disclosures can also be found on the Company’s
websiie: civitassoclalhousing.com

Investment Policy, Leverage and
Liquidity (AIFMD 23(1){(a){b){h))

The investmen: strateqgy and objectives of the Company.
the types of asseis 1t may inves: in and the investmenrt
sechnugques it may employ. associated rigks and any
investmen® resiniciions are laid out in the invesimen:
objectives and pohicy and other secuions of the

Annual Zepor:.

for information about the circumstances in which

<he Company may use leverage. the types of sources
permitied and the associated risks and any restrictions
on the use of leverage and any coilateral and asset
re-use arrangemencts, shareholders are directed o the
disclesures contained 1n the investmen: objeciives and
policy section of these financial statements as well as
specific AITVD related disclosures further belowr.

Under the FCA's Lisuing iles 10 which the Company 1s
subject it needs the prior approval of 1:s shareholders o
make a mazenal change o its iInvestment policy.

Since the Company s closed-ended withou: redemption
rights. iquidny rigk managemern: 1§ imired o0 the
ligadity recquired o meet the Company's obhgatnons in
relauon o t1s financing arrangemen:s. The A7M uihses
variouds rnisk assessment merhods w0 measure the nisk of
porfolio thgquidity “o meer the Company s abligatons.
This measuremen: enables the provision of managemen:
informanon o the A'°M and the 3oard of *he Company o
enable thesge nisks o be monttored and managed.

Legal Relationship with Investors (AIFMD
23(Xch

The Company 13 a pubhc lmited company hsied on the
London Stock xchange. The Company 1S incorporated
under the laws of tngland and Wales The consutunonal
documen: of the Company 15 1is arlicles of aszoclation
which may only be amended by way of a special
resolunon of 1's shareholders. Upon the purchase

of shares, an invesior becomes a shareholder of the
Compeany. A shareholders habilizy 1o the Company wall
e mized o0 the amoun: uncalled on “heir shares

As the Company 18 incorporated under the laws

of zngland and Wales, it may not be possible for a
shareholder located cutside that junsdicion @ effect
service of process within the local junsdiciion in which
“ha: shareholder resides upon the Company. All or

a subs:anual poroon of the assets of the Company
may be located ouiside a local jurisdiction 1n which
a shareholder resides and, as a result, 1t may not be
possible o satisfy @ judgemen: agans: the Company
1 such local furisdicuon or to enforce a judgemen:
obtained in the local junsdicaon's courts agamnst

“he Company.

AIFM and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)(d),
(e) and (f))

The ATFM (G'C Capital amited) 1s a private limied
company with 1s registered office at 3 More London
Riverside, J.ondon SE! 2AQ. G1¢ Capital Limited 18
authonsed and requlated by the Ninancial Conduct
Authonty (TRN 648953). » has been appointed by the
Company ‘o manage the Company under an Ali"V
Agreemen: with effect from 24 August 2617

The Al=M 15 responsible for portfolio management
and nsk management and monitanng of the assets of
he Company and has discretionary authonty over “he
acquisiiion and disposition of the Company's assets,
with power o give guarantees and undertake other
‘ransacuons on behalf of the Company subject ta the
provisions of the AlZM Agreemen:. The Al 1s also
responsibie for ensunng compliance with the ATTMD

The AITV's dunes under the AIFV. Agreement are owed
o the Company as a whole rather than directly 10 the
sharehoelders, whether individually or in groups The
soard of the Company is respansible under the ATV
Agreemen: for represeniing the Company in 118 dealings
with the ATFM.

nt order o comply with 118 regulatory obligauons, the
AV holds professional indemnity insurance.

Depaositary and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)
{d) and (f))

‘ndos financial Limited {the “Deposizary”) has been
appoin:ed as the Depositary of the Company under

a Jeposiiary Agreemen: in accordance with A7V )
requiremen:s. The Deposiary 1s @ company incorporated
n sngland {registered number 08255973 whose
regisiered office 1s ar 54 Tenchurch Street, London ZC3/
3]¥ zig authorised 10 act as 4 Depostary by the 7CA (VN
602528 The Jepositary 1s responsible for safekeeping

of *he Company's invest'men:s, incliding holding in
custody those investmensts which are recnured o be

held in cus ody and venfying ownership and keeping
records of the Company's other iInves'men:s, and for cash
mOonLoring.



Alternative Investment

Fund Managers Directive continued

The Depositary’s dunes under *he Depostary Agreement
are owed to the Company as a whole and no: directly to
shareholders, whether individually or in groups.

The invesiments of the Company are not of a kind
required to be held 1n custody by the Deposttary.

Independent Auditor (AIFMD 23(1)(d))

The independent auditor of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2022 was 2nicewaterhouseCoopers LL.7
The auditor's duties, which are se: ou: on pages 86 and
87/, are owed to the Company as a whole. They have a
starvdiory responstbility to repont to the members of the
Company as a whole 1n relation 1o the truth and fairness
of the Company's state of affairs and profit or loss.

Valuation (AIFMD 23(L)(g))

The asse:s of the Company are valued in accordance
with the provisions set out in the Valuation Policy. The
nvestmen: Commisiee which has been set up by the
AIFM in respect of the Company and 1t's assets adds

a further level of oversight to the valuation process as
set out on 1n the Corporate Governance section of the
Annual Report,

Fees and Expenses (AIFMD 23{1){i})

The Company incurs costs In the form of deposizary fees,
cus-odian fees, bank fees and charges, marketling fees.
auditors’ fees, lawyers' fees, fand administrazion fees,
company secre:arial fees and other fees.

Fair Treatment of Investors and
Preferential Treatment (AIFMD 23(1)(j)

No preferential righss have been granted 1o any
exisung shareholder.

The Company and the AlTM are commitied (0 ensuring
“hat all shareholders are treated fairly and in accordance
with UK company law. They have no: and will not enter
nto any arrangement with one shareholder which

could resul: in any overall mazerial disadvantage 1o the
other shareholders.

Issue and Redemption of Shareholder

Interests in the Company ((AIFMD 23(1){(1})

The Company 1s closed-ended and does no: provide for
redemprion or repurchase of the interes:s of ordinary
shareholders at their reques:.

Reporting and Performance (AIFMD 23(1)
{k), 23(1)(m) and 23(1)(n))

The histonc performance of the Company, 1o the exien:
available, has been disclosed o shareholders in the
Company's Annual and Half Yearly Reporis, which will be
sent r0 shareholders and are available from
hop//ewnzassocialhousing.comy.

The latest NAV of the Company is published in the
latest Annual or qalf Yearly Report or quarterly
NAV announcement

Prime Broker (AIFMD 23(1){(0})}

The Company does no: have a prnime broker.

Method of Making Ongoing/Periodic
Disclosures (AIFMD 23(1)(p),23(4),23(5))

information about the Company's risk profile and nisk
managerment, total leverage and any matenal change to
the arrangements for managing the Company's haquidity,
the propornon of assets {if any) subject o special
arrangemen:s ansing from liquidizy, the maximum
permitted leverage or the grant of nghts of re-use of
collateral or griarantees 1n relaucn to leverage will be
provided in the Cormpany's Annual 2epor:s or on the
Company's website htip//civizassocialhousing com/

Risk Profile and Risk Management
(AIFMD 23{4)(c))

The appointment of the AIFM as the Ai¥M of the
Company under the Ail'MD means that it 1s responsible
for risk managemen: and the ongoing process of
identifying, evaluating, monitornng and managing

the risks facing the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the AIFMD. The Board keeps the AIIV's
performance of these responsibilities under review as
par: of its overall responsibiliy for the Company's risk
managemen: and internal conirols.
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The principal risks of the Company are set out in the risk
management sectich in the Annual Report. The AltM's
risk management sysiem incorporates regular review

of these nsks and -he eszablishment of appropnate nisk
Iimits and nternal contrel processes to mitigate the
risks. The sensiivity of the Company to relevan: nsks 1s
furrher detailed 1in the risk management sectnion n the
Annual Report.

Restrictions on the Use of Leverage and
Maximum Leverage (AIFMD 23(5))

As specified 1n the Investment objecuves and policy 1n
the Annual 2epor:, The Company has the abiluy to put up
10 a maximum leverage of 40% of the Company's Gross
Asset Value and he AFI oversees the use of leverage o
ensure “ha: the use of borrowing 1s consistent with this
requirement. Leverage 18 calculated using gross assets,
with various adjus ments, drvided by net asse’s.

Lnder A.r'MD, the Company is required 1o calcalate
leverage under the :wo methodologies specified by
che Direcuve. the 'Grogs Method' and the ‘Commitment
Method, the difference being tha: the Commitment
Method allows certain exposures to be offser or netted
Disclosures are made on the website of the Company.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

N OUr OpINIoT.

s Crvitas Social Housing ?LC's Group financial
statemen:s and Company financial statements (the
‘financial statemenis”) give a true and fair view of
the srate of the Group’s and of the Company’s affairs
as a: 37 March 2022 and of the Group's profit and the
Group's cash flows for the year then ended;

s he Group financial statements have been
properly prepared 1n accordance with UK-adopted
international accounung standards;

« the Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepied Accounung ractice {United
Kingdom Accounnung Standards, compnsing £RS 101
“Reduced 3Zisclosure Framework™. and apphcable law);
and

¢ he financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006.

We have audited the finanmal statements, inmcluded within
the Annual Repor: and Accounts ¢the "Anndal Report™.
which compnse: the Consolidated and Company
Satemen:s of Minancial 2os1tion as at 31 March 2022

the Consohidated S:atemens: of Comprehenswe ‘ncome,
the Consclidated S:atemen: of Casgh Mows, and the
Consohdated and Company S:atemen:s of Changes

n =quity for the vear then ended; and the nores to the
financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accouning pohcies.

Our opinton 18 consisient with our reporing 1o the
Audit and Managemen: zngagemen: CoOmmitea

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with inernational
Standards on Audring (UK} ("ISAs (LK) and apphcable
law. Qur responsibiiies under JSAs (LX) are further
described in “he Audrors responsibilinies for the audit of
the financial statements section of our repor.. We belisve
that the audiz evidence we have obramed 18 sufficien: and
appropriae ‘o provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independen: of the Group 1h accordance
with the ethical requirements thas are relevans to our
audtz of the financial statemen:s in the UK which includes
the “RC's thical S:tandard. as applicable o hsted public
incerest enties. and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibihues in accordance with these reqiiremen:s.

To the best of our knowledge and belief. we declare
‘hat non-audis services prohibized by the “RC’'s -thical
Srandard were no: provided.

Other than those disclosed in Note 9 ¢, we have provided
no non-audit services to the Company or /s controlled
undertakings inthe penod under aadis

Our audit approach

Overview

Audit scope

& We ajlored the scope of our audit to ensure that we
performed enocugh work to be able to give an opinion
on the financial statements as a whole, ‘aking into
accoun: the structure of the Group and the Company,
the accounting processes and conrals. and the
mndustry in which they opera‘e. The Group consis:s of a
single reportable segmen:.

Key audit matters
e Valuanon of invesimen: property {Group).

e Ability "o continue as a going concern {Continuarion
Resolution) (Group and paren: Companyy.

Materiality
¢  Overall Group mazenah:y: £:04 million
{2027 £C 4 milhon) hased on 1% of ;otal asses.
e Overall Company matenality: £8.2 milhion
{2027 £74 milhon) based on 1% of “otal assets,
s Performance maenalicy: £7.8 miflion
(2022 £78 milhon) (Group) and £6.2 millicn
(2021: £5.6 milhon) (Company).

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our auadiz, we determined mazenality
and assessed the nisks of material missiazement in the
financial statements.

Key audit matters

Xey audic mastiers are those maters tha:, in the audizors
professional judgemen:, were of mos: signmificance

in the audr: of the iinancial staremenss of the curren:
rernod and include the mos: sigmficant assegsed risks
of matenal missiatement {whether or no: due to fraud)
idenufied by the audizors. including those which had
‘he greates: effect on the overall audi strategy; the
allocation of resources in the audit; and direciing the
effor:s of the engagemen: team. These maters. and any
commean:s we make on the resualis of our procedures
chereon were addressed i the contex: of our audn

of *he financial s*atements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opInion on these maers,

This 15 no: a compleie hs: of all nsks idenufied by our
audis

Ability o coniinude as a going concern (Coninuation
Resolustont 15 a new key audis mater this year COV D-19,
which was a key audit mater las: year, 1s no longer
included because of -he ltmited impac: 1z has had on
*he Group and Company s business and operanions.
Otherwise, the key audi: maters below are consistiens
with las: year




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investment property (Group)

Refer to tne Report of the Audil and Managemen:
Engagemen: Comunitice Note 3.1, Significant estimaie
va.aation of invesimen: property and Note 150, Investmen?
proper.y.

[nvestment properties are heid at a fair value of F9452 mi.lion
as at 31 March 2022 in the Consolidated Statemen: of
Financia’ Posttion. The va'uation of the Group's invesiment
property is :he key component of the net asse: va:ue and
underpins the Group's resul: for the year The resul: of the
revaluation this year was a gain of £12.3 million, which is
accodnied for within ‘Change in fair vaiue of invesimen:
properlies’ in ine Conso.idated Statemen: of Comprehensive
[ncome. Tne Grewp's inves:men: properny porfo.io consis:s
of spectalist social housing properties loca‘ed in England
and Waies which are el (o Reqgistered Providers of social
nousing on long-ierm jeases.

Tnvesimen: property valuations were carried out by a thrd
parcy valuer. Jones Lang LaSae (TLIV or the Valuer) The
Va.uer was engaged by the Directors and performed their
work in accordance with the Royal Instituie of Charered
Surveyors (RICS) RICS Va uation  Protfessional Standards
and the reguiremen:s of Internationa! Accounting Standard
48 Invesimen: Property.

In determining nc value of a property. the Valuer has

ta<en into account propery-gpecific informasnon inciuding
the lease ierm and renia. income payao e They applied
assuimptions 1o arrive a: the discount rate wiich is anoiner
Key inpul 1o the vaiualion This has reference 10 ne: initia.
vie d and CPI growth rate whicn are influenced by prevaling
marke: condiiions and comparab.e transacions

Tae va.Jaxdion of tne Group's invesimen: propery portfolio
was identified as a key audit mater given the va.wation

is innerently subjective due o among other faciors, the
individua. nawire of each propery. its .ocation and the
expeacied future rental sireams for that particu.ar proper'y.
“he significance of the estiimares and judgements inve.ved,
colipled wit the fact that only a sma.. perceniage difference
in individua. propery vaiLaiions. when aggregated, could
resull in @ materia. misstatement warranied spccific audit
focus in this area.

Given the inherent supjecivity invoved in the valuation

of 1ne property portfoiio. and therefore 1ne need for deep
marke: knowledge wnaen delermining the most appropria’e
assumptions and tne secanicaiiles of valuation methodoiogy.
we cngaged our interna. valuation experts (qua.ified
charierod surveyorg) 1o asgis: ws in odr audi: of thie arca.

Assessing the valuers’ expertise and objectivity

We read the Va'uers report and conlirmed thal lne approach
used was consistent with the RICS guide.ines. We assessed
“he Valueor's gua.ifications and experiise and read their terms
of engagement with the Group. determining thal ‘here were
ne masters ha! affecied neir independence and opeciivity
or imposed scope limitations apon them. We a_so considercd
[ees and other conlractua: arrangemen:s that migh: exist
bewween the Group and the Valier. We found no evidence o
sugges: tha: the objectivity of the Valuer was compromised.

Assumptions and estimates used by the Valuer

In our esting, which involved the use of cur interna. rea
ostale va.aation experts, we considered the assumplions
Liidsed by the Valuer within e valuation, including
unders:anding now these assumptions were deve:opead
We a.sc performed benchmarking where observable
market evidence was available. We cnallenged tne Valuer
regarding the impact of the regulatory environment on
investor sentimen: and asset values. We attlended meecungs
with management and the Valaer at whicna the valuation
meinodology and the xey assumpiions were discusscd.
We cnallenged their approach 10 the vaisations. and the
rationaie behind ‘he more significan: valuation assumpiions
adopred Where assumptions werc outside (he expecied
range. we under:ook further investigations, neld furiher
discussions with the Valuer and obtained evidence 1o
suppor: expianations received. We also challenged the
Valuers as (o 1ne extent they have 1axen inlo accoun: e
impaci of climate cnange and related E3G considerations
within the Vaiuations. The responses orovided by the
Valucr and supporting evidence. enabled us 10 consider
the properiy specific factors that may have had an impac:
on value, including recent comparaole iransactions
waers aporopriate. We concouded that tne assumplions
Laed by the Valuer were consisient with our exgeciations
and comparanie bencamarxing and marke: iransaction
informaztion for :he asse! type.
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Data used by the Valuer and legal title

We validated the data used oy ne Valuer and found that it
was consistent with tne information we audited. This data
inciuded inpuis such as curren: rent, ren: indexaion (CPl or
CPI+1%) and lease erm. wnich we have agreed on a sample
basis 10 executed iease agreements as par: of our audi:
work We venfied legal ownership of properties through
independen: fizle deed confirmations on a samp.e hasis

We concluded (na! the assumptions used in the va.ualions
Dy ine Va, ders were sueporabe in light of the evidence
obtained and the disc.osures within the Annual Report are
sufficien: and appropriate. We have no issues to report in
aspect of this work,
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Key audit matier

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Ability to continue as a going concern (Continuation
Resolution) (Group and Company)

Reler to the Going Concern and Viabi.ity Staiement.

the Report of the Audit and Managemen: Engagemen:
Commitee, Nowe 2.2, Going congern in the Grodp Financial

Statemen:s and Note 2.0, Bas:s of preparaion in the Company

Financia! Statements

The Company’s artic.cs of assoclatlon include a requiremen:
for the Board 10 propose an ordinary reso.uiion at the annua’
general meeting fo.owing the fifth anniversary from: the
initial pubic offering of the Company for the Company
conin.e inis carren: form he Consinuaton Resolalion),

If :ne Continuaiion Reso.ution 1s passed. the Company wi..
coniinue its PLsiness as presentuy cons'ituled and propose
ne same reso.ilion at every fifth ann . al general meeiing
thereafrer [f the Continuation Reso.ution is not passed, the
Directors wiil be required, within six months afzer the dae
of thig annual genera. mee:ing, 10 formu.are proposa s

for consideration by the shareholders for the voluntary
Iguidation. unitisalion, reorganisaion of reconsiruction of
ae Company

A Continuation Reso.ution 1s due (o ake place at (ne nex:
Annua. Genera: Meeiing on 15 Septemper 3822, whicn is
wiihin tne going concern assessmen: poriod. AS such. the
Directors nave considercd and assessad the like.ihood

of :ne Continuadon Resciaiion passing and the poienia.
impac: on tae agiy of the Company ‘o continuae as a going
concern. Tne Directory are of the view tha the Continuation
Resolulon wi. be passed ar (he forihcoming ann.a.
genera. meeling. Additionally. the Direciors expec: ‘hat if
e Contnnaation Resolation s not passed. an event which
cne Direciors consider 0 oe hign.y remole, formuiaing

and imp.emening any £Jch proposa.s woud reguire ine
Company 0 coniinue operations for a period of a: eas:

12 on:as from the date of aporova: of the Company's
financial statemen:s

Tne apility 1o conringe as a going concern was idencified
ag a ey awdil matier given tha: this is tae firs: Continauation
Resoluiion since tne formasion of tae Company and ‘nere
is sdgemen: invo ved in management’s agsessmen: in e
Ixelnood of ne Continuation Reso.ution passing

We evaluaied the Directors asscessment of going concern
including tne impact of the Continuazion Reso uiion on inis
assessmen:. We cansidered the Direciors’ assessmen: ol
the iikelihcod of the Contintation Resolution passing. As
nar of our analysis we aso considered the impact if the
Continua:ion Resoiution did no: pass on the going concern
assessment. As par: of (ais eva.uation, we performed the
following procedures:

e  We considered the composinon of the shareholder
regisier;

e We held discussions with managemens:, the
Company's main broker, and members of the board 0
anderstand their communicanions with shareholders
n the Company;

e We challenged management's assessmen: of the
shareholder bhase and share price performance:

e We read the arucles of association o unders:and the
process and nming of events in the simuaton where
the Continuaton Resolution were no: to pass. This
included challenging managemean:’s assessmen: tha:
the Company would remain a gomng concern even
in the even: where the Connnuation Resoluiion were
no: to pass, taking mo accoun: the likely 1mescale
necessary for proposals 1o be formulated and
mplemented.

In addition to ine proceduras asove, we dss
disc.osures presenied in ine Ann.a Repor: in re.anion o
going concern and tne Conrindation Resol.ion and congider
hese 10 pe adequate (o explain ne resulis of e Direciors’
assessiment

Further audit orocedures and o.ur findings in resece: of
Jgoing concern are se! out in tne "Conc.usions relating 0
Coing Concern” secion he.ow




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

How we tailored the audit scope

We tallored the scope of our audi: 10 ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the
financial statements as a whole, taking into account the siruciure of the Group and the Company. the accounting
processes and conirols, and the industry in which they operate.

The Group's properties are spread across 138 statutory enitties with the Group financial statements bemng a
consolidanion of these entities. All work was carried out by the Group audit team with addinonal procedures
performed on the consohdation to ensure sufficient coverage and appropnate audit evidence for our opinion on the
Group financial s;atements as a whole.

Materiality
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiahity, We set certain quantitative thresholds for 8
mazenality. These, together with qualitauve consideraticns, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the 3
nature, timing and ex:en: of our audit procedures on the mdividual financlal statement line items and disclosures and 3
n evaluating the effect of misstatemen's, both indwvidually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole. 2
L]
; 4]
Rased on our professiocnal judgemen:, we determined matenality for the financial statements as a whole as follows: 2
m
- =
Financial statements — Group Financial statements — Company g
Qverall £10.4 million {2021: £1C 4 milion) £8.2 mi.lion (2021" £7.4 mi.1on)} E
materiality i
How we 1% of to:al asseis 1% of tora. assels
determined it
Rationale for The key measure of the Group's performance is (e The Company's main aciivity is the holding of
benchmark va.uation ol invesimen: propersies and the ba.ance  investments in subsidianes. On this basis, we se!
applied sheet as a wnhole. Given this, we set an overal: an overaii Company maeriality ;cve. based on
Group materiality evel based on oadl asseis. total asscets

‘n addition ‘o overall Group matenality, a specific matenality was also apphed to income s:atement line

1rems that impac: Adjusted Profiz Before Tax {AP3T), which 15 based on profi: before tax, adjusted o exclude

fair value gains/Alosses) on investment property and derivatives. We set a specific overall materialiy level

of £1.5 million (2027 £2.5 million}, equaiing 0 5% of A?8T n arnving at this judgement. we considerad the fac:

tha: APBT is a secondary hinancial indicator of the Group which 1s disclesed as ZPRA Earnings in the Annual Report
(refer to the Group Strategic Report where the term is defined o full).

We use performance materiality 1o reduce to an appropnaiely low level the probabihty that the aggregate of
anceorrected and undetected missiatements exceeds overall mazenality. Specifically, we use performance matenality
in determinuing the scope of our audit and :he nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of
rransactions and disclosures. for example in determining sample sizes. Our performance mazeriahty was 79%

(2027 75%) of overall materiality, amouniung o £7.8 milllon {202°: £7.8 millicn) for the Group financial statemen:s and
£6.2 milhon {2021: £5.6 milhon) for the Company financial stazements.

In determining “he performance matenality, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatemencs, nsk
assessmen® and aggregation nisk and the effecuveness of controls - and concluded tha: an amount at the upper end
of our normal range was appropraie.

We agreed with the Audir and Managemen: zngagemen: Commuitee tha: we would repor: 1o them misstatements
idenufied dunng our audic above £5:9.000 (Group audit} (2027 £4i8.000) and £41..000 (Company audit) (2021 £372,000} as
well ag misstazements below those amounts that, in eur view, warranted reporting for quahtanve reasons.

in addizion, we agreed with the Audit and Management mngagermen: Commitiee we would repor: :o them
misstatements idenntfied during our Group audtt above £75.000 {2020 £77.000) for misstatemen:s related o financal
statement hne tems impacting ARET within the financial statements, ag well as migstazemen:s below thar amount that,
In our view, warranted reporiing for qualitative reasons.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continuea

Conclusions relating to going concern

Qur evajuanon of the Directors’ assessmen: of the Group's
and the Company's ability to continue to adop: the going
concern basis of accounung included:

¢ Corrohorated key assumptions (eg hquidity forecasts
and financing arrangements) to underlying
documentation and ensured this was consisient with
our gqudit work in these areas;

e Considered management’s forecasting accaracy by
comparnng how the forecasts made in the prior year
compare 0 the actual resulis of the current year,

o Undersioond and assessed the appropnateness of the
key assumpiions used both in the base case and in
“he severe but plaugible downside scenano, including
assessing whethetr we considered the downside
sensiciviies o be appropnately severe;

e Tested :he inzegnty of the underlying formulas and
calcalauoens within the going concern and cash flow
models;

s Considered "he appropnateness of the mingasing
actiong availalble to management in the evenr of the
downside scenano matenahsing. Specifically, we
focused on whether these actions are within the Group's
conirol and are achievable;

e Reviewed the deb: covenan: calculations agreeing
the mputs to the audied resulis, Additicnally, we have
reviewed managemen:'s siress rests on the covenan's;

¢ Reviewed the disclosures provided relaung o the going
conecern hasis of preparazion and found that these
provided an explanation of the Directors’ assessmen:
tha* was consisien: with *he endence we obtammed; and

s We have performed procedures over the Conanuation
Resolunion as detalled in the ey Audi Maner

3ased on the work we have performed, we have nos
identified any matenal unceralnues relaling 1o even:s
or condizions tha: indinidually or collecnively, may cas:
signtfican: doubk: on the Group's and the Company's
abiltty to continue as a going concern for a period of at
leas: mwelve months from when the financial statemenss
are authonsed for issue

n audiang the financial statements, we have concluded
that the direcrors use of the going concern basis of
accounang in the preparaton of the financial statemen:s
12 appropriaze.

—owever, because not all future events or condiriions can
te predicied. this conclusion 1s noT a guaran-ee as o the
Groun's and the Company's alliy 10 conuinue as a going
Cconcern

‘n relation to the Directors’ reporing on how they have
applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have
nothing matenal o add or draw attenuon ain relation o
she Directors’ stazement in the financal statemen:s about
whether “he Directors considered 1t appropriate to adapt
the going concern basis of accounting.

Qur responsibiliies and the responsibilinies of the
Directors with respect 1o going concern are descnbed in
*he relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The orher informarion compnses ajl of the informaton

i the Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our Auditors’ repor: thereon. The Directors are
responsikle for the other informaton. Our opimion on the
financial statements does no: cover the ather informauon
and. accordingly, we do not express an audit opimion or,
excep: 10 the exien: otherwise explicitly stated i this
report, any form of assurance thereon

‘n connecion with our audi: of the financial statements,
wdr responsibility is o read the other informatcn and,
in doing so, consider whether the other informanon 18
matenally inconsistent with the financial stazemen:s

or our knowledge obiamned 1n the audit. or otherwise
appears o be matenally misstated. f we 1denufy

an apparen: matenal inconsisiency or masernal
missiatement. we are reqaired o perform procedures
o conclude whether there 1s a matenal misstatement
of the financial statements or a materal missiatemens
of the other informaton. f, kased on the work we

have performed, we conclude that there 1s a maternal
missiatemens of this other information, we are required
o repor: that fact. We have nothing ‘o repor: based on
“hese responsibilities

With respec: 10 the Group Strategic Repor: and rRepor: of
-he Direciors. we also considered whether the disclosures
required by the L Companes Act 2006 have been
included

3ased on our work underzaken in the course of the audr,
“he Companies Ac: 2006 requires us also 1o repor ceriammn
opinions and maters as descrnibed below.



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Group Strategic Report and Report of the Directors

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course
of the audit, the informauon given in the Group Strateqgic
Repor: and rRepor: of the Direciors for the year ended

31 March 202215 consistent with the financial statements
and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requiremen:s.

In highs of the knowledge and understanding of the

Group and Company and their environment obtamed in
the course of *he audit, we did not iWdenufy any material
misstatements in the Group Strategic Report and Repor: of
the Directors.

Directors’ Remuneration

in our opinion, the par of the Jirectors’ Remuneration
Repor: to be audited has been properly prepared 1n
accordance with the Companies Acs 2006.

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the Direciors’
statements in relation 0 going concerrn, longer-term
viabiliry and tha: par: of the corporate governance
statement relating to the Company's compliance with

the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review. Our addriional responsibilinies
with respect :0 he corporate governance siatemern: as
other informatuon are described in the Reporing on other
information section of this repor.

3ased on the work under:aken as par: of our audr:, we
have concluded that each of the following elements of the
corporate governance s:azement 18 maerially consisten:
with the financial statements and our knowledge obtained
during the audit, and we have nothung maserial 7o add or
draw atzention o 1n relazion o

¢ The Directors  confirmaion that they have carned out
a robust assessment of the emerging and principat
risks;

¢ The disclosures in the Annual Report that descnbe
those principal nsks, wha: procedures are 1n place 1o
identify emerging risks and an explanation of how
these are being managed or minigated:

« ‘The Directors statement in the financial statements
abou: whether they considered it appropriate 10
adopt the going concern basis of accoun:ing in
preparing them, and their identficauon of any
matenal unceriainies 1o the Group's and Company's
ability w0 continue o do so over a penod of at leas:
twelve months from the date of approval of the
financtal statements;

e ‘The Jirectors explanation as to their assessment of
rhe Group's and Company's prospec:s, the penod this
assessmen: covers and why the period 15 appropriae;
and

e The Directors siatement as 10 whether they have a
reasonable expec:ation that the Company will be able
to confinue 1n operation and mee: 115 habiltties as they
fall due over the penod of 118 assessment, inclading
any related disclosures drawing a‘tention o any
necessary qualifications or assumptions.

har review nf “he Ditectors’ statement regarding tho
longer-term viabiluty of the Group was substanually

less in scope than an audit and only consisted of
making inqunes and considenng the RDirectors’ process
supporting their statement; checking that the statement
is in alignment with the relevan: provisions of the UK
Corparate Governance Code; and considering whether
the statement 1s consistent with the financial statements
and our knowledge and understanding cof the Group and
Company and their environment obtained in the course
of the audit.

_n addiuocn, based on the work undenaken as par of
our audr, we have concliaded that each of the following
elements of the corporate governance statemerns: 1s
matenally congisten: with the financial stazements and
our knowledge obtained during the audit:
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e The Directors statement that *hey consider the
Annual Report, zaken as a whole, 1s fair, balanced
and understandable, and provides the information
necessary for the members o assess the Group's and
Company's position, performance, business modeil
and sirategy;

e The section of the Annual Repor: that describes the
review of effectiveness of risk management and
mternal con:rol systems. and

e The section of the Annual Repor: describing the
work of the Audit and Managemen: cngagement
Commistee.

We have nothing o repor: in respect of our responsibility
10 report when the Ditec:ors stazement reianing :o the
Company's compliance with the Code does no: properly
disclose a deparmure from a relevan: provision of the
Code specified under the Listing Rules for review by the
Auditors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Responsibilities for the financial
statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the

financial statements

As explained more fally in the Statement of Directors’
Responsikilhues, the Directors are responsible for the
preparasion of the financial statemen:ts in accordance
with the apphcable framework and for being satisfied
tha: They give a tnie and fair iew. The Directors are also
responsikle for such mternal control as they determine
15 necessary o enable the preparaunon of financial
statements that are free from matenal misstatement,
whether due o fraud or error.

n preparing the financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's
ability to conuinue as a going concern, disclosing,

as applicable, matters related to gowng concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless

~he Directors erzherintend o hquidate the Group or the
Company or 10 cease operasions, or have no realisic
alwernative but 1o do so.

Auditors’ responsihilities for the audit of the

financial statements

Our objectves are o obtain reascnable assurance abou:
whether the financial staternents as 4 whole are free from
matenal missiatemens, whether due o fraud or error,

and 10 18sue an auditors report that includes our opinion
Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but s
no: a guarantee tha: an audit conduced in accordance
with (SAs {UX) will always detect a matenal misstatemen:
when 17 exists. Missiatements can arnse from fraud or
error and are considered matenal if, individually or in the
aggregare, they could reasonably be expecied to influence
‘he economic decisions of users taken on the kasis of
chese financial tatemensts.

‘rregalarries, including frayd, are instances of non-
comphance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures 1in hne with our responsibilites, outhned
above, 10 detect material missiatemen:s in respec: of
wrregalanies, including fraud. The exten: :o which our
procedures are capable of deteciing wregulanues,
inclading fraud. 13 detailed below

3ased on our understanding of the Group and industry.
we idenified tha: the pnincipal nsks of non-comphance
with laws and reqgulanons relazed 0 comphance with
che Real =state ‘nvestmen: Trus: (RZTT) statas Par 22 of
“he Corporation Tax Ac: 20°C and the LXK regulatory
prnciples, sach as those governed by the “inancial
Conduac: Authonty and we considered the exten: o
which non-comphance migh: have a mazerial effect on
‘he financial statements. We also considered those laws
and reguianons “ha: have a direct impac: on the financial
statemenss such ag the Companies Act 2006

We evaluated management's incentives and
opporunihes for fraudulent manmipulation of the financial
sratermenss (ncluding the nsk of overnde of controls),

and determined *ha: the pnincipal nsks were related

Yo postingg inappropnae journal entnes o increase
revenue or reduce expendiuare, and management bias

LN AcCoOUnUNg esimates, in particular the valuaton of
inmvestmen: properties. Audit procedures perfaormed by the
engagemen! team included:

e Jiscussions with managemens. including
consideration of known or suspectied instances of
non-comphance with laws and regulations and fraud.
and review of the repor:s made by managemen:;

& Lnderstanding of management’s internal controls
designed to preven: and detect irregulanties;

e Asgsessmen: of maters, if any, repored o the Audi:
and Managemen: sngagement Committee,

e Reviewing relevan: meeting minutes, inchuding
those of the 3oard of Directors and the Audit and
Vanagement Zngagemen: Commiee;

e Review of tax compliance with the involverment of our
ax spectaligts in che audis

o Designing audit procedures 1o ncorporate
Jnprediciability over the nazure, amning and extent of
our esting of expanses:

¢ Zrocedures relaiing o the valuauon of invesimen:
nroperies described in the related key audir mazer
above; and

s denlifying and "esang journal enirias, in paricular
any jo.rnal entries posted with unusual accoun:
compinanons and words.

There are inherent imi:anons in the audi: procedures
described above We are less hikely :0 become aware of
mstances of non-comphance with laws and regulanons
~har are not closely related 0 eventg and rrangactions
reflected in the financial statements. Also. the risk of no:
dereciing @ material imissiatemen: due o fraud 1s higher
“han the nsk of not deteciing cne resuling from error,
as fraud may involve deliberate concealmen: by, for
example, forgery or intenzional misrepresentations, or
‘hrough collusion.

Our audi: testing migh: mnclude tesing complete
populations of certain sransacuons and balances,
possibly using data audiung techniques. Zowever, 1t
“ypically involves selecung a imied number of rems for
sesung, rather than tesung complete populanons. We will
ofien seek 0 targe: paricular izems for tesung based on
“heir size or risk characternstics. .n other cases, we will
ase audi sampling o enatble us o draw a conclusion
abour the populanon from which “he sample 1s selected

A further descripuion of our responsibilinies for the
addiz of the financial szatemenis 1s located on the "2C's
webste at www frcorg.uk/audizorsresponsibilinies. This
desecnipiion forms par of our audrors repor.



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the Company's members as a bedy in
accordance with Chapter % of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not. in gqiving
‘hese opinicns, accep: or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or o any other person 0 whom this report
15 shown or into whose liands iU iay come save where
expressly agreed by our pnior consen: 1n writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required 1o 1eport
to you if, 1n our opinion:

e we have no: obtained all the information and
explanazions we require for our audit; or

s adequate accounting records have not been kept by
*he Company, or reiurns adequate for our audi: have
no: been receved from branches no: visited by us; or

e certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made; or

e ‘he Company financial statements and the part of
the Direcrors’ Remuneration Repor: 1o be audned are
not in agreement with the accouning records and
retrns.

We have no excephons to report arising from this
responsibility.

Appointment

ollowing the recommendaton of the Audit and
Management Engagemens: Committeg, we were
appoinied by the members on 37 Viarch 2027 to audit the
financial starements for the period ended 17 November
2016 and subsequens: financial peniods. The period of
otal uninterrupted engagemens: is 6 years, covenng the
penods ended 17 November 206 to 31 March 2022,

Other matter

‘n due course, as required by the Nnancial Conduct
Authorry Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule
4111R, these financial statements will form par: of the
=8ir-prepared annual financial report filed on the
National Storage Mechanism of the Financial Conduct
Auathorry in accordance with the ESET Regulatory
Technical S:tandard (ES=r RTS). This Auditors’ repor:
provides no assurance over whether the annual financal
report will be prepared using the single electronic format
specified in the SSEF RTS.

Saira Choudhry (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers L.P
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
L.ondon

29 June 20272
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Revenue
Renzal income

Less direct properly expenses
Net rental income

Direciors’ remuneration

Invesiment advisory fees

General and administrative expenses
Totalré;penses

Change in fair value of investment propertics

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance expense

Change in fa_ir W_{_al‘_;_g of ineres: rate denivalives

Profit before tax
Taxation
Profit being total comprehensive income for the year

For the For the
year ended yeal ended
31March 2022 31 March 2021
_ Now £0 000
5.0 51,636 49020
50 (978)  (179)
50.658 47.845
6.0 (206) (198)
8.0 (6,132) (6.117)
907 (3,909) B {3.183)
(10,247} (9.498)
15.0 12,269 5511
52,680 43.858
1C.0 7 20
1ne (10,608} (7.737)
_ 210 2,675 (65)
44,754 36.075

12.0 -
44,754  36.073

- 130

Ea_:'-nﬁngs_per share — basic and diluted

7.23p 5.80p

A amoants reporied in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income above arise from conlinuing operations.

The notes on pages 9% 10 117 are an inlegra. par: of tnese consoiidaled {inancia! s.atements.
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" AND ACCOUNTS 2022

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC

w
o

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2022

Note
Assets - Y
Non-current assets
Invesiment properiy 150
Other receivaoles 17.0

Interest rate derivatives 210

Current assets
Trade and other receivabnles 17.0
Cash and casn equivalents 18.0

:l‘otal ass_ets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payablies 9.0
BaMd Loanﬂowings 7 200

Non-current liabilities
Bank and loan borrowings 2.0
Interes: rare derivatives Al

Total liabilities
E_tal net assets

Equity

Share caplia. 220
Share premiuam resarve 230
Capial reduction reserve 240

R_etained earnings
Total equity

Net assets?ef share ;b\asic and dﬁiedr ' 7 o 260

3 March 2022 31 March 2021
£'D00 _ £0D0

945237 893584
23519 21905
2131 -
970,847 915589

12,865 12.821
53337 107097
66202 119918

1037.089 1035507

{9.492) {9,345)
- %D
{9,492) (69.282)

(352,050) (292185
- (3443

| (3520850)  (292.727)

(361542)  (362.009)
675.547 573498

6,225 6.225
292.626 292.48%
322,365 331140

54,331 435670

675547 673498

1030p  10830p

These conso.idaed financial s:aemen:s on pages 89 o 117 were approved oy the Board of Direcrors of Civiias Social Housing

PLC and a.:horised for issuc and signed on its beha{ py:

Michael Wrobel

Cnairman and Independen: Non-Txecuive Direcior
29 June 2022

Campany Mo 16452528

The notes on pages 93 10 117 are an integra. par: of ‘nese consolidated finanoa, slaiemeants.



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Balance at 1 April 2020
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
Shares reissued from reasury

Dividends naid

Balance at 31 March 2021

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
Shares reissucd Irom treasury

Shares bought back into treasury

Dividends paid

Balance at 31 March 2022

HNote

14.0

14.0

Share Capiral
o e lae o it
K'U_QC_)_ ) T EE& £000 _ £'000 £'000
6205 297405 330976 41008 670564
- 35075 36,075
58 214 - 272
- - @EI4T (3340
8225 292463  33114C 43670 673498
- - - 44754 44754
- 163 484 - 647
- - {9,259) - (9.259)
- - - (34,093) (34,093)
6,225 292626 322,365 54331 675,547

The notes on pages 93 10 117 are an inicgra. par: of these conso. idated financial slaiemenis.
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CIVITAS SOCIAL
REPORT AND ACE

92

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the vear ended 31 March 2022

For the

For the
Year ended year ended
Mot 31March2022 31 Ma(ct::ﬁ
Cash flows from operating activities
Protit {for the year pefore taxation 44,754 36.075
Change in fair va ue of investment properies {12,269} (5,511}
- Change in fair vaiue of interes: rate derivaives {2,675) 56
- Rent and incentive sirakynt iing adjusiments 397 h8
- Bad debt (credisYexpense 50 a7n 289
Finance incomse (7} (26}
Finance expense 10,608 7737
[ncrease in iease incentive receivable {2,011 (1217
Increase in trade and other receivables (236) (2.150)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payaoles B . ) o (1,062) 1762
Cash generated from operations 7 37482 26,099
Inierest received ) 7 20
Net cash flow generated from operatmg\é.ctiviﬁes 37489 2619
Investing activities
Puarchase of invesimen: properiies (27.695) {19,462)
Acquisizion cos's (1,640) (338)
Purchase ol s.osidiary - including propery {13,559) -
Sale proceeds on sale of subsidiary - excluding property 2,695
Uiilisanon of restricied cash ne.d for invesing activities 529 14,232
Re_-_t_césh flow_ ilsed in investing activities 7 _ - o {39,670} 7 (6.1675}7
Financing activities
Cos® of shares pougnt inlo reasury 240 (9.259) -
Proceeds from shares reissued from reas.ary 240 919 -
Dividends paid 1o eguity sharehoiders (33,928) {33.319)
Ban< borrowings advanced 20.0 - 345530
Bank borrowing issue costs paid (1,805) (2.81)
Interes: and security fees paid on pan< porrowings and derivatives o o (8,590) (5.981)
Net cash flow (use_c_i_in)lgénerar.ed from financinrgﬂ activir.@-_e-s o (52863 42.@
Net (decrease})/increase in cash and cash equivalents (54,844) 62.38C
Ugestricted cash and cash equivglents at the start of the year o 185 103,819 41.4Zi
180 48,975

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 93 (o 117 are an integral par: of these consolidazed financial statemen:s.

103.819



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

LG Cor-perare infsrmauon
Civizas Social Housing PLC {the "Company’) was incorporaied in Eng.and and Wales under t1ne Compantes Act 2006 as a public
company limited by shares on 29 Sepiember 2016 with company nuntber 10402528 under the name Civitas REIT PLC, which was

subsequenty changed 1o e existing name on 3 Gcioper 2015,

Tue address of the reqistered office is Beaufor: House. 51 New INorin Road, Exeter. Devon, EX4 4EP. The Company is registered as an
invesimen: company under section 833 of the Companics Act 2006 in England and Wates and is domiciled in the United Kingdom.

“he Company did not begin trading until 18 November 2016 wiacn the snartes were admiited 1o rading on the London Stock
Exchange CLIE™.

The Company's Ordinary shares are admitted to the Cfficial List of the Financial Conduct Autherity (‘'FCA’) and traded on
the T.5E.

The prnincipa. activity of the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group™ is 1¢ provide shareholders with an alractive level of
income. together with the polentia. for capital growth from investing in a portfolio of social homes.

2.0 Bastih ol peepacation

On 31 December 2020 EU-adopted Int‘ematicnai Financia. Repor:ing Standards TFRS was proughts into UK law and became
UK-adopred Internaticna. Accounting S:andards. with future changes to [FRS peing subject to endorsemen: ny ha JK
Cndorsemen: Board. The consclidated financial statemen:s have Transitioned to UK-adopted Interna:ional Accounting
Standards for the year ended 31 March 2022, This change constitites a change in accolunting lramewoer<. However. there 1s no
impact on recognition, measurement or disc.osure in the year reporied as a result of the change in framework

The financia! s:atements are prepared in accordance wiih UK-adopted Internationa. Accounting Standards and the applicab.e
‘ega. requiremen:s of the Companies Ac: 2006.

The Group's consolidated financia. statemen:s nave been prepared on a nusiorica. cos: basis. as medified for tne Group’s
mvestmen: properies and derivative financia! instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group has cnosen -0 adopt EPRA pes: practice guidelines {or calculating ey alzernative performance measures. These are
disclosed on page 36 with supporing calcu.aiions in Appendix 1 on pages 129 10 131

A4 Funafonal and preseniatnn ouieney
The financial information is oresented in Pounds Sterting which is alse (e fiunctional currency of the Company. and a.. va.ues
are rounded 1o ne nearest thousand pounds (£000s). excep: whaere o:herwise indicated.

S8 Darenddl ianoeTa

Tae Group benefits from a secure income strcam from .ong .eases wirh the Approved Providers and present a we.i-diversified
risk. Tne Group's cagh ba.ances as a: 31 March 2022 were £53.337.000. of which £4.362,00C was he.d as resiricted casn. Detalis of
‘hig can be found in note 18.0.

Tne Company and 1ts Investment Adviser, Civitas Invesimen: Managemen: Limiied ("CIM") continae 10 work c.osey with

the Company's ma’or counterparties :o manitor the position on tae grownd and should it ne needed. 1o offer assisiance and
guidance where possibic. The Board of Directors believes tha: the Company operates a rooust and defensive business mode.
and that social housing and speciaast healincare are proving to be some of the more resilien: sectors witun the market, given
tha: they are based on non-discreiionary pulric sector expenditure and that demand cxceeds s.0ply.

In Novemner 2021 The facility wath HSBC Ban< p.c was exiended 1o Novemoper 2623, In May 2022 the faci.ity with Lioyds Bank pic
was exended o Ty 2024,

Cash lNow [orecas:s based on severe bu: plausibic downside scenarios nave been run, in particular the financia! performance
of ienanis and a reduction in ren:. As a: 31 March 2022, the ren: wou.d have @ drop by approximace’y 29% before its ;0an
covenan: is breached. Az the daic of approva. of tais repor., the Company has substania. ncadroom within s [inancial Joan
covenan:s. The Company a.so penefits from a sccure income s'ream from ‘eases wiln .ong average uncxpired jerm [eases. As
a resL:, the Directors believe tna: the Group is we.: p.aced to manage iig financing and other pusiness risks and that the Group
will remain viaple. conlinaing te operate and mee: its lanilities as they fa_ due.

The Comparny's artic.es of association include a requiremen: for the Board 1o propose an ordinary resolalion a: the ann.aa.
general meeung following the fifth anniversary from ne initia pup.ic oftering of the Company for the Company (0 continde in
is curren: form Che Continaatton Resolusdon) This is the tirs: contindation vote since the Company was sel ..

If ;he Connmuation Resoluion s passed. the Company wi.. continue its business as preseniy consuraied and propose ine
same resoluion ai every fif:h annua’ general meeting Thereafer If the Conzinsation Reso.ution is not passed, the Direciors wil
be required, within six monias afier the date of this annuai general meeing. 1o formalate proposa’s for consideration ny 1ne
sharcholders for the vo_untary liquidation, unitisation, reorganisation. or recenstraciion of tne Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

After making approvnate enguiries of the Company's prokers and Investmen: Adviser. pursuant 1o thelr recen: discussions
with a number of the Company's shareholders, the Directors are of the view (hat the Coniinuation Resoliition will be passed
at :he forthcoming annuai genera, meetng. This reflec:s the sirength and nature of the Company's porifolin, and specilica.ly
the provision of .ong-lerm accommodacion for more than 4000 vulnerable individua's. Accordingly. tae Directors expec:
tha if the Conrinuailon Resoiution is not passed. an even: which the Direcors consider o be nighly remote, formulating and
implermenting any such proposa.s woud require the Company to continte sperations for a period of at least 12 months from
‘he date of approval of the Campany's financia. siatements,

The Board is, therefore, of the opinion tha! the going concern pasis adopted in the preparation of :ne consoldaed financial
statements is appropriate

2.3 New standards. amendments and interpretations
Tne following new standards are now effective and have been adopted for the year ended 31 March 2022

¢ Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, IAS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement', IFRS 7 ‘Financial Insiruments: Disclosures’, IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’
and IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective {or pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2021}, These amendmenis address issues tha:
migh: affec: financial reporiing when an existing interes: rate benchmark is replaced with an aZzernative penchmark
interes: rate. The Group's borrowings with [oyds Bank pic and HSBC Bank PLC and Nationa: Wes minster Bank Ple nave
rransitoned frem the London Interbans Offer Rate (LIBOR) nenciimar< o the Ster.ing Overnigh: Index Average {SONIA)
penchmark. The transition has not led (0 a material ¢hange in overall borrowing costs.

2.1 New standarvds. amendinents and interpretations effective for furare accounting pericuds
The fol.owing are new standards, interpretations and amendmen:s, which are not ye: effeciive and have not been early
adopied in this finanecia. informaction, that will or may have an effect on the Group's furare financiai statemen:s:

¢ Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements (effective for periods neginning on or afier 1 January 2022)
- clarifies tna: .labilties are classified as either current or non-current, depending on the ngh:s that exist ar the end of the
repor.ing period and not expectations of or actua: even's afier the reporiing datc. The amendmen:s also give clarification
10 the definition of sett.emen: of a ‘tapility The amendmen:s are not expected 0 have a significant impact on :he
oreparation of the financial stalemen:s

¢ Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations' (effective for pericds neginning on or atier | January 2022) gives
clarification on the recegnition of contingen: .iapilities at acquisition and c.arifies tha: coniingen: asses showu,d not be
recognised a: 1ne acquisizion date Tne amendmen:s are no: expeacied to have a significan: impac: on the preparation of
che financia; eiatemen:s.

¢ Amendments to IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ (effeclive for periods beginning on
or afier 1 January 2022) — gives ciarification on costs to include in estimazing the cost of fUifilling a contrac: for the purpose
of assessing whether tha: conirac: is onerogs. The amendmen:s are no: expecied 1o have a significan: impac: on e
preparation of the financial stalements.

« Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ {effcctive for periods beginning on or afier 1 Janu.ary 2027) - gives
ciarificaiton on the fces an entiiy inciudes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liabiiy are
substantialy difteren: from the terms of the original dablity. The amendmen:is are no: expected 12 have a signiflicant
impdac: on e preparazion of the financia, stalemens.

+ Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ {(effeciive [or pedods peginning on or aficr 1 Jan.ary
2C23%) - are intended o ne.p entittes in deciding whicn accounring po'icies ‘o disciose in (neir financia: sia‘emenss. The
amendrmen:s are no: expecied © have a significan: impact on the preparacion of tae financial stalements.

+ Amendments to [IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ (effective for periads
peginning on or akier 1 January 2C23) inrod.ce tne definizien of an accounting esirmae and inc.ide oiner amendments
o help entkies distinguish cnanges in acco.wn:ing estimates from cnanges In accounting policies The amendments are
no: expecied 10 nave a significan: impac: on the oreparation of e [inancia. siatemen's.

25 3egmental information

IFRS 8 Operating Segmmen:s requires onera.ing segmen:s 0 oc idenified on :he pasis of internal inancial repor:s abow:
componen:s of ine Croup tnat are reg..ar.y reviewed oy "he Cnief Operaing Decision Maxer. waicn in the Group's casc is
de.egaed o Tne Invesimen: Adviser who nas formed an Executive Team. in order (o a..onate resources 1o .ne segmens and ;o
agsess (ncir performance.

Thc inlerna. finanaa’ reporis received py tne Invesuren: Adviser's Executive Tecam contain financia. informaton at a Group
.evel ag a wno.e and nere are N reconcling 1r'ems peiween ne resu.s contained in fnese repors and e amounis reporied
in :ne consc.ida:ed {Inancia. statfemean:s.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

The Directors consider the Group's propery poriolio represents a coherent and diversified poria.io with simi.ar economic
cnaracteristics and as a resut, ine wnole portfoiio of properiies represents a single operating segment, [n the view of the
Directors there 1s according’y one reporiab.e segment under the provisions of IFRS 8.

Al of the Group's properties are based in the UK. Geographical information is provided 1o ensure compliance with the
diversilication requirements of the Company, ocher than this no geogravhical grouping is contained in any of the internal
financial reports provided o tne Invesiment Adviser's Executive Team and. therefore no geographical segmen:a’ anatysis is
requaited by TFR3 8

Tne Dircctors nole :he requirements in [FRS 8 Paragraph 34 periamning 1o en:itles under common <ontro. and confirm :ha:
poth Aucxland Home Solutions and Qualizas Housing (as .essees of the Company's investment rea. estale) are under common
conitol of The Social Housing Family CIC ("TSHF"). The perceniage and sam total of the Company's annual ren: roll pertaining
10 these counterpartles as if they were considered to be a 'sing’e cusiomer can be found in note 28.0 and on page 16 of the
Anraal Report

B0 Signiticant accountug mdgemants, estimates and assumpions

In the application of (ne Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 4.0. the Directors are required to make
fudgements, estirmates and assumprions apout the carrying amounts of assets and JapiliZies tha: are no: readily apparen:
trom olher sources. The Judgements. estimates and associated assumptions that have a significant ris< of causing a maeriaj
adjusimreant o the carrying amounis of assels and aabi'ities within tne financial year are outlined pelow:

5.1 Signifhicant estirnare - vainarion of invoesiment property

The Group uses the valuation carried out by iis independen: valuer as the fair value of its propery portfolio. The valualicon is
based upon assum prions inciuding future renta. income and tnc appropriate discoun: raie. The va.uers also make reference o
marxe: evidence of rransaction prices for similar properties. Further information is provided in note 15.0.

The Group's properties have been independenily valued by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited (7JLL or she "Vaiuer’) in accordance
with the current Royai Institution of Chariered Surveyors Va.waion - Globa: Standards. incorporating the IVS, and the RICS
Valuation - Clopa: Standards 2017 UK naional supplement (the RICS "Red Book™ JIL is ane of the mos: recognised professional
firmms within socia! housing valuaton and has sufficien: current .ocal and nationa’ «now.edge of both social housing generally
and Specialist Supooried Housing (*S5H") and nas the skilis and understanding ¢ wndertake the vaiualions competentiy.

With respec: 10 ine Growp's consolidated tinanciai stalements, invesumen: properiies are va:ucd at their fair va.Le at each
palance sheet date in accordance with IFRS 13, Fair va.ile measurements shoxid be presenied and classificd using a lair value
nrerarchy inar reflects the significance of the inpus used in the measurements. according 1o e folowing leve.s:

Levell Unadjusted. quoted prices lor identical assets and nab s in aciive ((yplcally quoted) markets

Level 2 Inpus other than quoted prices inciuded within Level 1 that are observable for the assel or 'iao . er directiy
(inaris, as prices) or indirecily {(iha: is. derived from prices)

Level 3 Inputs for tie asse: or lability that are not hased on observab.e marke: data {unobservab.e inpats). Value is the
Direc.ors’ best estiimate, hased on advice trom relevant xnow!edgeabic experis, use of recognised valuation
recaniques and a determination of which assumptions shouid be appiled in valiing sach assets and wita
paricular focus on the specific atiribates of the investmen:s themse.ves.

Given the besposge natare of cach of e Group's investiments, the particular requirernents of due diligence and financial
conuripusion obtained from e vendors :ogether with the recent emergence of 38H. ail of the Group's invesimen: propernes
are inciaded in Leve! 3

P2 Bigarhw ant jarg EEEPSEET LAY 1T

The Group acguires subsidiarics that own inves men: properties. Az the lime of acquisrion. tne Group considers whether each
acquisiion represen:s (he acguisition of a business or thc acguisidion of an asset. Managerment congiders the subs:ance of 1ne
asses and acuvities of the acquaired entity in determining whether (no acqulisizion represen:s ine acquisizion of a business,

FHRAR R PRV ST b | vh NN

Tnae Group accounts tor an acd.usizion as a nusiness comoination wnere an integrated sc: of aclivities is acquired in addition
-0 1ne property. Wacre sucn acquisizions are no! judged 1o pe 1ne acquisition of a pusiness. iney are not rreaiad as ousiness
compinatuons. Rather. e cos:t 10 acquire ©ie corporate entity is al.ocazed berween he ilentifiab.e asse’s and .iabiiizics of tne
endly gased Loon their relative far va ues a2 1ne acquisition datc. According’y, no goodwil. or additional deferred ax arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

All corporate acquisinons made during the year have been treated as asset parcnascs rather (nan business combinations
because no integrated se: of activities was acquired.

During ™he year the Group entercd mmo a transaciion to acquire the freenold properties overated by CPI Care Limited Upon
the acquisition of the company: the propertics were ranslerred inte other group companies and the company acquired.
a.ong Wil i1s associated operations. was so.d 10 Envivo Corundum Bidco Limited Furzher details are shown in note 160 10 the
financia. siaiements.

The acquired companies mert the definition of a nusiness under IFRS 3. and :he transaction was therefore recorded as a
business compination.

Bacause he Group acquired the comnpany with “he inten: to se | tne business, managemen: app.ied the short-cut mezhod
under [FRS 5 Subsidiaries acquired with a view o resale. Under this method. :he subsidiary is recorded a: fair value ess costs
10 sel. and there is na requitercen: o fair value the subsidiary’s individua! assews and labi'iies.

3.3 Significant judgement - operauny lease contracts ~ the Group as lessor

Tne Groudp nas acquired mvestment properties thal are sublec: to commercial propery cases wiln Approved Providers. The
Group has determined. based on an evaluation of the (erms and conditions of “he arrangemen:s, paricu.ary the duraton
of the [ease terms and minimum ease payments. tnat it retams a.l the significant risks and rewards of ownersaip of these
properties and so accounts for the ieases as operanng cases.

3.1 Significant judgement ~ REIT Status

Civizas Social Housing PLC is a Rea! Estate Investmen: Trust (REIT). The UK REIT regime applies when entizies meet certain
conditiens with tne effect that ine income profits and capita. gains ot the qua’ilying proper:y renial nusiness are exempt from
‘ax. Within these conditions al least 90% of Tre Croup's property income mus: be distribuied as dividends to Sharenolders
and :ne Group muast ensure "hai ine propery rentai business represen:s more than 75% of total profis and assers. It is
managemens’s judgement tha: the Group wil continte o quaify as a REI™ for ;he foreseeabie tittre.

4.0 Sunwvoary of significant accoumting policies
The principal accounting polcles applled In the preparasion of the consolidated financia. statemen:s are st out pe.ow The
poiicies have been consisten:ly app.ied (o ail periods presenied, unless otherwise staied

4.1 Basis of consalidation
The consolidated financia. siatements comprise the finanaal information of the Croup as a: the year end date.

Supsidiaries are a.. enuies over which ine Group has conirol. The Group conirols an entity when the Group is exposed 1o,

or has righ:s (0. variaoie returns froir i's invo.vemen: with the entity and has the apility to affec: those returns :nrough its
power 0 direc ne activiiles of the entity. All inira-group ransactions. balances, income and expenses are climinaed on
consoiidaton. The financa! informaztion of he subsidiaries is incizded in the consolidated financia. s:atemens from The date
tha: con'rol commences until the date thai conirol ceases

If an equily inleres: in a suosidiary i€ ransferred bu: a contro.ling inieres: continues <o oe held afier the ransfer then the
chnange in ownership inieres: is accounted for as an equity rransacion.

Accouniing policies of ine supsidiaries are consis:en: wiih (ne policies adop:ied by 1ne Company.

4.2 Investument property

Invesimen: property. which is properly ne.d 1o earn ren:a.s and/or for capi:a. appreciation. is inizial'y measared at cost. being
e fair va.uc of 1ne consideration given. inciuding expendiiure 1hat is directly atrin.ian.e 10 Tae acg.isizion of (e invesimen:
oroperty. Afler inrial recognition. Inves men: sropery is stated ar its fair valuc a: tne pa.ance snee: date. Camns and (osses
arjsing fror cnanges in :he fair vaiue of invesimen: proper:y are 1nc. cded in profi: or .oss for the penod in which tney arise in
the Conso.idated S:atemen: of Comprenensive Income,

Subseguen: expenditire 1s caprialised on'y when i is propable (na: Latire economic nenefits are associated witn the expenditure.
Ongoind rezairs and mainienance are expensed as incurrad. Overneads and operating expenses are no: capialised.

AN investmen: groperyy is derecogrnised Loon disposa. of when 1ne INVesimen: DIODELLY 1S POTManen..y witndrawn {rom use
and no fulire economic nenefiss are expecied lrom the disposa.. Any gain or .0ss ansing on derecognizien of -he vropery
lca.ci.ated as ine difference oetween ‘e ne: disnosa. proceeds and :ne carrying amoun: of :ne asse is incurred 1n orofl: or
.0ss in e period in which 1ne propeny is derecognised.

Significan: acco.ning .dgemen:s. estimales and ass.mpions made {or the val cadion of inves:men: proveries are discogsed
in nowe 31



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

d4% Leasexn
Leases are classified as tinance leases wnenever the terms of the iease iransfer substantially ali “he ris<s and rewards of
ownership o the iessee. All other .eases are classified as operating ieases

The Company nas deiermined that it retains ail the significan: risxs and rewards of ownership of (ne properties and accoun:s
for “ne contracis as opera:ing leases as discussed in note 3.3

Propenizs _eaged out under operating .cases are inciuded in invesiment oroperty in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. Renla. income from operating leasges is recognised on a siraight line basis over the term of the relevan: leases.

Lease incentive cosls are recognised as an asser and amortised over the iife of the .ease.

4.4 Financial Assets

CiassJication
The Group classifies its financial asse's in the following measuremen: calegones;

e 1hose '0 be measured subsequenty a fair value (either tirougn other comprehensive income or through prothit or ioss) and

e (hose (o pe measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on tne entity’s nusiness model for managing the {inancial asse:s and the conlraciLa. lerms of the
cash flows. For asscis measured a: fair value. gains and .osses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income.

Trade andg other roceryab
Trade and other receivables arc amounts due in the ordinary course of pusiness. If collection is expecied in one year or ess,
iney are ciassified as carrenrt assets. If not. they are presented as non curren: assats.

Trade receivables are recognised inizially at fair val.e and subsequently are measured at amorised cost using the effeclive
interes: method, iess impairment provision. Tne Group nc.ds the trade receivanies wiln the obleciive to colect the conraciua;
cash flows.

Iy e

Tae Gronp's financial assets are s.unect 1o the expecied credit ioss model,

For trade receivables, 1ne Group apphies the simpiified approacn permitied by IFRS 9. which requires expecied lifetime losses
10 be recognised from initia. recognition of the receivanies.

The expected ioss rates are based on the payment profi.es of lease income over a pericd of up 10 12 monihs before 31 March
2022 or 1 Aprii 2021, rezpectively. and the corresponding historical credi: losses experienced within this period. The historica:
.0s8s rates are adiusted "o ref.ect curren: and forward-locking informazion on macroeconomic factors affecting the liabi.iy

of t1e tenan:s to seiile the receivanla Such forward-.ocking information would inciude: changes in economic, regalaiory.
rechnoeiogical and environmental factors (suca as indusiry oJtioog, GDP. employment and po'iticsy exierna:. market indicazors:
and ienan! nase

Based on ine assessmen: and the specific worg that s underway around col.eciion of aged arrears, a provision of
£239.000 (2021 £256 400) nas been ref.ecied in the anncal resalis,

Trade receivan.es are wiritlen ofl when tnere is no reasonab.e expeciation of recovery.

Indicaors tha! there is no reasonan.e expectation of recovery inc.ude. among others. the nropanlity of inso.vency or
significant financia! difficalties of :he debror Impaired debts are derecognised wnen they arc assessed as uncoLeciin.e

S E G O Gs T e e lens
Cagh and casa equiva.enss include cash mn hand. cash neid oy awyers and Igaidity funds with a ierm of no more tnan inree
monins tha: are readl'y conver ibie 10 a known amoun: of casn and which are sJpject (o an insignificant nisk of changes in val.e.

.

Rostricied casn represents amoan:s hed for specific commitmenss, tenan: deposiis and retennon money he.d by lawyers in
refation o deferred paymenss s.ojec: (0 acaigvemen: of certain cenditions. o:ner reteniions and cash segregated ‘o tund
repair, main:enance and improvemont works to bring the properties Lp 10 satisfaciery standards for tne Grouo and the ‘enants.
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Continued

Derivative Hnancai instoenents

Derivauve financial insrrumens. which comprise inerest rate swaps for nedging purposes. are initially recognised a: fair value
at acquisition and are subseguently measured at fair value, being the estimaied amount that the Group would receive or pay
1o sell or 'ransfer the agreemens: at the period end date. taking into account current inerest rate expectattons and 1hc current
credit rating of the lender and its counterparties. Thne insirument may be an asse: or a liability. The gain or .oss at each fair
value remeasurement date is recognised in the Group's Consolidated Statement of Comprehengive Tncome.

The Group ases valuaidon lechniques tha: are appropriaie in the circumstances and for which gufficieni date is available
to measure fair value maximising ine use of re.evant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs
significant :o he fair vaiue measurement as a whole.

Other than derivative financiai ins:ruments which are not designated as hedging instrumen:s. the Group does not have any
asserts he.d for rading nor does it voluntarily classify any financia’ assels as peing at fair value througn profit or [oss.

4.5 Financial iiabilities
The Croup recognises a financiai l1apility wiien it first pecomes a party 1o The contractua. rign's and ob.igations in the
conirac:.

Al financial liabilities are initally recognised a: fair va.ae minus (in ihe case of a financia’ liapiiity tnar is not at {air va.ae
through profir or (oss} transaction costs that are directly atirib.table o issuing the financial iiability. Financia. llabi.ities are
supseguenty measdred a: amoriised cost, Unless the Groap opted o measure @ dability al 1air va.le through profit or .oss.

A financia. 1abiity is derecognised when (ne ob.igation under the iapility ig discharged. cancelled or expires.

Traae and or payabies

Tradc and otaer payab.es are c.assified as current (iabilties if payment is due wiinin one year or (ess. [f not. they are presenied
as non-current ljabilities, Trade and other payables are recognised initially a: tneir fair value and subseqguenty measured a:
armortised cos: until settled. The fair value of a non-interest bearing liability is its discounted repaymen: amount. If the due
date of the liabi'ity is .ess than one vear. discounting is omited.

Bard and o oner Dareanngs

Al banx and other borrowings are 1nidaly recognised at fair value ess direcily attributaole transaciion costs, Afer initia.
recognition. a.! pank and other porrowings are measured ar amortised cos, using the effcctive interest method. Any
atriputabie ransaction cosis relading to the issue of e bang borrowings are amortisad througn ;ne GroLp's Siatement of
Comprehensive Income aver the e of the debtinsiriment on a siraight-line basis.

Derivanve D
Dertvaiive financia. insruments may be a financia. assei or a financia' iability Please refar 1o the accouniing policy In note 4.4
for detals,

SENC NS ES F S 34 T-F A

4.6 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when e Group nas a present op.igaton {edga’ or cansirucive) as a resu’t of a past even: it is
prebap.e that the Group will be reguired o settie tnat obligaion and a relianis estimate can pe mads of the amount of the
obligation.

The amoun: recognised as a provision is :ne pest estimate of e consideration required o sell e 1ne presen: ob.igatien at (ne
pa.ance sheel dale. faging Inio account (e ris<s and unceriaintes s.urownding he ob.igation

1.7 Taxaton

Taxauion on ne proii or .oss for ine period no: exemp: whder JK RETT regu.ations is compnsed of curren: and deferred tax. Tax
Is recegnised in e Consolidated $tatemen: of Comprehensive [ncome excep: 1o Qe exien: [al 1; 12.a:28 1o 1:ems recognilsad
&8 a direci movemens: m eqully. In wlch casc 1718 recognised as a direc: movemen: in equlty. Current fax i= expecied lax
payape onany non-REIT :axan.e income for ine period. ssing tax rateg enaced Or sunsaniively enaced at 1ng DA.ANCS §1ee
date and any ad’.isimen: (o 'ax payan.e in respec: of previoas periods.

The current :ax charge is calcu.ated on profiis arising in 17 period and in accordance wiin egislalion waich nas peen
enacied or substanially enacied ai ine ga.ance saeg: date

Deferred tax is provided on i:emporary differences pe:ween ne carrying amo.n:s of asseis and .labiidies for inancia.
reporing vurposes and (ne amounis used for (axalnon purposes. The amoun: of deferred ax tnat is provided 18 pased on
ne expecied manner of rea.sation or seitemen: of e carrying amo.un: of asse's and ‘laniities, ising ax raes enacied or
supsianiive.y enacied a; :ne balance snee: dae



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

1.8 Captal managemsnd
The Group's obiectives when managing capita. are lo safeguard the Group's aotlity (o continue as a going concern in order 1o
orovide rerurns for sharcholders and ¢ mainiain an oplima. capial structure o reduce the cos: of cania!

s comprise the folowing

31March 2022 31 March 2021

- o - o o ) o - 000 oo
Proceceds trom :he 1ssue ol Urdinary snares and retained earnings 675,547 573498
Bank and ‘oan narrowings 352,050 3521250
Total ) L N 1027597 1075618

Jnal the Group is fully inves:ed and pending re-investmen: or disirioution of cash receints. the Group will invest in cash, cash
equiva.enis. near cash instruments and money marke: instraments.

The Directors may use gearing 1o enhance equiy returns. The leve. of porrowing will oe on a prudent basis {er the asset c.ass
and wil seex to achieve a .ow cos. of funds. whilst maintaining the flexibility in e underlying security requiremenss and the
siructire of the Group.

The Group may. fo.owing a decision of the Board. raise dep' from panks and/or the caplial marke's and the aggregate
borrowings of the Group will always pe subjec: ‘0 an absoidie maximam, ca.c.i.ated at the 1ime of drawdown. of be.cw 40% of
the Cross Asse: Value on a fully invested basis.

4% Dividends payabie to shareholders
Dividends are included in the financia’ staiements in he year in which they are paid.

410 Rental incoine
Ren:al income from invesment proper:y is recognised on a straigh:-line basis over 1ne term of ongoing .eases and is shown
gross of any JK income (ax. Lease incentives are spread even.y Over thc lcazse enm.

Insurance recharges and other simuar receipts are recognised ander IFRS 15 Revente from: conracts witn customers’, and are
included in ne: renta: and property incoms gross of the related costs as the Direciors consider the Group ac:s as principal in
:his respec:

I Fipanoe ingoems
Finance income is recognised as intercs:. and is accriued on cash and cash equivalen: balances ne.d by the Group.

112 Finanoes wosiy

Finance cos's consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with bank and other borrowings. Banx
interes: and bank charges are recognised on an accraais nasis. Borrowing transaction costs arc amoriised using the effeciive
interes: rae.

AT Tapeanses

D HE Bhare sasae 400t
The costs of issaing or reacquiring equity instrumenis (oner than in a business combination) are accounted for as a ded.chon
trom equtiy.

A3 Snare heldan rreasury

Toe costs, inc.ading direcly atiripatab.e ransactions costs, of parchasing e Company’s cwn shares 10 oe ned in reasury s
ded.cted from equily and the cosis are shown in :he Conso.dated Statemen: of Cnanges in Cquity. Consideration recaved,
net of ‘ransaction cosis. for the resa.e of ese shares is a so incicded in equity Whtls! ine Company nolds shares in treasury,
the ca.cu attons tor net assel va. Le and eamings per snare are adusted o exciude these shares.
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50 Rentalincoime

For the For the

yeat ended year ended

- B e

Rental income from invesiment pr_dpeny ' . 51,038 18201
Rent siraignt line admsanents 529 372
Lease incentive amor.isation (926} 1439)
Rechargeabie costs received 985 885
Ren:a. income T ) 51,636 49.02¢
Less direc: properny eXpenses (978) _ (1175

Net rental income 50,658 4_7.845

Rechargeabie cosis reccived represent insurance and service charge costs paid by the Group and recnarged to the
Avuroved Providers and are accounied lor under [FRS 15 'Revenue from conracts wilh customers,

Direc: propery eXpenses represen: INsurance and service charge costs of £395,G00 (2021 £886.000) and naa debi credit of
£17.000 (2021 £289.000 expense)

As per tha ease agreemen:s with the Group and Approved Providers. tne Approved Providers are responsiole for the
selement of al’ present and future rates. taxes ang other imposizions payab.e in respect of the properv. As a resull. no furiner
direci properiy expenscs were inaurred.

DD DMeaciors rsnarerso g

Forthe Fol the

year ended year ended
31March 2022 31 March 2021

- o o ‘000 £000_
Directors' fees 190 182
Employer's National Insurance Conripuions 16 15
Total 206 198

Tne Direciors are remr unetrazed for thelr services in accordance witih 1ne Remuneration Po.icy wiich sels parame.ers wimnin
which Direciors’ remaneration nray be ser. The Remuneration Po.cy is approved py shareho.ders.

Disclosures required ny 1ne Companics Ac: 2006 on Directors’ rem..nerazion, incuding sa.aries. share Oplions. pension
conirinations and pension enizlement and 1nose specilied oy the Lising Ro.es of the Financial Conducl ALonty are inciuded
on pages 73 20 76 In the Remunerazion Repaor: and form par: of these Financia: S:atements

70 Particulars ol employees
The Group had no cmployees d.ring ne year {2621 ni.} oiner than e Direciors.

8 Investment advisory fees

For the For the

year ended year ended

31March 2022 31 Maich 2021

_ o L £'000 E_Ol)ﬂ

Advisory fee 6,132 A17
Total 6,132 5117

Civitas Inves:men: Managemen: Limiied {'CIM s 1ae aooointed Invesimen: Adviser of ine Company Jnder tne carren:
[nvesimen: Managemen: Agreemren:. (ae Advisory Fee snall pe an amoun: ca.ca.ated in respes: of each Quarier in cacn
case pased upon the Net Asse: Va e most recensy announced 1o 1ne marcel at ine re.evan: lime (as ad .sied for issues o1
repurcnases of snares In the period petween e date of sich announcemen: and e date of tne relevan: ca.cu.aion). on e
fo owing pasis

a) on:na. par of e NelAsse: Va Le wp 10 andinc..ding £250 milion an amo.n: ¢q..a ol% ol s.cn part ol ine Net Asse: Va. e




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

b) onrha: par: of the ket Asser Value over 250 miaon and up o and including £500 millon, an amoun: equa. o 0.9% of such
par: ol the Ne: Asse; Value:

€) onha: part of the Net Asget Value over £500 miclon and o to and incl.ding 1 pilion. an amoun: aquaa. 1o 0.8% of such
part of the Nat Asset Va.oe:

d} onthat part of the Net Agset Value over 71 bilion, an amount equa’ to C.7% of s.uich part of the Ner Asse: Va.ue.

The appointment of the Investment Adviser shall continue In force uniess and wnti ierminated oy elther party giving to :he
other not ‘ess than 12 months wriiten noiice, sL.ch notico no: 1o expire earder than 30 May 2024

9.0 General and administranve expenses

For the For the

year ended year ended

3N Marchzﬁ(])(?s k1 Marchzi)llnzl;

Lega! and professiona: fees - S - 1,459 T 1044
Administra:ion fees 1,037 383
Consu tancy fees 136 116
Audit fees 340 361
ADOLLIVEe Costs 196 174
Valuazion fees 100 96
Deposiiary fees 71 7
Grants and donations 26 19
Ingurance 84 65
Marketing 343 179
Regulatory fees 25 19
Sundry expenses 92 56
Total T T T 3965 3,183

Aboriive costs represent iega: and professiona: fees incurred in relation 1o the acguisition of invesiment propertes and
proposed snare issues nal were considered pul suosedquent.y abored.

-
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Services provided oy tne Group s aaditors and thearr associi
The Group has oo:ained the foilowing services from the Grouo's auditors and their assoclales:

For the Tor Lthe

year etided year ended

31March 2022 31 March 2021

o B o o _— e, e £¢00 £000
Fees payable to the group's auditors and their associates for auditing financial statements:

Audit of ine Groups linancia. statemen's' 296 272

Audit of subsidiary companies- - 32

Total fees payable for audit services 296 304

Fees payable to the group’s auditors and their associates for other services:

ALdit related services - review of the ha'f year financia. staiemen:s 44 57

Olher services® 62 -

Total fees payable to the group’s auditors and their associates 402 361

1 Includes £18 000 {2021 £50 000) cost in relation 10 the prior year aucit
2 Most subsidiary companiles are exempl from audit as detatied on page 126
3 This amountis inchuded within prepayments and other ieeeivables at 31 March 2022
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0.0 Finance income

For the For the

year ended year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

. [ — o £°000 __E'000
Tnieres: and dividends received on liquidity funds 4 11
Bank interes: received 3 9
Total 7 20

1.0 Fipance expense

forthe Fot the

year ended year ended

31March 2022 31 March 2021

. I - L . Fowo = EDOO
Bank charges 6 3
Inzerest paid and payable on bang norrowings and derivatives 8,907 6416
Anmcordsazion of lean arrangemen: lees 1,653 1.293
l.oan secunty fees 42 -
Oiher inicres: L - 25
Total T ) T T 10,608 7737

20 farain

As a UK REIT, the Croup is cxoempst from corporatioen tax on the profits and gains from iis proper:y invesimen: business,
provided It meets coriain condizions as set out in the UK REIT reg.u ations. For the curren: vear ended 31 March 2022, the Group
did not have any non-guaaliiying proiis and according v there is no tax chaige in (e year i tnere wete any non-quaalying
profits and gains. 1nese woo.d pe sub ect to corporation (ax

[: is ass.med tha: e Croup will conunde o e a JK RRI7 for the foresecan’e fui. re. sugn tha: deferred tax has not been
recognised on temporary differcnces relating o ne propery renia. pusiness

For the For the

year ended year ended

3imMarch2g22 31 March 2621

.- .- e . £e00 __ELUO
Corporaiion :ax cnarge for tne year —
Total -

The tax charge for e year is iess than ne siandard rate of corporation tax in ine JK of 19%. The ditlerences are explained selow

Tor the Farthe
year ended year enderd
31 March 2022 3! Maich 2021
__ i N - o £'000 £ 000
Group
Profit pefore taxaion 44,754 38.075
UK corporazion ax rate 19.00% 19.08%
Tneoratica tax a; JK corporalion lax raie 8,503 5.854
Fifec:s of:
Change in va. 2 of exemp! INVCSIImen: Droperies {2,331) 1.047)
Exemp: REIT inceme (6.598) {5.511)
Amounis no: dedosin.e [or tax purposes (230) 171
Jn.atiasaed residual cafrent year tax .osses 656 533
Total - T 7 B B -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

A deferred ‘ax asse: of £1.268.00C {2021 £1,508.000) has not been recognised in respect of the unutiised residual current year
losses as itis not anicipated thal sufficient residua. profits will be generated in the futre.

Tne standard rale of corporation tax is curreniiy 19%. [n the Spring Budger 2021, the UK Government announced that from
1 April 2623 the corporation tax rase will increase to 25% {rather than remaining at 19%. as previously enacied). This new law was
supsanave.y enacied on 24 May 2021

RETT exelrpl income inc.edes propenty menld, lnvone Lial s exenpr from JK Corporation Tax in accordance wita Mart 12 of

Corporation Tax Act 2010,

15.0 TERS Earninggs per share
Earnings per sharc ("EPS" amoun's are ca.cualated by dividing profi: for (he year atiributable 1o ordinary equity nowders of the
Company by the weighted average numper of Ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic and di.uted earnings per share is based on the following:

For the For the
year ended year ended
31March 2022 31 March 2021
. R i E000 £'000
Calculation of Earnings per share
et profit arnmutap.c o Grdinary snarenoiders {(£70G0) 44,754 36.075
Weignted average number of Ordinary shares (exciuding shares held in ireasury) 618,797,942 6£21.651.859
Earnings per share — basic and diluted 7.23p 5.8C0p
[ S ey
g
-
f1
4.0 Dididenrly - E
. ' T rerene For tie 2
year ended yeat ended .
31March 2022 31 March 2021 g
o L €000 E000
Dividend of 1.35G0p tor the 3 mon:hs 1o 31 Marcn 2021 ) g
{1.325p 3 montihis 0 31 March 2020) 8,403 8237 & g :
Dividend of 138750 for the 3 mon:hs to 30 June 2021
{1.3530p 3 months 10 30 June 2020) 8,637 8392
Dividend of 13875p for the 3 mon:hs 10 30 Scptember 2021
(1350 3 months 10 30 September 2020} 8,555 8392
Dividend of 1.3875p for the 3 mon:as 10 31 December 2021
{1350p 3 mon:hs 1o 31 December 2021) ) S o 8,498 8392
Total 34,093 33413

On 11 May 2022, :ne Company annadnced a dividend of 1.3875 pence per share in respec: of tne period 1Jandary 2022 W©
31 March 2022 tota.ing £8474.0C0. The dividend paymen: was made on 728 Tune 2022 (0 shareho:ders on the register as at 20 May
2022 Tne linancial statemen:s do not reflect this dividend. The dividend was paid as a REIT propery income distribation ("PID")
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Continued

1.0 lnvestment propeity

For the For the

vear ended year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

—_— S I . . . o £000 E'00Q
Balance a: ceginning ot year 915,589 878713
Proper:y acqulisinons 37,198 19.179
Acguisiiion costs 2,086 1038
Lease iriceniives and ren: siraigh: line ad; asturen:s recognised 1614 n1s0
Change In fair value o 12.269 55N
Va.te advised oy the property va'L.ers 968,756 915,589
Less jeasc INcentive asseis and rent straight line assels (23,519) (21,905}
Total i ] ) - ) 945237  B93684

Acquisiitons in<.ude capita. expendiiure 0 ennance etiab e space of £5818.000 (2021 £4.677.000).

During ne year the Group acquired a property nolding company from Herieva Properiies Limited which he.d asse:s :otalling
P8 511.0GC. These are included within Property Acguisizions in the note above,

Herleva Propertics Limied is a subsidiary of Sneciaiist Hea.tncare Operations Limited ("SHO™). Andrew Dawoer and Tom Pridimore
{poth directors of the Invesimen: Adviser). are each 14.99% shareao.ders in SHO. They are not dirccrors ot SHO. and have no
operationa. role in tha: nusiness. SHO does not meet the definition of a re_azed party under 1AS 24,

In accordance wath TIAS 40 Invesimen: Propeny”. the invesimen, propeny as peen ndependently va..ed a: fair va.ae oy JLIL

an accredited external valuer with recognised and relevan: prolessiona. qua'ifications and recen: experience of the location
and category of the investmens: properiy ocing vacied. however, the vallations are ;ae Jitimate responsioi’ity of the Direciors.

Yol
LI va.Led the Civitas Socia. Housing PLC oroperty porifaic on tne basis of each individ.al propery and ne (neoretica sa'e of
ihe properies withodt the penefil of any corporaie wrapper a- £968 736,000 as a: 31 Maren 2022 (2021 £915.589.000).

JLL has orovided va.uation services (o e Company wiii regards o the properiss during he year JLL nas provided addiiona’
valuation services on ine acquisiion of investment property o the Company d.ring :1e perod. The Direcrors have ens.red
:nat JLL has appropriate procedures in place o ensure inere are no mdependence conlicts with the services provided 1o the
Company In relation 0 the ycar ended 31 March 2822, 1ne proportion of the 10:a) lees payab.e by The Comrpany 10 JLLs 105 lee
income was :ess than 5% and is therefore minima. Addidionally JLL nas a rotation poilcy in p.ace waerchy the signatorics on
1ne val.,allons rode afier seven years.

With the excention of the acg.uisition detai’ed innotc 16.C. a. corporaie acquisitons during the year and the comparative year
nave peén reaied as assge: purchases ralner (nan p.asiness combinations because folowing review of :ne IFRS 3 conceniration
1€st, hey are considered 1o oc acguisitions of properiies raner (nan pJsinesses (noe 3 2)

The following tanic provides tne falr valuie meas.aremaon: erarcay for invesimen: oroperty’

Queted prices Sigiuticant Stgniticant
W active vbservable unobserable
markcts (Level  inpuls (Level  IRPuts (Level
Total il 2 3

. : _ e _E090 o Eghoo  £000 £004G

Investment properties measured at fair value:

31 March 2022 945,237 - - 545,237
893.584 - 893,584

Tnere nave peen no ransfers nelween Leve 1 and Leve. 2 daring any of the years. nor nave there peen any ransfers oglwesen
Lere. 2 and Leve. 3danng any of 1ne years

TAac va L@10ns nave pecn prepared in accordance wini ne RICS Va.Lanon - Professiona’ S:andards {incorporating (nc
Iniernauona. Va..auon Slandards) oy JLL one of the eading orofessiona firms engaged in “ne so0<la. noosINg seaior

As noled previc.sy a. of e Group's inves'wenss are repored as Leve 3 1n accordance wiin [FRS 13 wnere Inn.is are no:
oased on opservao.e marke: dala and ne va..e 1s Dased LDON advics (Tom relevan: <now.cdgeao e exper:s
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In this ins:ance. the determination of the fair value of Investment property requires an examinaiion of the spccific merits of
each property that are in turn considered periinent 1o the valuation.

These include-
i) he regulated socia. housing sector and demand for the facilities oftered by each S5H nroperty owned py the Group:

ii) 'he particu.ar structare of the Group's transacuons where vendors, at theil owne expense, mee! the maority of the
refurbishment coss of each property and certain purchase costs;

iii) detai.ed financial ana.ysis with discount rales supporiing the carrying va.ue of each property:
iv) a full repairing and insuring .ease with annual indexation pased on CPT or CPI+1%.

Tre following descriptions and definitions relating to valuation iechniques and key unobservable inpJts made in deiermining
fair values arc as follows:

Valuation technigues income approach
Fair value is defined ag tne price tha: would be received 1o sel. an asset or paid (o ransfer a ltability in an orderly rransaction
between market paricinan:s at the measuremen: date ie an exi price).

The va.uation meinodo.ogy used oy the va uers iollows the income approach This approach considers the rental income
curreniy payvaple: the next up.i: due on tha: income on review: the jikelinood of a comtinuation of tha: ren:a. income  with
grow:n in accordance with the leages - over the remaining terms: and then a _ong-term reversion which considoers :he likely
apitity of the properijes (0 conlinae (o generate rent through supported nousing cccubation, as disincet from a reversion o
Vacan: possession valae.

Risks are involved in both assessing thc valuc of the renial income over the temaining terms of the ieases and in also
predicting that incomre will continue neyond the end of the existing ieases This is a balanced judgment, which can propetly
e reflecred in the exit yield applied to the final year's income and in the gverall return (o a purchascr.

Appropriate laxaion ca.cuations are adopied for every property nased on itis vaiue and on the assurnprion of the sa:e of
‘e properly asses directly as opposed [o shares of a subsidiary company holding De property and have considered ¢
individual characteristics of the propertics.

There are TWo maln tnonservanis inpls that deternmine the fair va'ue of the Group's investmaon: property”

i} The rate of 2% per annum nas pbeen used for CPl over the term of the sub ect properties’ leases in line with the Bank of
England’s iong-term infiation targe:s tor CPL It should be noled that ali ‘eases benelit from eitner CPI or CPI+1 indexation.

ii) The discoun: raie applied 1c 1he renta f.ows.

Key fac:ors in determining :he discoun: rates appied include the regu.ated social nousing sector and demand for cac SSH
property cwned oy re Group, cosis of acquisiiion and refurpishment of each propery, the anticipaied liture underlying cash
flows for each property. benchmarking of eacn underiying ren: for each property {passing rent). impac: of ciimate change. and
‘he tac: that all of :he properties within (nc Groud's porifoiio have the benefi: of fu.l repairing and insuring .eases entered inwo
oy an Approved Provider.

As ar the palance sheet date, the lease lengths within the Group's porifolio ranged from an effccrive 15 years 10 36 years with a
weigated average unexpited ‘ease et ol 221 yvears (2021: 22.8). The greater the leng:it of the lease then, all other meinas neing
equa., the grealer e va ue ol 1he property.

Fensivittes of measaremen?t of sigodican! anotisarvabiie trpats

As set ou: within significant accouniing esiimates at 3.1 agove. t11e Group’s property INVesimen: vaiuailon is open o inneren:
uncertainties in the inpuis tha! determine fair vaiue. As a resud. L the folowing sensiiivity ana.ysis has oeen prepared:

>
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Average discount rate and range
The average discount rate used by the valuerin te Group's propery Poritolio Va.Lasion is 5.5% (2025 6.0%).

The range of discount rates used by the va.uer in tne Croup's proventy Pordoio Va.uation is fxom 4.6% 10 11.5% (2021 4.7% 0
10.7%). In assessing the range of discoun:s. the valuer considers the likely net initia. yield which wou'd be sought by the
inves:men: market and bui.ds in addtiiona: discoun:s ;o ref.ect added risk in:o the discount rate of fe term and. in some
cases, e discoun: rate for the reversion. For cxample where .arger ren'a. grow:h is a.owed during the lease an addi-iona’
discount is built into e reversion because of the graater risk of a fall in :ne rent a7 the end of the leaso.

Simi‘ar.y additional discoun:s are considered where properies are in the process of being re-purposed and premiums are
considered wnere residential care assers are funded by back-lo-pack 'eases with care providers.

The taple be.ow il ustrates :ne change (o the value of invesiment properties if the discoun: rate and CPI used for the porifolio
valuastion cacu.ations are changed:

0.5% 1n +0 5% 10

discountrate  discountrate ¢ 25% Ln CPJ U 25% 10 CP1L
EQo0 . £200 . L E‘[!UFI 57090

lhcreas)e_ikdeérease)-i; the IFRS fair value of investment proﬁe?ties at: o
31 March 2022 35,620 (33,142) 28,509 (27,426)

3 Maron 2021 34,131 {31776) 27211 (26175
ew Bubsidary resa’s
7 S S T T/ T T T tarte tortme
year ended yrat ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
—- - - . - - . EOOO  F000
Acdualsition of swosidiary companies (inciuding inercompany .oan) 13,559 -
Acquisiiion costg 765
Transier {0 INVESIMEN: PIOVENY (11,629) -
Sa.e orocesds (2,695}

Total - o 7 o -

On 23 Aori. 2021 the Group enlered mio a ransaciion 1o acq.ire the freeho.d properies operated oy CPI Care Limited
Upon ine acquisition of the compames for £13559,000 plus ‘ransaciion ¢osis: (e proper:ics were ransferred into o:1e
group companies and (he company acgaired, along with i's associated opceranons. was sold 1o Envive Corondum Bidco
Limited for £2593.000.

FEnvivo Corcndurr Bideo Limized is a supsidiary of Specialist Heallncare Qperations Limitaed (SHOY Andrew Dawoor and Tom
Pridmore (bodh directors of the Tnvesimen: Adviser). are eacn 14.99% shareno.ders in SHO. They are no: dircctors of SHO, and
nave no operationa: ro.e 3HO does not meet 1ne delinition of a related pary onder 1a834

31March 2022 31 March 2u21

Q00 £000
Amounts falling due in less than one year ’ - S
Trade receivan.es 4,560 4.859
Less provision for impairmen: of rade receivan.es {239)
Aceried income 4,982
Prepaymen:s and 0iier receivan.es 3162
Toal - = * T ke

Prepayrren:s and oiacr reccivan.c amaanis Inc.ude prepaid Lega. and professiona. fecs of F34.006 (2021 F200.600) That nave
peen IncuIrad in CONNCCION wWitn acd.Isrions yet 1o ae comp.eied and £1.045.005 (2021 £817.000) in respec: of ongoing works
0On e property pornio o

Accrued incone re.aies mainy o ren: aceraed [or e year oul not ye: demanded.
¥ )
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Amounts falling due after more than one year
Debtor arising from straigat hne ad;usimen:s
Lease mncentives

Total

A

he aged analysis of ;rade receivanles was as fo.ows:

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Debtors past due

e £000 EQU0
2,053 1,574
21,466 20,381
. 23,513 71905
) 31 March 2022 731 March 2021
£'000 £'000

Carrent 1777 2128
< 30 days 355 817
30-60 days 108 322
> 60 days 2,723 1502
) o 4960 4869
Debtors past due o 7
Less provision for impairmen: (239) (256)
Total a1 aons
The Directors consider “he fair value of receivab.es equals their carrying amount. g
Otner calegorics within ‘rade and o:ner receivables do not inc .de impaired assets. 5
The provision for impaitment movement was as [o..ows! ' E '
= ]
For the For the . §
S iarcna0sz 3 warch a0 2
o L o ) £000 £000 ;
Balance a: peginning of year 256 -
Impairmen: provision made 109 289
Armrount recovered {126) -
Amrounis writen off - (33)
Balance at end of year o T 235 7777}.5767

13,0 Cash andd cash eignivalants

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

000 £000
Casn neid by solicrors i - e 7
Liquidity funds 10,489 10.485
Casn neld a. pancx ) 28110 92.613
Jnresincied cash and cash cquiva.ents 48,975 103.819
Restricted casn 4,362 3.278
Total T 53337 107097

Ligquidizy funds refer 1o money paced in money mar<e: funds. These are nighly \iquid funds with accessibiliy withun 24 nours
and supect o mnsignifican: risk of changes in va.uc.

Cash he.d oy so.ciors is money he.d in escrow for expenses expecied 1o pe incurred i rejiation © invesment pDroperics
pending compieiton. These funds are availabie immediately on demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Resuricied cash represemis amounis heid for specific commitments, .enant deposize and reieniion money he d in relation
o defermed payiments sunicct 10 achievemen: ol cenam conditions. other reentions and cash segregated (o fund repair,
‘o bring the properiies up 1o satisfactory standards for the Groap and the tenants.

maintenance and Improvement WoOrss

190 Trade and other pavabies

33 March 2022 31 March 2021
£000

£'000
béferred income ’ - ’ ’ ’ 860 545
Acquisition costs acerued 2,856 3,706
Finance costs 1,840 1557
Dividend withholding tax payab.e 1,057 892
Accreas and other creditors 2202 1,979
Tenant deposizs 677 565
Total ' ' ) ’ 9492 9345

Acquisition costs accrued a'se inc.uade monies reiained at the poin: of acqusition 1o e pald at a later date otaiing £2.158.600
{2021: £2.508.000)

2000 Bank Aane loan Larvomersn(y

Bank borrowings are secared oy cnarges overindividua. invesimen: properiies neld oy cenain assei-ho.ding subsidiaries. Tne
panks also 10.d charges over (ne shares of cerain subsidiaries and any intermediary hoding companies of those suosidiares.
Any associared fees in arranging "he pank porowings snamoriised as at tne year end are offser agains: amo.nts drawn on
tne facilities as shown in the table be'ow:

For the For the

veat ended year ended

) , o ) , M Md[ChE'zcllluzs 31 Malcn42021
Ban-k porrowings drawn a: s:ar: of year S T 7357,05 Y
@am: borrowings drawn -
Ban< borrowings drawn a: end of year - _ 7 o 357;65 7
Unamoriiscd cosis a: s:an of ye;;r B B o - {4,930) 7(353@7
Less: oan issue cosis incurred {1,723} (2,893}
Add- lcanissie Cosis anornised 1,653 1293
Erl_mortiscd coss a- Cﬂd_(ml: __—7 i T (5.000) 7 -(jrg?(})

e B ' ’ i - 3520580 532120

ﬁ end of year

Repayap.e wishin 1 year
Repayap.e peiween 10 2 years
Repayao.e ociween 2 10 5 years
Repayap.c aler 5 years
Total )

1 Loan balance net of unamorhsad Costs

Tae Growp is pary (o ne fo.owing .oan facily agreemen s

Loan Balance' Loan Balance’ Lloan Principal
3t March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022

- 000 £o00 gooo
- 39.937 -
158,746 99755 160,000
59365 50137 60,000
133,939 133825  137.050
T 352050 '

352120 357,080 .

Loan Frinclpat
31 March 2021
£'000

A1D-year Sierang Tenm Faciiy Agreoment dated 2 Wovenioer 2017 {or Lo 10 £92.50C.000 witn Scotsn Widows Lirted Interes:

iz fixcd ar a tota. of 23935% gerann.m

000

Tne porrowings inc ude amosn:s securad on INVESIMCN: DIoneny 1o e val.e of [173.777.0006 (2021 17¢.831.040)
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A Sterling Revolving Facility Agreemeni for £60.0GC.C00 with L.oyds Bank pic The facility has been extended 10 15 July 2024,
inierest is charged at SONTA + 1.57% margin.

The borrowings inciude amoun:s secured on invesunent property 1o ne vaiue of £153,340,000 (2021 £149,728,000).

A Revowing Credit Faciiy Agreement for up o £100,000.00C with HSBC Banx PLC. Interest 1s charged a: SONIA + 2.02% margin.
The facility matitity has been extended o November 2023

Tne borrowings inciude amoudnis secared on investmen: property to the va.ue of £222.745.000 (2021 £219.606,00C)

A B-year .ocan facility with Nationa. Westminster Bank Plc. dated 15 August 2019, for up o £60.000.000. Interes: is charged
at SONIA +2.00% margin and has peen {ixed by way of a 3-year swap. The swap lixes interes: on £20.000.000 a: 2.7105%
and £40.000,00C at 2.3475%. The .oan can be exiended for an additiona. 2 years and there is the oplion of a further
£40.000.00C accordion.

The porrowings mec_ude amounts securad on invesiment propeny o the value of F135,330,000 (2621 £131.283,000).

A 7-year oan lacllity with M&G Investment Managemen: Limited. dated 22 January 2021, for up t0 £84.550.0CC. Interes: is fixed at
a otal of 3137% per annui.

The borrowings include amaiin:s secured on invastimen: properny o ne va.ue of £230.487.000 (2021: £225.221,600)
A3t March 2022, the Group is in compiliance with all covenants.

Tne covenants in p.ace under the live agreements are summarsed in the ab.e be ow:

Loan — . . _Mistoucalang projected inferestcovel ___ Loan [ Value ratio

cottish Widows Limited 1G-year lactlity - Al least 325% M.st not exceedi}O‘V;
Lloyds Bank plc revolving credit facility Al least BR0% Mgt not exceed 52.5%
HSBC Bank PLC tacility Atleast 25C% Must not exceed 55%
Nationa. Westrmnster Bang Pic 53-year faciity At sas: ZR0% Musg: not excesd B0%
M&C Invesiment Managemen_:;i_rr}_itidly_c_arf_acgty_ At -cast 250% I\_Aqu_ not cxcceed 55%

The Group's borrowings wiih Lioyds Bank plc, HSBC Banx PLC and Nationa. Wesiminszer Bank P.c nave rransitioned from the
London Interpank Offer Ra:e (LIBOR) benchmars to Sleriing Overnight Index Average (SONTA) bencnomark during the year
There was neq.igib'e cos: invaived in the borrowing facility ransition and the respeciive hedge instrumen: amrendrren:s,

218 tnierestrate dertvatives
Tne Group nas entered into Inierest rate swap agreemen:s with NatWest Margeis in order 10 mitigate the risk of changes in
inleres: rates on iis loan with Naziona! Westminsier Bank Plc under which £60,800.0CC is curren.y drawn

Tae swaps have a nodona: va'.ae of E60.00C,000 and fix interest at 2.60% {inc. uding the 2% margin ratc on (he ban<.oan) and
nave a malanty dac of 15 August 2024,

For the For the
yeat ended yeat ended
31March 2022 31 March 2021
- . . #0600  E0U0
Arstart of year (544} {478)
Change in fair value during 11e year 2,675 (55)
Asset/(liability) at end of year 2131 {544)
The able pelow shows the fair va:ue measarement hicrarchy for inierest derivatives
Swgnificant Significant
auete prices In Observable unobservabie
active Markets Inputs {Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
- — i . _ .. (Gevdyfooo  £000 o EUOR
31 March 2022 - 2131 -
31 March 2021 - (544)
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Tnere have been no transiers between lLeve. 1 and Level Z during ihe year nor nave therc been any ‘ransfers perween Level 7
and Level 3 during the year,

22 0 Share capital
Snare capital represents the nomina. va'l.e of consideration received by the Company for the issue of Ordinary snarcs

Forthe Ear the year

year ended ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

ORI 1. AU 01111
Share capital

A beginning and cnd of year 6,225 6.225

Number of shares issued and fully paid Ordinary shares of £0.01 each

At geginning and end of year 622461580 622451380

During :he year. :nhe Company reissted he 365.0C0 (2001 250.000) Ordinary shares neld in ireasury at 31 March 2021 for £647.000
(2621 £272.000)

Later in inec year tne Company puarchased 10025000 Ordinary shares 1o ne ne.d in Teasury at a cost of 719.259.500. Further
purcrases were made afier Te year end as detaied innoe 23.0.

AT 31 March 2022 “he Company 10.ds 10.0625.06C 2021 365.000) Ordinary snares In (reasdry. The sharcd will contimic o be he.d
in reasury until eliner reiss.ed or cance.led.

The number of Ordinary shares usad (0 calcyiale the nel asse: vawie per sitare is 612436 380 (20210 621.896,380) whic:1 excludes
tne shares he.d mn ireasury.

Z
Tne share premium rescrve represents the amo.nts subscrioed for Ordinary share caplial in excess of nomina: va..o .ess
associated issue cosis of the guipscriplions

3 Bhare prominim s serye

Fot the Fot the

year ended year ended

Jimarchzo2z 31 March 2021
_— — - EWO | EUN0
A beginning of year 292,463 292405
Premi.m arising on sndaras reiss 163 58

Atend of year

D.ring :he year. the Company reissued 585006 (2021 250,008 Ordinary shares he'd in treasury for £847 GCC (2021 £272.000) a
gain of £163.C00 2021 £538.C0C) arose wnich ig recogrised 1in ine sharge premliur reserve,

210 Capitai reduction reserve

Tne capla. reduciion reserve is g distriputan.e reserve 1o waicn e va..ae of the canceled stare premiam 1as peen
ansferred. Parsaant o Arac.e 3 of Tne Companies (Red.Tion of Share Capiia ) Crder 2608, the pa'ance ned in tne capia
reduclion reserve is 10 be reated for ine parposes of Par: 23 of ine Companles Ac: 2005 as a rea ised profit and therefore
avai.an.c for disiriouion in accordance with secion 8330 of the Companies Ac: e Company nas Jsad s reserve for 11e
coss of puying vacg ghares o o ne.d in reasury.

c.
2

£5
ol ~ —_— _—— _ — —_ — —_—_— —_—— _— f—_— — —_— —_— — —_— —— —_—— _— —_— - _ _— —
zeZ For the For the
B Z year ended year ended
- 5 31Marchi2022  3) March 2021
= . . L L e . _E0OOD  EULO
E Z A peginning of year 331,140 330925
%Z Snares reissoed {rom rreas.ry 484 214
g
Saares NoOLgaT DAcK N0 reasury {9.259) -
Atend of year ) B _ B 322,365 331140
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

During he year, the Cempany reissued 553,000 (2021 250.000) Ordinary snares heid in treasury for £647.000 (2071 £272.000). The
cos: of purchasing these shares o treasury of £484.000C (2021: £214,000) has becn credited 0 the capitai reduction reserve with
the gain credred 1o tne Share premium resarve.

Later in the year the Company purchased 10.025.00C Ordinary shares (0 be he.d in {reasury at a cost of £9.259.000. Further
vurcnases were made afier the vear end as delailed in note 235,

Al 3l Marcn 2622 the Company holds 10.025.000 (ZC21. 555.600) Crdinary shares in reasury.

25 0 Rewainad earninegs
This reserve represen:s the profiis and .osses of the Group.

For the for the

year ended year ended
21 Mazch 2022 31 March 2021
£'000 £non

Ktrbeginning ofryea} S o ' ) ' ' ?36715 ' '741,008
Profit for the year 44,754 35.0758
(34,093) (33.413)

Drvidends paid in the year {as per note 14.0)
| 54331 4370

At énd oE year

29.0 Net asse! vaue
Basic NAV per share 12 calculated by dividing net assets in the Consclidated Statemens: of Financia. Posliion atiripuiapn!c o
ordinary eq.ily holders of the parent by ‘ne nJmber of Ordinary shares oulstanding at the end of e year.

Ne assel vaoLes ave been ca.clated as fol ows:

_ 3iMarch 2033} 31March 2021

Net assets (£000) S o 675547 673498
Number of Ordinary shares in issue at end of year 622461380} 622,161,380
Number of Ordinary shares he.d in ‘reasury 10,025,000y  (565,000)
Number of Ordir;ry shares excluding treasury shares held by the Company o o 612.43638@ 621,896,380
NAV — basic and diluted S 10308 10830

H
1
|

220¢ SLNNONIY ANV L3cdTy
Yld DNISNOH IVIDOS SY.LIALD

m



AS SOCIAL HOUSING PLOC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

2T Analysis of financiaf labalitnes aned as<ets acdsing from flaancinn soneiies

For the
12:23?‘;:;: borrowﬁ:;: 31 l!\'ne:ri:zl;%g
- . - . _ . . Foo0G __£006 €000
Al b?ginﬁng of ?gar_ T T T T 544 352,120 352,664
Cash flows from financing activities
Loan arrangemen: ¢og's paid - {1,805) {1,805)
Non cash movements
Loan arrangement fees payanle - 82 82
Amorisaijon of loan arrangement cosis - 1.653 1,653
Chjﬂge in Iiir va.ue Ef mnerest rate derriiva'.ives - (2.675) - {2,675)
Atendofyear  _  __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ __ (@3 352050 39919
B - - T B T - - T B o - o o T o T - 4}'0! T;;
interestrare Bank year ended
e B ) ] d“”‘"‘z‘.'r;’g‘gr poriowitas 32""'“}3&3
KZ oegmmg al year - 4'% ”)?:S‘ET?D B 26/9648
Cash flows from financing activities
Loan draw down 84 550 84.550
loan arrangemen. cosis paid - (2810 (2811
Non cash movements
Loan arrangerren: fecs payan.c 82) {82)
Amoaorisation of .0an arrangcmen: cosws - 1293 1.7293
Change in {fair val.e of interest ratc derivatives o 65 - 7 56
Aendotyesr T T T T T ey T e

23 1 Gpesating eines
The Group is party (o a numper ol operading leases on s invesimen: propenies witn Approved Providers Tno furure minimum
.edse payments under non-cance.an.¢ operaing leases recevacie oy (e GrolLp are as [ol.ows:

31March 2022 3] March 2021

£'O00 £ 000
AI&":)'.;}:—S rg:f;eiTab;; o - - T - T T - - T
< 1year 53,821 50357
1-7 years 53879 50415
7-5 years 161,940 151,511
=5 years 928,210 873,825
Azg-l.;lgot_ie; . _y T _Q B _7 7_7_" 7_7_ - - _1197.850 7{{@114

Leases are direc-.e agreemen:s with Aporoved Providers for a enir nerween 13-36 years with indexed in<ed ann.a. ren:
reviews A current eases are ful repammng and INSLring eases: ;ne lendans are ncrefore no.iged 1o repair. main:ain and
renew e progeries paac 1o e ongina. condiions



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

The fol.owing table gives deiai's of perceniage of annaa’ renta income per Approved Provider:

31 March 2022 3i Maich 2021
% %

F:Jc_kignd Home S_ojllons an?i duéj:aé I-{_ousing-]“ 2.4.4: 239
Fa.con Housing Association CIC 18.7 19.7
Bespoke Supportive Toenancios 12.6 13.2
Inclusion Housing CIC 93 8.7
Wesimoreiand Supporied Housing Limited 59 6.1
Lncircle Housing Limited 5.9 5.0
Trinity Housing Association Limiied 51 53
Pivaral Housing Asgociation 38 39
Harbour Light Assisted Living CIC 16 37
Chrysalis Supported Association Limited 36 34
New Walx Property Management CIC 28 28
My Space Housing Solutions 13 1.2
[KE Supported Housing Limized 11 11
Hiildale e using Association Limiied 10 0.9
Windrush Alllance UK CIC 0.7 -
L1ly Rose Suppceried Housing 0.1 -
B.ue Sq.uare Residentia. Lid 0.1 oA
Total o - 1000 1600

Auccand Heme Solitions and Qualitas Housing are noth nempers of the Socia. Housing Family CLC. and subjec: to common
conirol, Tacir annual rent hgures have Therefore neen aggregated in the taple above The perceoniage relating 1o Aucsland Home
Soluions and Qua.izas Housing was 16.28% and 813% (2021: 23.88% and 0.02%) respeciively. Tac annua. ren: at 31 Marcn 2072 for
Auccand Home Solutions and Qua.iias Housing was F8.679.008 and £4,334 000 {(2021; £12.028.00C and £8.000) respectivaly.

The Group is also parly 10 a namper ol operaiing eases on is 1ong .easeho.d properuies. The groand rent paymen:
commiimen:s under hiese operating ieases are negigine so he fuature minimam ease payments under these leases have nNo:
neen disciosed in these financia, statemenss.

29 0 Covwrolling pa: ties
Az at 31 Marca 2022, inere is no uiiimate conirolling party.
300 BHelated partyalisclosaves

L5 Trausactwonys wilh MHrectary

The Directors are remunerated for their services at such rate as the Directors shall from time 0 lime deiermine. The aggregate
remaneraion and penefits in <ind of tne Direciors of the Company {in each case, sowely in their capaciy as suci) in respect of
‘ne year ended 31 March 2022 payaple ou: of the asscts of the Company is not cxpecied (0 exceed £250,000

Fees of £190,000 (2021: f182.0G0) were incurred and paid 0 the Direciors

As a! 31 March 2022 and 2021, 1he Directors held the folowing numoer ol shares:

3t March 2022 31 March 2021

ormnalv ordinary

_.._8hares  _shates
Director '
Michacl Wrobe. Chairman 120,598 100598
Alas air Moss Direcior 11,766 1766
Alison Hadden Direcior -
Caroline Gualliver Andit and Managemen: Engagemen: Commitiee Chair 58,832 56,832
Peter Baxter Dircetor 82,065 47.06%

-
1 B
2
g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

RevMLizerat o

The Investmen: Adviser has reviewed its remuneration polcies and proced.ares 10 ensure tneentives are a.igned wiin iha
requirements of AIFMD. It includes measares 1o avold conflicts of interest such as providing staff with a fixed monihly
sa.ary and determining discretionary paymenis oy the performance of the Investmen: Adviser as a whoie and not inked
lo any one AIF in particu’ar The Invesimen: Adviser and its sraff receive no remuneration trodgh profic share. carried
interest, co-investmer! or other schemes rela'ed ‘o ine Company's performance

30.2 Transactions with the Investnient Adviser
On 1 Novemper 2616, Civitas Invesimen: Management Limited ("CIM”) was appoin:ed as the [nvesimen: Adwviser of the Company.

Fees of £6.132.000 (2021 £5.117.000) were incurred and paid 10 CIM. In addition £nil (2021 £nil) disharsemens were paid in the year

The Invesimen: Adviser nas agrecd 1o contribute £106.00C (2021 £nilY) towards .ega’ and professiona!l [ees incurred in the year
This amount nas neen ollse: against ‘ega! and professional teeg in note 9.0 This amount is oursianding at the end of the year

As ai 31 March 2022, a net amown: of £15L0CC (2021: F13.000) was due from CIM, which has since been received

As al 31 March 2022, CIM he.d 5C.000 {2021 S6.0C0) Crdinary snares in the Company

NG

isitd

inaacial mskormanageies:

VEOFlnanoaal mastroenrnls
The Group's princina. financia. asse:s and [ab.iies are those tha: arise direcily from i's operazions: \rade and oher
receivaonles, irade and other payan.es and cash and cash equiva.enis. The GroLps othar principa. hnancia: \idaorities are pan<
borrowings. e main purpose of whicn is 1o finance the acquisiton and development of tne Group's iInvesimen: property
per:foiio and interest rate derivatives as detaied in noes 200 and 21 6.

Ao financia! iaoiities are measured ar amoriged cost, excop: interes: ra:c dorivaiives, wailcn are moasared atfair value. A,
financial instrarrenis were designaied in their curren: categones wpoen indtial recogniion,

Seloul pe.ow s a comparison Dy c.ass of the carrying amoun:s and fair va. e of ihe Group's financia! insrruments that arc
carried in e financial siaiemeon:s

Book value Fair value Bock value lan value

31March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2041 31 March 2021
‘000 EQ0C £000 £004)
Financialassets -~ T T T T
[nteres: rate derivatives 2,131 2,13t -
Trade and other rcceivab.es 34,580 34,580 33572 33572
Casn and casnequvaenss B - 53,337 53337 107087 107.087
Financial liabilities
Trade and oner payab.es- 8,632 8,632 84593 8,594
Banz norrowings 352,050 349,406 352120 354142
[nicres: raze derivati'«is_ - - 514 544

1 Eachudes prepaymenis
2 Exchudes deterred income

Tne Group nas five nanc .oans. a 10-year hxed rate loan of F52.300 000 provided oy Scotisn Widows Limied; a 3-year revo.ving
credit fac vanan.e rae .oan of Fes000 GO0 provided oy Loyds Bane v.o a S-year revoving Credn fac y varnan.e rate _oan
ot £180.0C0.500 pranded oy H3RC Ban< PLC. a S-year revo ving credit taciyy vanap © rate .oan of £60.006.000 provided oy
Naiiona. ‘Mesiminsier Bang< Ple. and a 7-year fixed rate _oan of F84.556.0C0 wiin MAQC Inves:men: Managemen: l.imiied The fair
va..e of e fixed rate oanis dejormmed oy conrparing (e discounied fuiure casa flows




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Trooano i riskomap agernears?

Tnhe Group is exposed 1o marke: risk, interas: rate risg, credit nsk and dquidity risk in the curren: and faiure years. The Board of
Direciors oversees [1e management of tnese risks. The Board of Direciors reviews and agrees vo.icies for managing each of
these risks tha are summarised pelow

312 Market risk
The Croup's aclivilies wi.l expose il primarny o e market risks associa.ed wiln changes in pronerty values and cnanges in
ineres: ralcs

Rish @ lalng 10 S esume i i s Guer' y

[nvesiment in property is subject 1o varying degrees of risk. Some faciors (nat affeci ine value of the invesiment in proper.y
include:

¢ changesin the genera. economic c.imate;

e compeilion lor avallab.e properiies:

e Obsowescence: and

e governrent regulazions including planning. environmenral and tax .aws.

Variations in :he above faciors can aflect the va uatdon of assets he.d oy the Group and as a res.a’ can influence the financial
performrance of the Group.

Riwh rernting Lo bcpaeit el am o caaly e Cash
Thac Group hiolds positions in two AAA rated liguidity funds that invest in a diversified range of governmen: and
non-government money rearket securities, which are sunject o varying degrees of risk. Somc faciors tha: affect tne value of

the liquidity funds inciude:

yoIund~ ciasy @Al aler

e he performance ol the anderlying governmen: and non-government money maret securitas; and
e interestrales.
Variations in the apove factors can affcct the valuation of assets neid oy the Group and as a resiul can inf.aence e financial

performance of (ne Group.

A Interesy iate risk
Interes: rae risk is e risk 1na: e fair vasle or faiare cash Lows ot a financia. insirumen: wil_ fiuctuate pecause of cnanges in
marke! interest rates.

The Group's interes: rate risk principa..y atiges from ong-term borrowmngs. 7o manage this, the Groun has enered 1nio a fixed
rate pank loan and three variaple rae banx loans Tne Group nas eniered into an interest ratc swap on the 5-vear ‘0an facily
with Nationa! Westminster Bang P.cin order (o ritigate the risk of rising inierest rates.

A3l Marcn 2022, 55% (2021 55%) of The Group's borrowings are subicc: 10 a fixed ra‘c of interest.

The exposure of the Group o variabie rates of interes: is considered upon drawing of any new loan faci.iiies, to ensure that ine
Group's exposure (o ineres: rae filuctuaions is witnin accenian.e levels.

The Invesimen: Adviser monitors tae Grotn's expos.ars [0 arty ¢aanges in interes: ratc on an ongolng basis. wiin ine Board
uodated on a quarterly pasis of (e curren: exposure of the Grouo's loan laciliues.

As az 31 March 2022, if interes: razes nad ocen 166 basis poinis mgner/lower) with all other variab.es ne.d consian: the impac:
on orofiig after taxaion for the year would be as beiow, The Inves:ment Adviser anticipaies ‘hese .evels are reasonan.y
nossinio based on the coservation of current marge: conditions tha: interast rates would no: fluctiate more than 1%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

o -/ 0 /= - = T SiMarchza2 s Marchaozt
. — . - . . EoODo £000
(Decrease)/increase in profits due to interest rates

10C pasis points higher (1.066) (529

ower

1572 1,600

100 basis pont

31March 2022 31 March 2021
* %

gan@&rfawiﬁg;zrfri){ed raze o S T T ’ R 294 294
Banx borrowings - variaple rate 2.23 176

0.05 -

The Group's borrowings with Lloyds Bank ple, HSBC Ban< PL.C and Nationa, Westminsier Ban« Fic wi . be transiioning from
the London Interpan< Ofler Rate (LIBOR) benchmark to Sterling Ovemnighi Index Average {(SONIA) pencamark in due course
Tnere is expec:ied (o pe nedligible cosi invowved in ine porrowing faclity transition and The respecive nedge inswramen:
amendmen:s,

LY Craadis gian

Credi: ris< 1s the risk 1na: a counterparty will not meet 1is obagations under a financial ins:ramen: or Cusiomer Cconiract
‘eading «» a financia. loss. Tne Croup is exposed (o credi: ris<s from oo:h iis leasing activities and financing acavisies,
inciuding deposits with hansg and financia. mstuions,

Deorors and accrued income represen: ren: duw.e or aceraed. these amoun:s due are diversified berween a numbpear of
differen: Approved Providers of differing financia. sirengin, see note 28 0 for details of the difleren: coun:erpariies. None ot
:he Aporoved Providers nave lisied deb and as such do no: have a credii raling, however the diversified nat.re of this asset
5UDPOIS e credit guaity.

The Croup has policles in p.ace to ensudre that renial coniracts are en:cred in only wit .cssees with an approprase credit
and operationai nistory, and lUmiis cxposdre o any one lenant. The cred nisk is considered 10 o2 furiner reduced ag e
source of the renis received oy tne Crodp is u.timately provided by the Governmen:, oy way of nrousing asenefi: and care
provision. via a diverse range of Loca. Authoriics.

For detali.s of provisions for impairmen: p.easc refer 1o noie 17.0

lead o

& (RN DR R Canh depnyiils

One of the principal credit Tis<s of The Group wil arise with the nan<s and financia. insmiuions Tne Board of Direciors pe'leves
tha! the credil risg on short- tenm deposis and curren? acco.L NI Casn D& ances 1s Iriad pecaLse e CounieTparies are nan<s
considered (o be of good credic g.aiiiy In e case of casn deposits hed with awyers, (e credi ris< s .imited neca.se The
casnis newd oy e lawyers wiiain ¢lien: accounis a: pan<s wiih ngn credl q.a‘ily

The credit rasings for pan<s wheore ha.ances are no.d by thie Groap ars as fo_ows:

[.oyds Bans n.c At /F1
HSBC Ban< pc AA-/Fl
EBS Internanona. Limiac AfFT

Farional Wesiringer Bang nio A+/F]

Ratings advised oy Fiien



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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315 Liguidity rnisk

The Group manages ils liquidiyy and funding risks by considering cash Low forecasts and ensuring sufficient cash ba.ances
are neld winin the Groap o mee: future needs. Praden: liguidity risk management implies imainiaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities. the availabiity of financing through appropnale and adequate credi: lines, and the ability of customers
10 selile obiigations witnin norma. terms of credit. The Grodp ensures, through forecasiing ot capital requirements, taat
adeqgua:e cash is available.

Te following 'aple de:ai's the Croap's maiurity profie m respect of 1is financial insirument Jabitities based on contractda.
andiscounted payments:

©On demand <1yeat 1-5 years > 5 years Total

i e ECQUO E'UUUﬁ I £°D00 £'000 £000
31 March 2022
Trade and other payables 8,632 - - - 8,632
Bank porrowings - 9,336 245,974 144,602 399912
8,632 9336 245974 144,602 408544
31 March 2021
“rade and oher payables 8.699 - - 86499
Ban¥ borrowings - 57,909 181,048 144,602 393559
8599 57909 181048 144602 402258

The profile above shows the maturity profile at 31 March 2022 and inciuded within the contracted payments is £42.862,0G0
(2021 £35,509,000) of ‘oan inierest payanie up 1¢ the point of masurizy.

32 0 Capgital commitments
AT 31 March 2622, the Company had funds commited totalling £972,000 (2021 £nil) concerning capital expenditare for a property
inSurrey.

330 Post Dalenee sheet avents

Avgquisitions
On 13 May 2022. the Company comp.eied an acquisition at Noria End, Wisooch for £600,000.

Divderds

Cn 11 May 2022, the Company announced a dividend of 1.3875 pence per share in respect of he period 1 January 2072 0

31 March 2022 toza'ling £8474.000 The dividend payment was made on 28 June 20722 (o sharenolders on the regqisier as at 20 May
2072 The [inancla. s:atements de not refect g dividend. The dividend was paid as a REIT propery income distribution (PID7).

Remaneration

From 1 Apr 2022, the remuneration of the Directors, Audic and Managemen: Engagemen: Commiliee Chairman and Chainman's
annua: fee wil increase. The Chalrman’s annuda. fee increased by 1.9% -0 £53.000 the Direcior’s annual fee increased py 2.2% 0
£34.000; however 1ne additional fee for the Audit and Managemen: Engagemen: Commitce Chair remains at £5.0C0

Finanoyng
On 18 May 2022, an exiension was granzed for the facilicty with Lioyds Bank pic. whicn now expires in July 2024,

Treasnu: g siares

Since 31 Marcn 2022 the Company has made purchases of 1,700,000 Ordinary shares into treasury al an average price of 87.8p
ver Ordinary sharc. The tota. cost 1o the Company including commission and stamp duty is £1.432.000 and tojowing nese
ransaciions, at 23 Tune 2072 (e Company neld 11.725.000 Ordinary shares in reaswry.
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CIVITAS SOUIAL

Company Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2022

Assets
Fixed assets
Invesiment in subsidiarics

Current assets
Trade and other receivab.es
Casgn and cash equiva.ents

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
_Noe £'000 £ 000

70 783,284 720.918

Ela] assels

Liabilities
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other payan.es

Total liabilities

Total net assets

Equity

Share capia:

Share premiam reserve
Capiral reduciion rescrve
Accuma.ated .osses

Total equit}

490 4,310 3644
_1og 23,438 15447
27,748 18,091

821032  740.009

11.c (274,020) (171655
3

)
o 55)

(274,020) (i71.

(274.020)  (171555)
547012 558354

12.C5 6,225 8.223
292.626 292462
322,365 331140
134G (74,204) 181473}
547.012 58354

The Company has taken advaniage of tne provisions of Companies Act 2606 s408 and does no: disciose the Company's
ndividua. profir and .oss accoun: Profit for the year was £21,362,000 (2021 £32,780.00C)

The Company financial statements on pages 18 w0 127 were approved by the Beard of Direciors of Civizas Sual
—ousing ?_.C and aurrhonsed for 1ssue and signed on 1ts behalf by

Michael Wrobel

Chnairman and Independen: Non-Execuive Dirs

29 June 2022

Company No 10462528

The notes on pages 120 10 127 are an integra. par of 10

e linancia. sTaemen:s.



Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Capital

Share
share premum teduction  Accumutated Total

“Food “Fono " Faon Foon “oag
Balance at 1 April 2020 T T s2i5 202405 330926 (80840) 548716
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - 32,780 52.78C
Issue of Ordinary shares
Shares reissucd Irom treasury 57 2 )
Dividends paid
Tota® interim dividends for the year ended - {33,413) {32.413)
31 March 2021 (5.375p})
Balance at 31 March 2021 o 6225 202452 331140 (B1A73) 568354
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - 21,362 21,362
Issue of Ordinary shares
Shares reissued from reasury - 164 484 - 648
Shares bought pack mnio treasury - - {9,259) - (9,259)
Dividends paid
Toial interim dividends for the vear ended - - - (34,093) (34,093)
31 March 2022 (5.5125p) o
Balance at 31 March 2022 6225 292626 312365  (74204) 547012

The notes on pages 140 10 127 are aniniegra. part of thesc financia, statomen's.
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RT AND ACCOUNTS 2

Notes to the Company Financial Statements
As at 31 March 2022

P00 Corporate mformation

Civitas Socia. Housing PI.C ("the Company’} was incorporated in England and Wales under the Companles Act 2006 as a public
company .inmted by shares on 29 Seplemuoer 2015 with company namber 16402528 under the name Civitas REIT PLC. which was
suoseguently cnanged 10 the exigiing name on 3 Qciober 2019

The address of e registerad office is Beaufor: House 51 Now Nortil Road, Exeter. Devon EX4 40P Tae Company is registered
as an invesiren: company Jnder section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 in England and Wales and is domrici.ed in the
United Kingdom.

The Company did not begin irading Jntil 18 November 2016 when 1he shares were admited 1o rading on the London Stock
Excnange (LSED.

The Company's Ordinary shares nave been admitied o the Official List of the Finanaia. Conduct Authonicy ('FCAT). and are
rraded on the LSE.

The principal activity of tne Company IS to act as the Lltimare parent company of its subpsidlanes {the "Groap”) and o provide
sharenho.ders with an atiractive ‘eve. of income. :ogether with the potentia. lor capia. growh trom investing in a porito.io of
Socia. homoes

2.0 Bask of preparation
The financia; statemenss have been prepared on a hisiorical cost basis and in accordance with Financia. Reporang Standard
101 Reduced Disciosire Framewors ('FRS 1017 and tae Companies Act 20056 as appiicabie 10 companies Jugsing FRS 161

In preparing Tmese financial statemensts. the Company applies 'ne recognition. measuremen: and disciosure requiremments of
Internationa. Financia' Reporting Standards (CAdopied TFRSsT, nut maces amendrents where necessary m order 1o comply
with ‘he Companies Aq: 2035 and has 82l our neiow whaore advantiage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemnptions has been taken.
In prepanng these financia. s1atements tae Company nas taxen advariage of a't disc osure exenptions conferred by FRS 101
Therclore, these financa’ statements do not inciuade '
s cerdin comparaive informa:ion as otherwise req.ired by IFRS:

s cernain discoos.res regarding ine Company's capita, manageinent:

s ceraindisc.osures inrelaldon o IFR315 Revenve Contracs with Cusiomers:

& aswaiemen: of cash flows:

s e effec: of future accouniing standards not yet adopied:

& e disciosure of the remunerazion of <ey managemen: personne’ and

«  disclosure of related party ransactions witn otner wacly owned moembers of Civitas Socia. Housing PL.C

olons nave pcen adopted pecause cqaiva.en: disc.osures
nese financia. statements do notine. .de ceriain

In addizion. and 1in accordance with FRS 101 furiner disc osure exem
are inc.uded in the Company's conso.idazed finanaa. statements 7
digc.osIes inrespec: of

&  snare oased paymen's:
s financia insruamen:s: and

e falr va..e meas.remen: oiner than cerain diseoosures required as a resscof recording financia. insrunten:s as fair va..e

e Company nas la<en advan:age of ne cxomrplion in secian 468 of Tne Companies Act 2005 no: 10 presen: iis own income
e

5tatemen: or siaiemen: of comprenensive Income

New standards amendments and intecpretationg
After a review of new accoLniing s:andards waicn are now effective. none are re evan® o o2 adopied 1n tne vreparasion of e
Company'? accoun:s [or 1he vear ended 31 March 2022



Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

Going concern
The financia. statcments have been prepared on a going CONCeIn 04sIs.

As discussed in the Group financial statements above, the underlying assets of the Company bencli: from a secure income stream.

The Company financia statements s1ow an accumulated loss, however this is due 10 a time-lag on profits from subsidiary
companies being moved up the struciure in the form of dividends.

The Company has a net current jiability position of £245.272,000 {2021: £152.564,000). This ba.ancc arises due 1o the intercompany
baiancus Wid..ing £271L632.000 (200 £159.455.000) with the Contpany's subsidiary companies. Tne amounts principaily re.ate o

bank .oans drawn in :he Company's subsidiary companies in order to finance the purchase of new acquisitions in accordance
with the Group's business model. The directors of (e subsidiary companies nave provided a letter of comfort that they will not

seex repaymen: of these ba_ ances within 12 months trom :he date of approva: of the Company's financial siatements

The Company's articles of association inc.ude a requirement for the Board 1o propose an ordinary resolution a: the annaa!
general meeting tollowing the fif:h anniversary from the initia. public oftering of the Company far the Company 10 continue in
irs current form (the Continuation Resciution). This is the first continuation voie since the Company was sel 1D,

If tne Continuation Resolution is passcd. the Company wiil continue i's business as presently constituted and oroposc the
same reso ulon at every fifih annua. genera. meeting thereatter. If the Continuation Resolution is not passed, the Directors
will be required, within six mon:hs after tne date of this annua’ general meering, to formulate proposa.s for consideration
by the sharenolders for the volun:ary Jiguidation. unitisation. reorganisation, or reconsruction of the Company. Afler
maxing appropnate cnquiries of the Company's orozers and Invesrmen: Adviser, pursuant to their recent discussions with &
namper of the Company's snarehoiders. the Direciors are of the view that the Continua:ion Resolution wil be passed a: e
forthcoming annua. genera, meeting. This ref.ecis the strengih and natare of the Company's portfoiio. and specifical.y the
provision of long-rerm accommodation for more :han 4000 vulnerable individuals. Accordingly. ine Directors expect thal

if the Continuation Reso.union is not passed. an cven: which the Direciors consider (o be high!y remote, formulating and
implementing any such proposals wol.d require the Company o continue operazions for a period of at ‘cast 17 monins from
the date of approva. of the Company's financiai siatements,

The Board is. :herefore. of the opinion thar the going concern basis adopied in the preparation of the consoidated financial
sl@.emenis is appropriate.

S:niticant udyeiments and soareas of estimation gncertant /

The key source of estimaiion uncertainty relates o the Company's investment in Group companies, and 1s siated in the

Company's separate [inancia. statemen:s a: cost .esg i pairmean: ‘osses, if any. [Impairment (osses are determined with

reference o the invesimen:'s fair val.e less esiimated cosis of disposa.. Fair va.ue is derived from the subsidiaries’ and their

subsidiaries’ net assets a: ;e ba.ance shee: dale Invesimen: properties neid oy the subsidiary com panies are s.oporied

by independent va.uation. Judgemen:s and assampuons associated with ine property vaiues of the investments ne.d by the
unsidiary companies arce detal.ed in the Group linanciai statements,

30 Aceounting policies
The linancia’ sta:ements of the Company foliow the accouniing po.icies laid out in the Crouw's consoddated financial
siaiemen:s a.ong with the fo.lowing accounting policies which nave been consisiently appie

evesiments i subswliaries

The investments in sabsidiary companies are inc.uded in 1ne Company's Statemen: of Finanaia: Position at cost less provision
for impairment. Impairment ‘osses are determined with reterence to the investment's fair va e less estimated selling coss Fair
value is derived [romr the sapsidiaries’. and their subsidiaries’. net assets at the bpa:ance sheet date. On digposal. the diflerence
peltween the nel disposa’ proceeds and its canrying amotnt is inciuded in the income statement.

The investment in a supsidiary company n:ay include both the purchase ot shares and an intercompany [0an wic: ig
sapsequenty capitalised in return for shares in the subsidiary company. The Inlercompany .oan capitalised is disclosed in
no:c 7.0 as a transfcr between the shares and 1oan columns.

foans w o sabsdionies

Loans made to swbsidiary companies witich arise as par: of the ransaciions for the acquislion of inves:menis and are
subsequen:'y capitalised oy ne issue of snares are recognised as invesimren: in subsidiaries a: cost. AT e polnt iae loan is
capialised. this transaction is recoynised as a transfer witnin the lable in note 7.0.

Amoints due e sebnadiacy Tompaines
Balances arising wiin subsidiary companies of a temporary nature are mniialiy recogniscd at fair va e and subscquently
measured ar amoruscd cost.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

4.0 Dividends
Dividends are inc'uded in :he financial statercents in the year in which tey are vaid, Detai’s of dividends paid and proposed
are included in noe 14.0 of the Group's conscildated financial s;atemen:is.

5.0 Employvee mtormation
Detais oof Directors remuneration are inc..ded in nowe 5.0 of the consa.idarted financia. gtatements. The Company nad no
empioyees during the year (2021 nil) '

8.0 Auditfees
Audit fees in relarion ro the Company's financial siaramen:s 10:3. £296.000 (2021 F272.600). For further derals. p.ease refer 1o
noe 9.0 of the Group financia. stataments.

70 Investauis (i subsidiart

For the
Shares . Loans to year ended |
subsidiaries subsidiaries 31 March 2022
o o B o o o 000 £000 olo]i]
Ba.ance a: :he beginning of the year 703,435 17,483 720,918
Increase in investments 41,712 31,013 72,725
Loansg transferred 23,287 (23.287) -
. palomen: i o [ - -..-) S S .- !
At the end of the year o 768075 25209 793284 .
T o - o -— o T o a T T B o o tot the year
Shates o Loaus (o ended
subsidianes subsidiaries 31 March 2021
_ L : o _ - L _ _ _ _ __ﬂ'PDO . i;i)ﬂ) £'000
Ba.ance a: tne beginning of the year 878.247 28673 706,920
Increase in invesimen:s 978 11383 15.311
Loans ransforre 25573 25.573) -
Impairmen: ] ] ] . (1.31}) - (_1513)
At the end of the year 703.435 17483 726918 ‘

Fol.owing 4 review comparing ¢os: of invesimen’s 10 e Jndariying ne: asse:s of subsidiary companies. an unpawrment
provision nasg oeen made of £358.000 (2021 £1.313.6CC).

oo

2% Subsidiary entihes

Tne Company nas provided a guaraniee under s479C of tne Companies Act 2005 in respect of tne financia. year ended

31 March 2022 for a nunrper of i's s.osidiary companies (as indicaied in the tab.e on ne following pages). Tne guaraniee is
over al ousianding labilities o which The supsidiary companies are sup ect at 31 March 2022 wn:il they are sausfied in fu
The Groub consisis of & paren: company. Civilas Socia. Housing PLC. incorporated in Eng.and and Wa.es (company namber
1040325281 and a numper of supnsidiaries ne.d direcly oy Civitas Socia. Housing FLC. waich operate and are incoraoracd in
Eng.and and Wa.es or Jersey.

e Gro.p owns 180% cquiy snares of a. sapsidiaries isied be’ow and nas Te power to appoin: and remove e ma orly of
.ae noard of directors of those subsidiaries Tne re evan: acivitics of (e ne.ow s.psidiaries arc determined oy 1ne Board of
Dirzciors pasad on the purposs of cach comnany.

Terefore. tne Direciors conc.
consoadaied wiiun Dhe cons

dad ha e Groop nas coniro. OVCr a.. tnese eniles and ac these entiies nave peen
idaied financia’ s:aleren:s.




Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

A istof all refaied wndertakings included within these conso'idated financiai statements are noted be.ow. Indirectly held
subsidiary companies are marxed by an indentation in the rab.e below:

Princlpal activity

Name Registered number Country of Incot porauon

Civiias S-o-cia. I-{:)'.Jsing Fir]arlce_-C"oﬁ:_;_)-e;]y 1 Limned® 10997707  Finance company and é:i\é\j'iancsmii

Civitas Socia. Housing Jersey 1 Limited 124129 Ho.ding company Jersey
Civitas 5PV Lincied” 10518729 Property invesimen: Cngland & Wales
Civitas SPV2 Limited” 16114251 Properwy investmeni England & Wales
Civitas SPV11 Limited® 10546749 Propery invesimrent England & Wales
Civitas SPV15 Limited® 09777380 Property invesiment Lngland & Wales
Civitas SPV25 Limibied” 18791473 Property invesiment England & Wales
Civitas SPV27 Limied* 10883112 Property invesurent England & Wales
Civitas SPV33 Limited” 10546407 Property invesuanent England & Wales
Civilas SPV35 Limited” 10588530 Froperty investmean: England & Wales
Civitas SPV38 Limied? 10738318 Froperty invesiment England & Wales
Civitas SPV39 Limied’ 10847333 Property investment Engiand & Wales
Civitas SPV40 Limited?® 10738510 Propeny invesiment England & Wales
Civitas SPV4l Limited* 10738542 Property investment Engiand & Wa'es
Civitas SPV30 Limited® 10775419 Property investment Fngland & Wales

Civitas Social Housing Finance Company 2 Limicd® 10997698 Finance company Cngland & Wa'es

Civitas Socia. Housing Jersey 2 Limited 124875 Hoding company lersey mp
Civicas SPV3 Limited* 10155529 Property investmen:  England & Wales E '
Civiias SPV4 Limied®* 10433744 Property invesiment Eng.and & Wa.es i E
Civizas SPV5 Limiied® 10479104 Property invesiment Engand & Wales N E
Civitas SPV6 Limited” 10674483 Properiy invesimen: Eng.and & Wa.cs . E‘i'
Civizas SPV3 Limited? 15530388 Property investment Engiand & Wa.es ' E
Civitas SPVIG Limited® 10535243 Property investmen: Fng.and & Wa_es i ; )
Crvizas SPVYZ Limited” 15546753 Propery invesimen: Eng.and & Wa.cs ¥ -g ] .
Civitas 3PV17 Limitcd® 104790835 Propery invesimen: Eng.and & Wa.es
Civitas 5PVIE Limited® 16546651 Properny invesimen: Engiand & Wa.es
Crvntas SPV19 Limited* 15548932 Property invesimen: Eng.and & Wa.cs
Civitas SPV20 Limied” 10588735 Property invesimen: England & Wales
Civitas SPV22 Limited? 10743958 Propearty invesuren: England & Wal.cs
Civitas SPVZ4 Limited* 10751512 Property invesimen: England & Wa.es
Civitas SPV25H Limited” 10854336 Property inves men: Engiand & Waies
Civitas SPVZ9 Limried*® 10911565 Property invesiment England & Watcs
Civitas SPV30 Limited* 10936025 Property invesurent Engiand & Waies
Civitas 3PV31 Limited?” 10974889 Property investment England & Wales
Civitas 3PV32 Limitad” 11007173 Property investimen: England & Wales
Civizas 3FV34 lamied? 10738381 Property invegimen: England & Wa.cs
Civizas 5PV35 Limited” 10588792 Property investment Fngiand & Waies
Civiias SPV42 Timiwed”® 10738556 Properiy invesiment Fngland & Waies
Civiias SPV4Z Limuted*® 10534877 Property invesiunrent Eng and & Walcs
Civizas SPV4S Limited* 10871854 Properry Investiment Eng.and & Wales E 2
Civitas SPV4EH Limited® 12871910 Propery investmen. Fng.and & Wales % §
Civitas 5PV47 Limied? 10873270 Property invesiumean: Eng.and & Wa:as 2 é
Civizas 3PV48 Limited* 10873295 Property invesimen: Lng.and & Waies ; l:T_»
Civiias SPVE! Limited” 10826693 Properyy invesimen: Fng.and & Waies é "é
Clvitas SPV52 Lamited’ 10827006 Properly invesimen. Eng.and & Waics ; §
Civitas SPVG3 Limiied? 10937805 Propery invesimen: [ng.and & Wales g 2

123



Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

"AS SOCTAL
AN AL

Name

ijuas—- S.i;“_fﬁﬁl [.m‘.;zed'
Civitas 3PV70 Limited’
Civitas SPV7 Limited®
Civitas SPV72 Limited”
Civitas 3PV74 Limized®*
Civitas SPV7S Limited”
Civitas SPV8C Limuted’

Civiias Social Housing Finance Company 3 Limited*

Civitas SPV8 Limited*
Civitas SPV28 Limited”’
Civizas 8PV53 Limited*
Civitas SPVES Limited”
Civiras SPV37 Limited*
Civiias SPVAC Limited*
Civizas SPV6I1 Limited*
Civiiag 5PVea Limiied”
Civitas SPV77 Limized*
Civiias 3PV78 Limied*
Civitas SPV79 Limied*
Civitag 3PV81 Limied*
Civiias SPV82 Limied”
Civitas 3PV83 Limited”
Civiias SPVES Limited”
Civitas SPV9S Limied?
Civiias SPV97 Limited”
Civitas SPV103 Lincited®
Civiras SPV105 Limited®
Civitas SPV105 Limited®
Civiras SPVIGT Limited*
Civizas SPV114 Limited”®
Civizas SPVI1IY Limited*

Civiias Sccia. Housing Finance Company 4 Limited’

Civiias §PV23 Limiced'
Civizas SPV534 Limired®
Civitas SPV59 Limited*
Civitas SPV59 Limited?
Civitas SPV73 Limized”
Civitas 5PV84 Limmied®
Civitas SPV86 Limued”®
Civizas SPV87 Limied*
Crvizas SPV88 Limied*
Civitas SPVIC Lintiied”
Creizas SPVI1 Limmied?
Civiias 3PV9Z Limied”
Civitas 3PV93 Limmired”
Civitas SPV94 Limized®
Crsitas SPVI5 Limied”
Civitas SPVICEO Limized®
Civiias SPVICI Limied?

Registered number

10938411
16770201
10888639
10938022
UCCIBSS
1001834
11001998
10997714
10535157
10893228
1021525
11056435
11091444
11111508
10937662
10937898
1165491
1170099
1236544
11192811
11380796
1371128
H3O0749
11208184
11463890
11505596
11532177
11532179
11532182
11504399
1504445
11905550
18745881
11039750
RCIE
1142372
10939075
11381455
11418432
10888903
10939044
10959171
16941377
11449913
154310
11208105
11270786
11059703
09978782

Principal activity

Property invesiménirm
Property mvesinent
Property invesiment
Proper:y mnvesiment
Property invesiment
Fropery invesiment
Froperty invesument
Finance Company
Proper:y investment
Property invesiment
Property invesiment
Fropery invesiment
Froperty invesiment
Properny invesiment
Property invesiment
Fronerty invesimean:
Property invesimen:
Froperty invesimens:
Property invesimali
Property invesimen:
Propery invesmen:
Properly mmvesiumern:
Property invesimen:
Froperty invesimen:
Property investmen:
Propery mvestmen:
Propery invesimen:
Proper.y invesimen:
Propery investmen:
Property invesimen:
Propet:y investmen:
Finance Company
Propery invesimens:
Property invesimen:
Property investmen:
Propery invesiren:
Property invesimen:
Propery invesimen:
Pronery invesimen:
Propery invesimen:
Progpery invesimens
Propery invesimen.
Property invesiren:
Prooery invesimen:
PI'O_I)E‘;T‘.}J NVERTIT N

Property invesimen:

nmen:

Prooer:y inves
Propery InvVesimwean:
Property Invesimean:

Counlsy of ircorpotation

Eng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa'.cs
Eng.and & Wa_es
Eng.and & Wa.es
Eng:and & Wa.es
England & Wa_es
Engiand & Wa.cs
Eng.and & Wa'es
England & Wales
Eng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa.cs
Eng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Eng and & Wales
Fng and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Cngiand & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Cngland & Wales
Engiand & Wa'es
Eng.and & ‘Wales
England & Wa.cs
England & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
Engiand & Wa es
Eng.and & Wa es
Eng.and & Wa.es
England & Wa. es
Eng.and & Wa'es

Eng.and & Wales

Eng.and & Wa es
Eng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa.eg

Eng.and & Wa.es
Ingland & Walcs

Eng.and & Wa.es

Eng.and & Wa es
Eng.and & Wa es
Eng.and & Wa.cs
Eng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa.es

Eng.and & Wa.es
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Name

Civiias SPVIOZ Limited*
Civizas SPVINY Limited®
Ciwvizas SPV1Z Limited”
Civiias SPV114 Limited®
Civitas SPV115 Limied”®
Clvitas SPV118 Limited*
Civitas SPV121 Limied®
Civitas SPV122 Limited®
Civitas SPVI26 Limited*
Civitas 5PV127 Limited!
Civitas SPV12% Limited*
Civiias SFV130 Limited®
Civizas SPV131 Limiied*
Civizas SPV132 Limited®
Civiras SPV145 Limiied®
SPVI153 Limited (previous.y Fieldpay Limited)*
Civitas SFV148 Limited*
Civitas SPVI49 Limited”
Civitas SFV150 Limited*
FPI CO 324 1od”

Civizas Socia’ Housing Finance Company 5 Limated®
Civitas SPV7 Limited®
Civitas SPVI3 Limited*
Civitas SPV37 Limmited®
Civitas SPV44 Limied?
Civitas 5PV49 Limited*
Civitas SPV56 Limited*
Civitas SPVE2 Limited®
Civitas SPV65 Limited*
Civitas SPV67 Limiwed?
Civitas SPV68 Limied?
Civitas SPV98 Limited*®
Civitas SPV99 Limicd*
Civitas SPVIC4 Limied*
Clvitas SPVIQ8 Lirrited’
Clvitas SPV113 Limited®
Civitag SPV123 Limited*
Civitas SPV133 Limited’
Civiias SPV134 Limited*
Civizas SPV135 Limited"*
Civitas SPV135 Limited*
Civiias SPV143 Limited*
Civiias SPV144 Limized”
Civitas SPV146 Limited?

Bryn Eizhin (2019} Limizod?
Civitas SPV147 Limied®

Mynydd Mawr (2019) Limited*
Civiras SPV152 Limtied”
Civiiag SPVISE Limited*

Rr_rgis_t_e:_ed num ber

11521855
1532120
1579750
11579733
1522178
11411498
11099917
11482646
11459821
10941461
11564994
N703074
11675132
11473735
11842306
5219012
N&32533
11462691
11452555
11633019
13083077
10530368
09517692
16738450
10588783
11031349
11056465
10937578
10938467
109379:2%
10938268
11478695
11478707
115372174
11332135
11580068
08253452
11698972
11589461
1157988C
11579760
11545808
11546696
11861500
11844898
11861971
11644917
11955719
12044281

Pn’ncip-al activity
Proverty inves:imeon:
Property invesimen:
Property investren:
Property investmen:
Property investmen:
Fropertly investment
Property mvesiumen:
Property invesunernt
Properly investment
Property inves:imen:
Proper:y inves:men:
Propery invesiment
Proverty invesimen:
Property investimen:
Holding company

Propcrty investmen:
Property investmen:
Property investmen:
Property invesiment
Froperwy invesimen:
Finance Company

Pronerty lnvesiment
Property investment
Property investiment
Propeny investmeant
Property invesurent
Property investment
Properiy investment
Froperty invesimen:
Property investmen:
Property invesimen:
Property invesimen:
Properwy invesimen:
Properly invesimen!
Propery invesimen:
Propery invesumneani
Property investment
Property investment
Property investmen:
Property invesiment
Property invesimen!
Property invesimen:
Property mvesiment
Ho.ding Company

Froper.y Inves:mern:
Ho:ding Company

Properwy invesimens:
Propery investmen:
Propery invesimaont

szm-:-y of mcorpor-:atlon
Lngland & Wales
Fngland & Wales
Eng.and & Wa.es
Engiand & Wa.eg
England & Walics
Eng.and & Wa'es
Eng.and & Wales
England & Wales
Fng.and & Wa'es
England & Waics
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Walcs
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wa'es
England & Wales
Eng.and & Wa'cs
Fng.and & Wa.es
Engiand & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wales
Engiand & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Waics
Cngland & Wales
Fngland & Wales
Eng.and & Wa.cs
Cngiand & Wales
Fngland & Wales
Eng.and & Wa.cs
[ng.and & Wa.es
Eng:and & Wales
Eng.and & Wa.es
Fngland & Wales
England & Wa.cs
Ingland & Wa es
Fngland & Wa.es
England & Walcs
Eng:and & Wa.es
Fng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wa'es
Eng.and & Wales
England & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa_os
Engiand & Wa.es
England & Wa es
England & Wa os

g
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Nare h ) . Reg(-s;cjred number ) Princiodfaf-r;a:a‘;- . ”j Country c);n:_‘crpvrauo_llr -
Civitas SPV136 Iimited® 12081093 Property investment England & Wa'es
Civizas SPV157 Limited”* 12188610 Property Invesumnent England & Wa.es
Civitas 5PV158 Liumnited* 12202674 Properny invesiment Engiand & Wa.es
Civizas SPV150 Limited® 12272905 Property INVesimen: Eng.and & Wales
Bedford 5PV Limited” 12315518 Property invesimen: England & Wales
Bridge Property Herts Limited* 12435385 Property invesimen: Eng.and & Wales
Bridge Prepco Limited” 12445435 Property invesimen: Eng.and & Wales
FPI Co 294 Tod” 11519226 Propcrty invesimen: Engand & Waies
Civitas SPV14 Limited* 10479041 Propery immvesiment England & Wales
Civitas SPV HP Lid.* 12784895 Dropeny investment England & Waies
Civitag SPV156 Limmited? 09917557 Property invastment Engiand & Wales
Civizas SPV21 limited® 10631541 Property investment Engiand & Wa'as
Civitas §PV159 Limited* 12258313 Propery investment Tngland & Wales
Civizas Financing PLC* 13546154 Hoiding Company England & Wa.es

* These antines are exempl from the fagquirements of the Companies Act 2006 relahng to the audit of indrvidual finanaal statements by virrue ol Secinon 4794 of that
Act These are all entrties that hdve & year end of 31 March 2622

The registercd addresses for the subsidiaries are consisient based on their country of Incorporation and are as follows:

¢ England & Waies entities: Bea.fort House, 51 New Nortn Road. Txc:cr. Devon EX4 4EP
¢ Jersey entities: 12 Casile Sireel 5. Helier, jersey JL2 3RT

50 Trade and other recevahles

31March 2022 31 March 2021

- £000 £'000
“rade receivabes T - 1150 773
Prepaymen:s and other receivapies 1902 1433
Accraed incoma 1258 1.489
Total o o ' 4310 3,644

Prepaymen:s and ocr receivab.e amounts include prepaid ‘ega. and professiona lees ot 34,000 (2021: £200,000) that nave
been incarred M CONNECNON with acquisiziions yer (o ve completed and £1.646.000 (2021 £817.6C0) in respec: of ancomp.eted
wor<s on the property porioio

15.0 Cash anca cash equivalents

31March 2022 31 March 2021

£000
Casa aed oy soldciors o ’ - R
Liguidiy tunds 10.489 10485
Casn ne.d at banx 12258 5.381
Casn and casn cq;;lva_enis ) - T h o 2.3,]23' 14585
Res:Ticied casn 315 861
Total cash held atbank o ' T 23438 15447

Liguidity tunds refer 1o money p.aced in money mars<e: funds Tnase are aign.y dquid funds wiln accessiplity witnin 24 noars
and suoec o insignificani risg of caanges inva Le.

=
Z

Casn ne.d oy sOUCIOIS is Mmoney ne.d 1N escrow for expenses expecied 1o pe incurred in re.a:ion (o Invesimen: prooeriies
nending compielon These funds are availan.e immediaie.y on demand

ResTicied casa reoresens amo.nts ne.d for specific commuimen:s, tenan: deposiis and rewcniion maney neld oy .awy/ers i
relation to deferred paymen:s s.o'sc 1o acnievemen: of cerrain conditions. oiner relentons and casa scgrega:ed o fund repair
mainienance and improvemean: wors 10 prng e properiies .o (o sausfaciory siandards for :ne Gro.p and 1nc lenans.




Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

11.0 Trade and other payatries

Reteniions
Accruals

Dividend withho.ding 1ax payab.e
Deferred income

Amrounts due to subsidiary companies

Total

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

12.0 Share capital

Share capia; represents the nominal value of consideration received by the Company for the issue of Ordinary sharss.

Share capital
Al ‘qggjnmng and cnd of year

Nurnizer of sjares autnolased ivaaed s fusly o

brdinary shares of £0.01 each
At peginning and end of year

Fot the year

ended
31 March 2022

e _ o €000 £'000
288 490

685 458

1,057 892

358 358

271,632 169,455

- 274,020 171655
77777 For the }'or“t;o-

year ended year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
- N . £000_ £600
6.225 6.223

For the: year
ended
31 March 2021

622461380

522,451.38C

Tne Company no:de 10.025.000 (2021 563.000) Ordinary shares in freasury. Tne namber of Crdinary sharcs Jsed 1o caled’ate the

net asset value per share is 512435380 (2021: 571.896.380)

15,0 SAcoaniuidated (asses
This reserve represanis (e orofits and Josses of the Company

Balance at ine peginning of :he year

Profi: for the year
Dividends gaid in the year
Al end of year

P10 Dventeeling porioes
As ar 31 Marcn 2022, there is no Utimate coniro.ing party

P90 Fedatod mavty trass johinns

For the

For the

year ended year ended

31March 2022 31 March 2021

—_— _ s £006 700G
(61,473} {84.840)

21,362 52.780
 (34,093)  (33413)
. (74.204)  (61473)

For all related party ransactions and iransaciions with the Investmen: Adviger p.ease maxe reference Lo notes 301 and 30 2 of
he Grouap's conso.adated financial statements and amownts due o supsidiary companies in note 7.0 apove

22 Post Durano® fe-" aweatd,

Piease refer :onote 33.0 of the Croun Consoldated tinanciai siat:ements on page 117,

o
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the
calculation of EPRA and other alternative
performance measures

MNotes 1to 5 support Lne FRPA metrics disclosed on pages 36 and 37 of the Report where the defininon and purpose of each

merric are out'ined.

10 LPRA Earnings

For the year
ended
__ 31Maich 2022

For the year
ended
31 Match 2021

Eé.i-ni.ngs from operational activities

Profi: after taxation (£70C0) 44,754 35,075
Change in fair value of derivative financia! instruments (£'0CG} {2.675) 56
Changes in value of invesimen: proper:ies (£'C00) {12,269) (3.510
FPRA Farnings (£000) T o o NPTy ¥ T 30630
W;ir(jh{(;l?j e;verage number of shares iﬁiiés;ei(adjﬁsted for shares he.d in lreasury) T T 6187978942 571651839
[FRA Larnings per snare (EPS) - basic & diuted " amp 49
?.0 EPRA NAV Metiics
- T ) EPRA Net EPRA Net EFRA Net
REinslale‘;:f‘:\; Tar;g';zl‘: Disg:ls:;
31 March 2022 S - B
Ne! assers (£'00C) 675,547 675,547 675,547
Fair value of derivative financia! insramen:s (£000) (2,131} (2,131) -
Fair value of nank porrowings (£'0C0) - - 2,644
Navcon - 673416 673416 678,191
Number ol shares in issue (ad;usted for sharad ne.d in treasury) 612,436,380 612,436,380 612,436380
NAV per snare o i 109.96[:{ ) 109.96p 110.74p
T - T erraner | meRARet  frRANCU
Rernstatement Tangible isposal
Fatue | Assens  Vale
31 March 2021 - N S
Net assets (£'GCC) 573,488 673.498 573498
Falr value of derivative financia. insirumean:s (£'G60) 544 544 -
Fair va'r.e of ban< borrowings (7000 - (2.022)
NAV (£000) S T T T arac42 674042 671476
Number of snares in issue (ad used for shared held in reaswry) 571,896.38C 621.89538C »#21.896380
WAV per share o 10838p  10838p 167970
3.0 LREA Red fuitial Yoo
o - I T B B Tor the o _Fnr the
S havch 3032 31 Matcn 5071
[nvesimen: property (r"’bC(‘:) ) ) - T T V968.756 79%5@9
Alowance tor esiimated purchasers’ costs (£'600) 56412 53753
Gross p comp.eied property poriolio (£'000) S T T 1025168 959347
Ann.alised ne: renis (FG00) ' S - 5apm;m  5078C
Add: nationa. ren: expiraiion ol rent tree periods or 0incT .case incensives (F000) -
T(_)::Jp“ed:;f;- net annLaised ren: oo - - 77754.691 5_07?33_
EPRA NTY ' ' - ' o T T T T s28% 524w
LPRA Toppod-up NIY 5.28% 524%
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the
calculation of EPRA and other alternative
performance measures continued

4.0 EPRA Vacancy Rate

For the
o _ Shenze
F;frans? M;(e* Elﬁa'ﬁ?{ERWof va?an:{)a cr;(f‘()\DVD} o -
Estimated Marke? Renzal Value (ERV) of who.e pontfolio¢tcoy 5409
EPRA Vac ar}iﬁi_i‘ o e 7_ . ox
5.0 EPRA Costs Ratiao
T T - 0 T T o o T - - }‘o;the
year ended
. mMarch2
“ota! adminisirative a?d_épera 1onpenstjs_ S 10,247
Direct proverty expenses 973
Less property expenses recovered ihrough rents ] o - (995)
I-:PRA Costs {including dn'ec:t. vacancy costs) - - - 10,230
Direct vacancy cosis _ o -
EPRA Cos_%x_:c_lgdmg dxre\;:t vaéa.ncy gst;)ﬂ ‘7** _7 e -77 10230
Renta. income 51,636
Less rechargeable cosis received ) ) L (995)
Gross rentalincome T T T 7 T T Tsopa
EPRA Cost Ratio (including direct xcl vacancy costs) 2020%
EPRA Cosﬁaﬁrﬁexcludmg direct vacancy cdsts) T T T _____ - ___i 20.20%”
Tae Grodp aas not incurred any direct vacancy cosis.
S0 EPRA Tabie of Tomital Exvpenditare
S s T T s T T T T T T T T T T e
32 March 5032
-— I - - - e . Eoc0
Acquisidions inc.uding inciden:a. Qsisa purchﬁseﬁ o 33,466
Deve.opmen: -
Investment properties
Incremenal .eiab e space -
Ennancing ‘eable space 5.818
Tenan: Incentives 1,614
COrner materia. nen-a.ocaed wypes of expenditure -
Capiialised interes: -
'l‘ola.l Capl.ta]'Expendnure - - — - 7 _7 T a —«)m
Con version [rom acar..a.s o LQ ,'J;s - 4?127
Tota:l‘E;lpna,l Expendnure on a cash basls - - ] - - o 42,213

~ae Gro.p n1as not capita.ised any overncad or 0peraiing exoenses.

3

Fur the
year ended

1 March 2021

50,380

For the

*

yeat ended

Maich 2021

9438
1175
{886)

KH

9187

19,020

9787

(gan)

4g1m

20, 3'%“/

ZC 3'3/a

For the
year ended
March 2021
£000

16108

4577

11217

31,735
EE



Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the
calculation of EPRA and other alternative
performance measures continued

.0 Portfolio NAVY
[FES NAV adjusicd o reflect invesunent property valued on a portfoiio pasts rather than individ..al asset basis.

31March 2022 31Match20zl

Ne: asse:s (£'0C0) 675,547 £73.498
Adiusimen: for change to property valuation {gPOO)i 76,7_‘:'!4 73,270
Partfalio net assets (£000) 752,331 736,768

M.mber of Ordinary shares ;n iss-.Je (-édjx,-f-;-:ed for shares held in treas-‘E-)

Portfolio Nel Assets per share

5.0 leveraged internal vrate of retuen (IRE)

This is the annual growtn ratc. pased on growth in ne: assel vaue per share since launch and dividends paid to

Ordinary sharchelders.

T E12436380 671.896380
122.84p

11847p

3l wMarch 2022 _TI_ March 2021

IFRS NAV per share 110.3000p  108.300p
31 May 2017 Interim dividend 0.7500p (.7500p
31 August 2017 Interim dividend 0.7500p 3.7500p
30 November 2017 Interim dividend 0.7500p 0.7500p
9 Marca 2018 [n:erim dividend 0.7500p 07500p
8 June 2018 [nterim dividend 12500p 1.2500p
7 Septemper 2018 [nierim dividend 1.2500p 1.25G0p
30 November 2018 Inierim dividend 1.2500p 1.25G0p
11 January 2019 Tnterim dividend 1.1100p 100
28 Fepraary 2619 Interim dividend 0.1400p G.14C0p
7 Tine 2019 In:erim dividend 13250p 1.325CD
5 September 2019 Intcrim dividend 1.3250p 1325Cp
29 November 2019 Inerim dividend 1.3250p 132500
28 Fepraary 2026 Inenim dividend 1.3250p 1.32300
12 Tune 2620 In:erim dividend 1.3250p 13256Gp
7 Seplember 2020 Inzerim dividend 13500p 1.35000
4 December 2020 Interim dividend 13500p 135000
1 Marcn 2021 Interim dividend 1.3500p 1.350Cp
1 Tine 2621 Interim dividend 1.3500p -
10 Septemper 2621 Interim dividend 1.3875p -
13 December 2021 Interim dividend 1.32875p

11 Marcn 2022 Inerim dividend 13875p -

[FRS NAV per snare a: iaunci

Levercd TRR

134.4875p 125.975Cp
98.0000p
6.63%

98.000CH

5.54%

£
:
=3
=
F
[
2|
3
o
13
1 3
]
oF .
=

ZE0¢ SLNNODDY GNV LEOdIHY
Tl DHISNOGH TV XIS SVLIAL




CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLL
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2022

132

Five Year Financial Results

Graup Stamment of Comprehensive ncome

Revenue
Rental income

lLess direc: propery expenses
Net rental income
Directors’ remuneration

Investmen: advisory fees

General and adminigirative expenses

Total ;.xpenses

Cnange in fair va.uc of investmen:. sroperues

Opergtﬁtg Profit

Finanze incorme

Finance expenses - re.aiing o bank Dorrowings
Finance expenses relating o C share amortisation
Change in fair value of interes: rate derivazives
Profit b;igfe tax o )
Taxaiion

Profit being total cox;{ﬁ}ehensive income

Earnings per share — basic
Earnings per share — diluted

For the
period {rom
Fat the FOr the For the Forthe 18 Noevember
year ended vear ended year ended year ended 2160
Al Mateh 2022  31March 2021 31March2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
£000 £ovn £600 £00U_ _£000
51,636 19.020 46.168 35738 18.606
i {978) (1.175) 259 ) _ -
50,658 A7.845 45906 35738 18.606
(206) (198) (175} {163} {205}
(6,132) B0 (5.183) {6457} (8.773)
(3.909) 13.183) (3.5CN (3.022} (?..915_1
{10,247) B (5.498} ) 77(‘},85@ 1€ 6472) 7 (8,893)
12,269 3.51 9.389 3.652 30,633
52,680 43858 43435 28748 40346
7 26 116 491 413
(10,608) (7.737) {7.34%) {3.975) (L5410
- - - (6.4C0) (2.792)
2675 _ (86) ey - o
44,754 35.075 37725 19.864 35976
44734 35075 37,725 19,264 36,925
7.23p 58Cp 506p 467p 1C.55p
7.23p 5.80p 8.06p 42270 527p
5.55p 54Cp 530D 300D 3000

Dividend declared



Five Year Financial Results

Continued

Cronp Stateinent of Finanmal Position

41 March 2021

31 March 2020

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
_fooo Eonn

820.094 516.222
b, B4 -

826918 316.227

1035507 947955 886988  769.145

“omase) 20515

_ e o _& _ _E_‘lJUlJ ) £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Invesiurent property 945,237 893.684 867988
Ctner recelvables 23,519 21905 10.755
Inierest rate derivatives 2,131
o S S 970887 915583 878743
Non-current asseis
“rade and oiher receivables 12,865 12,821 1¢.838
Cash and cash cquivalen:s 53.337 107.097 58,374
- T T T T T T Teezoz 19918 69212
Total assets - 1,037,089
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and o:her payab.es (9,492) (3,348) (7.743)
Bank and loan borrowings - {59.937) (59.730)
C sharcs -
- T o © (9492)  (59282)  (67473)
Non-current liabilities
Bank and ‘oan borrowings {352,050) (292.183)  (209440)
Interest rate derivatives - {544 (478)
- - o T T (352050) (292727)
Total liabilities S _7 o _-___- (361,542) _(3_62_0097‘ 277390
Total net assets 675847 573498 5705
Assets
Snare capiia. 6,225 5,225 6.225
Share premram reserve 292.626 7292463 292.4G5
Capi:ai reduction reserve 322,365 331,140 330926
Retained samings 54,331 43,670 41,008
Total ;qﬁity ' I T T 675847 673498 670.364
Net assets per share — basic 110.30p 108 3Cp 107 870
Net assets per share — diluted 110.30p 108.3Cp 107 870
Portfolio NAV 122.84p 118.47p N835p
Share price 87.40p 107.80p 954Cp
Total shareholder return (on a NAV basis) 37.23% 29.57% 23.54%
Leverage 34.43% 34.48% 26.90%

5723 3318
54,347 219668

5007 252923

(15.324) {10,176)

- 98T
{15324)  (308.928)

(705.158) (9C.822)

BCHEE
(220.480) _ (399.750)

565508 356395

5725 3,500
292.405 -
331.625 331628
36,253 34270

565508  369.395

107.080  10534p
107.08p  18534p
1907p 386D
35.00p 97.40p

17 43% 10.76%
22.00% 12.00%

2t
3
o
[
Sk
5
=]
n
E
2
(=]
z}

2Z0¢ SENNODOV NV 1.dGd4d
I7Td ONISNOH IVIHO0S SYLIAID

133



REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2022

CIVITAS SUHIAL

134

Shareholder Information

Share Information

The Company's Crdinary shares of p each are quoed

on the Official [ist of the FCA and raded on the premium
segmern: of the Main Marke: of the _ondon Sock kxchange
L3z

SEDOL number 3D8=373

ISIN - GRcosbsEaR
Ticker/TIDM _ S . . - .
LEI 23BOUPGBGB4J8GVETIS.

Frequency of NAV Publication

The Company's NAV1s released o the .80 on a quarerty
basis and pubhished on the Company's webare
www.civitassoclalhousing.com.

Sources of Further Information

Coples of the Company's Annual and =Aalf-Yearly Repor:s,
Stock Exchange announcemenss and further informaton
on the Company can be obtained from 175 websiie:
www.civizassocialhousing.com.

Share Register Enquiries

The register for the Company’s Ordinary shares g
mainained by Lank Group. .n the even: of queries
regarding your holding, please contac: the Reqgisirar

on 0477 664 G300 {calls are charged a? the standard
geographic rate and will vary by provider; calls outside
he U< will be charged at the applicable internanonal
rate} Lines are open besween 9 00am and 530pm.
Vonday to Trniday. excliding pubhc hohdays in sngland
and Wales. Yol can also email enquiries @imkgroup.coalk.

Changes of name and/or address mus: be notfied in
wrring 1o the Regisrar Lank Group, (0th “loor, Central
Scquare, 29 Wellingion Sireer, Leeds .57 40,0

Key Dates
June - :’\hilia]?s;ﬁllis ar{nio:mcecL B . o
o __Paymen: of fourth final dindend
i_eptem_ber _ Comp;dn‘y_"s ha_]ffyearind B
. . Annual general meeung. . _
_ ) k '_)‘a;yfmen:‘of flrsiﬂter_lm_dnnde@
December  “alf-yearly resulis announced _
- s aymen: of second interim dindend
l’-‘ebn@_rv Jaymen: of;ﬂrd mzernm dividend
March _Company’s yeﬂendﬁ o

Association of Investment Companies

The Company 1s a member of the AIC which publishes
staustical mformanon i respec: of member companies.
The AJC can be contacied on 020 7282 55855, enguiries®
+heaic.coak or vist: the websie wwwhealc.cotk

Electronic Communications from
the Company

Saareiolders now have he opporiunily o ne nonhied py
emall when the Company's Annua! Repor:. Ha.f-Yeary
Repor: and other formal commurcations are avallao.e on
“he Company's website. insiead of receiving prin.ed copies
oy post This nas environmenial peneflls In the reducnon of
DADCL Prining. energy and waier usadge, a8 we.. as reducing
cosa 10 e Company

If you have no. aiready c.ecied 10 receive e ecironic
communications from e Corrpany and wish to do so. p.edse
coniac: (hie Regisirar



Glossary

AIFM means the Alternatuve invesiment :und Manager.

AIFMD means the Alternatuve investmen: lund Managers
Regulanionsg 2613 (as amended by The Alternalive
Investmen: “und Managers (Amendmenrt etc.) (kL Exi)
Regulations 2019) and the Invesimen: "unds Sourcehook
forming par: of the "CA Zandhook.

ALMO means an arm’s leng:h managemen: organisaion,
a not-for-profit company that provides housing services
on behalf of a _ocal Authornity.

Alternative Performance Measures {APMg) means a
financial measure of historical financial performance,
financial positton. or cash flows, other than a financial
measure defined or specified in the apphcable financial
reporang framework.

Annualised rent roll means the total rental income due
over the first year from the dare of valuanon, including an
egtiimated rental uphf: based on a long-term inflation rate.

Approved Provider means Approved Providers, Local
Aurhoruies, ALMOs, Communtty nteres: Comparnies,
registered Channes and other regulated crganisations
direc:ly or indirectly in receipt of paymens: from local or
ceniral governmens inchiding the N=S.

Care Provider means a provider of care services 1o the
occuapants of Specialis: Supported Housing. registered
with the Care Quality Commission.

CIM means Civitas .nvesment Management .imited or
Civ {formerly known as Ciwitas Housing Adwvisors Limited
unil 1's change of name on ¥ May 20203,

Community Interest Company or CIC means a
company approved by the Cffice of the Regulator of
Community interes: Companies as a CoOmmunity Interes:
company and registered as such with Companies =ouse.

Company means Civizag Social =ousing 2°.C, a company
incorporated in England and Wales with company
number 0402528,

CMA Order means the Sratutory audin Services Order
2074, 1ssued by the Competauon and Markets Authonwy

Current Leverage means the percentage taken as toial
bank borrowings drawn over total assets,

Dividend Yield means the ratio of the :otal annual
dividend payments over marke: price per share.

EPRA mezans the zuropean ~ublic Real =smate Association.

EPRA EPS 15 the -’RA earnings divided by the weighted
average number of chares in1ssie in ~he period.

EPRA Net Reinstatement Value (“EPRA NRV") 15 an
FPRA NAV metrnic which assumes tha: entifies never sell
assets and aims to represen: *he value required o rebuild
the entiry.

EPRA Net Tangible Assets (“EPRA NTA™} 15 an EPRA
NAY metric which assumes tha' entittes buy and sell
assets. thereby crysiallising certain levels of unavoidable
deferred tax.

EPRA Net Disposal Value (“EPRA NDV") 15 an EFRA

NAV metric which represen:s he shareholders' value
under a disposal scenario, where deferred 1ax. financial
instraments and certain other adjustments are calculated
1o the full ex:ent of thewr lability, net of any resuliing tax.

EPRA Run Rate means the ratio of a company's earnings
{excluding fair value gams/losses) over dividends paid 0
shareholders.

Gross Asset Value means to%al asse:s.
Group means the Company and its subsichanes

Housing Association or HA means an independern:
society, body of trustees or company esiablished for
the purpose of providing low-cos: social housing for
people in housing need generally on a non-profi
making basis. Any trading surplas is typically used o
mamn:ain exisning homes and o help finance new ones.
Housing Associanons are regulated by the Regulator of
Social Zousing.

IFRS Net Asset Value or IFRS NAV means the net asset
value of the Group on the relevant date, prepared in
accordance with 7R85 accouniing principles.

Investment Adviser means Civitas invesiment
Vanagemen: Limited ("CIM"), a company incorperated in
zngland and Wales with company number 10278444, in 1ts
capacity as investment adviser to the Company

IPO means nuial Pubhc Offenng.
IRR means internal rate of retum.

Levered IRR means the imiernal raze of return inclading
“he impact of debs.

Local Authority or LA means the adminisirative bodies
for the local government in ~ngland compnsing 326
authonues (including 52 Londen boroughs.

Net Initial Yield means the ratio of net rental income
and gross purchase pnce of a propernty.

NHS means the publicly funded healthcare system of
‘he United <ingdom comprising The Nauonal Health
Service in sngland, NHS Scotland, N=S Wales and ~ealth
and Social Care in Northern 'reland, including, for the
avoldance of doubt NHS Trus:s
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Glossary

Continued

NHS Trust means a legal enury. set up by order of the
Sacretary of Staze under secnon 25 of. and Schedule 4 1o,
‘he National Health Service Ac: 2006, "o provide goods
and services for the purposes of the health service

Ongoing Charges (previously Total Rxpense Raios

or TzRs) means the figure published annually by the
Company which shows the drag on parformance caused
by operauonal expenses. More specifically, 1:1s the
annual percentage reduction in shareholder returns as
a result of recurrning operauonal expenses assuminyg
marke:s remain s:atic and ‘he porifohc is not iraded.
Al:hough the Ongoing Charges figure 1s based on
hisiornical informaucn. it provides shareholders with an
indication of the likely level of cosis that will be incurred
In managing the Company 1n the furare

Portfolio means ‘he Group's portffolio of asses.

Portfolio Net Asset Value or Portfolio NAV means the
net asset value of the Company, with assets aggregated
rather than valued on an asset by asse: basis, as atthe
relevan: daze, calculaled on the basis of an mdependen:
Portfolio Valuation. See nate 7.0 10 Appendix . for a
reconcilialon o LIRS NAVY,

Portfolio Basis means he 2ortfolio NAY (as defined
above)

Portfolio Valuation means an independen: valuanon of
the rForifolio by Jones “ang LaSalte Limired or such other
property adviser as the Direciors may select from arme

w0 me, based apon the Portfohio being held, direcily or
indirectly. within a corporae vehicle or eguivalent entiy
which 18 a wholly owned subsidhary of the Company and
orherwlise prepared in accordance with 2°CS "Jed 3ook”
guidelines.

REIT means a gualifying real estate investiment tris n
accordance with the UX 22T Requme inroduced by the
U Cinance Act 2006 and subisequently re-writien m:o
Rar: "2 of the Corporauon Tax Act 2000

RICS means Roval nsiaaiion of Charered Surveyors.

RSH means ‘he Regulator of Socal Sousing. the
execusive non-deparimen:al public body, sponsored
by the Vimisiry of Zousing, Cormmunities and Local
Governmen:, which 1s the regulator for Social =omes
providers in Zngland and Wales

Sccial homes or social housing means social rened
homes and other accommodation tha: are offered at
rents subsidised below market level or are constisuen:s
of other appropriate rent regimes such as exemptren:s
or are subject 1o bespoke agreement with enites such as
NHS3 Trusts and are provided by Approved “roviders

Specialist Supported Housing or S8H means social
housing which incorporates some form of care or other
ancilary service on the premises.

SPV means special purpose vehicie, a corporate vehicle
in which the Group's properies are held.

Target Return means the larget return on mvestiment.

Total Return means Ne: Total Retum. Leing the change
In (I'RY NAV aver the relevan’ penod plus dividend paid.

Total Shareholder Return means a meas.ure of the
rerurn hased upon share price movement over the penod
phus dividend pard

Valuation means an independen: valuation of the
2orfohio by Jones Lang LaSalle Limized or such oither
properyy adviser as the Direciors may selec: from
sime o tme, prepared in accordance with £.CS “Red
Rook” gaidelines and based upon a valuazion of each
underlying invesimen: property rather than the value
ascribed to the portfolio and on the assumpnon of

a theoreucal sale of each propery rather han the
corporaze enines in which all of the Company's
mvestmen: properies gre held.

WAULT or “Weighted Average Unexpired Lease Term”
15 the produc: of annualised rent ol a: peniod end and
“he ume 1 years to whern the lease expires for each given
lease, summed acrogs leases, and then diwvided by the
cotal annuahsed rent roll of the porfolio. The result s
expressed i years. WAL T 15 a key measzure of the guality
of the Company's porifoho. Long lease terms underpin
“he security of the Company’s iIncome sireaim.
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Peter Baxter, Senior Independent Director and Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneranon Commitiee
Caroline Gulliver, Chair of the Audir and Management cngagemen: Committee
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G10 Capital Limited
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Investment Adviser

Civitas Investment Management Limited
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Joint Corporate Brokers

Liberum Capital Limited
Ropernaker 2lace
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London ZC2Y 9.Y
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sondon EC4M 9AT
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Beaufor: House

5t New Nor:th Road

Lxeter

Jevon X4 4-0P

Depositary

INDOS Financial Limited
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44 “enchurch Streer
London 2CSM 3]V

Registrar

Link Group
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
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London S5 2RT

Legal and Tax Adviser
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Buchanan
‘07 Cheapside
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Civitas Investment Management Limited
13 Berkeley Street,

London W1] 8DU

T 020 3058 4840

E enquiries@civitasim.com

W www.civitasim.com



